




THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT ANDREQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

It contains the resolutions to be voted on at the Companys Annual General Meeting to

be held on 20 May 2010 If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take you are

recommended to seek your own personal financial advice from your stockbroker bank

manager solicitor accountant or other independent financial adviser who is authorised

under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the Company please forward this document and the

form of proxy for use in relation to the Annual General Meeting of the Company as soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee or to the

stockbroker bankor other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee If you have

sold or otherwisetransferred some of your ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the Company you should consult with the stockbroker

bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected

The Annual General Meeting starts at 10.00 Æ.mon 20 May 2010 However the doors to the meeting will be open from 9.30 a.m

and you may wish to arrive by 9.45 a.m to take your seat in good time for the start of the meeting

Please see the attached explanatory notes for further details on the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

WolfsoA Microeleôtronics plc

Incorporated and registered in Scotland with no SC089839

Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Wolfson Microelectronics plc

the Company will be held at Westfield House 26 Westfield Road Edinburgh EHI 2QB

on .20 May 2010 at 10.00 a.m for the transaction of the following busIness

Ordinary Resolutions

To consider and if thought fit to pass Resolutions to 11 inclusive as ordinary resolutions of the Company

Resolution

To receive the accounts of the Company for the financial year ended January 2010 together with the directors report the directors

remuneration report and the auditors report on those accounts and that part of the directors remuneration report which is required to

be audited

Resolution

13 approve th directors remuneration report as setout in the Annual Report and Accounts 2009 for the financial year ended January

2010

Resolution

To re-elect rk Cubitt as director of the Company

Resolution

To re-elect Ross King Graham as director of the Company

Resolution

To re-elect Alastair David Milne as director of the Company



Resolution Resolution 10

To re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company to hold

office until the conclusion of the next general meetihg at which the

accounts of the Company are laid

Resolution

To authorise the directors of the Company to determine the

auditors remuneration for the ensuing year

Resolution

That

the directors of the Company be generally and unconditionally

authorised pursuant to section 551 of the Companies Act 2006

the Act to allot shares in the Company or to grant rights to

subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the

Company up to maximum nominal amount of 38415 and

the authorities given in this Resolution

shall be in substitution for all pre-existing authorities under

section 551 of the Act or its predecessor section 80 of the

Companies Act 1985 as amended and

ii unless renewed revoked or varied in accordance with the Act

shall expire on the earlier of 15 months after the passing of this

Resolution or the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of

the Company to be held in 2011 save that the Company may

before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or

might require the allotment of shares in the Company or the

grant of rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into

shares in the Company after such expiry

Resolution

That the Wolfson Microelectronics Approved SAVE Scheme the

SAVE Plan the principal terms of which are set out in Appendix

of this Notice copy of the rules of which is produced to this

Meeting by the Chairman and initialled for the purposes of

identification be and hereby is approved and adopted and that the

board of directors of the Company or an appropriate committee of

the board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts and

things as it may consider necessary or desirable to give effect to

the SAVE Plan including making any amendments required to

obtain-the approval of HM Revenue Customs to establish other

employees share schemes based on the SAVE Plan but modified

tb take accOunt of local tax exchange control or securities laws in

overseas territories provided that any shares made available under

any such further plans are treated to the extent appropriate as

counting against the limits on inividual or overall participation

in the SAVE Plan and to..take account of the requirements of

The London Stock Exchange Plc

That

The Wolfson Microelectronics 2009 Staff Share Award Plan

the SSAP copy of the rUles of which has been produced

to this Meeting and for the purposes of identification only

initiafled by the Chairman and summary of the principal terms

of which is set out in Appendix to this Notice of Annual

General Meeting be and is hereby approved

the board of directors of the Company or an appropriate

committee of the board be and is hereby authorised to do all

such acts and things as it may consider necessary or desirable

to give effect to the SSAP and to establish other employees

share schemes for the benefit of employees located outside

the UK based on the SSAP but modified to take account of

local tax exchange control or secrities laws in overseas

territories provided that any shares made available under any

such further schemes are treated as counting against the limits

on individual or overall participation in the SSAR

Resolution 11

That

The Wolfson Microelectronics 2010 Senior Executive Deferred

Bonus Plan the DB Plan copy-of the rules of which has

been produced to this Meeting and for the purposes of-

identification only initialled by the Chairman and summary of

the principal terms of which is set out in the Appendix to this

Notice of Annual General Meeting be and is hereby approved

-and established

the board of directors of the Company Or an appropriate

committee of the board be and is hereby authorised to do all

such acts and things as it may consider necessary or desirable

to give effect tothe DB Plan and to establish other employees

share schemes for the benefit of employees outside the UK

-based on the DB Plan but modified to take account of local

tax exchange control or securities laws in overseas territories

provided that any shares made available under any such

further schemes are treated as counting against the limits on

individual or overall paiticipation in the DB Plan
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Special Resolutions

To consider and if thought fit to pass Resolutions 12 13 14 and

15 as special resolutions of the Company

Resolution 12

That

subject to the passing of Resolution above the directors

of the Company be and are hereby empowered pursuant to

section 570 of the Companies Act 2006 the Act to allot

equity securities within the meaning of section 5601 of the

Act for cash pursuant to the allotment authority conferred by

Resolution above as if section 5611 of the Act or any pre

emption provisions contained in the Companys articles of

association the Articles did not apply to any such allotment

provided that this power shall be limited to

any allotment of equity securities where such securities have

been offered whether by way of rights issue open offer or

otherwise to holders of equity securities in proportion as

nearly as practicable to their then holdings

of such securities but subject to such exclusions or other

arrangements as the directors of the Company may deem

necessary or desirable in relation to fractional entitlements or

legal or practical problems arising in or pursuant to the laws

of any territory or the requirements of any regulatory body or

stock exchange in any territory or otherwise howsoever and

ii any other allotment otherwise than pursuant to sub

paragraph of this Resolution of equity securities up to

an aggregate nominal amount of 5762 and

the power given in this Resolution

shall be in substitution for all other authorities pursuant to

section 570 of the Act or its predecessor section 95 of the

Companies Act 1985 as amended to the extent not utilised

at the date this Resolution is passed and

ii unless renewed revoked or varied in accordance with the

Act shall expire on the earlier of 15 months after the passing

of this Resolution or the conclusion of the Annual General

Meeting of the Company to be held in 2011 save that the

Company may before such expiry make an offer or

agreement which would or might require the allotment of

shares in the Company or the grant of rights to subscribe for

or to convert any security into shares in the Company after

such expiry

Resolution 13

That the Company is generally and unconditionally hereby

authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the Companies Act

2006 the Act to make market purchases within the meaning of

section 693 of the Act of any of its ordinary shares of 0.1 pence

each ordinary shares on such terms and in such manner as the

directors of the Company may from time to time determine

provided that

the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to

be purchased is 11524508 representing approximately 10%

of the issued share capital of the Company as at March 2010

ii the minimum price which may be paid for any such ordinary

share is 0.1 pence exclusive of the expenses of purchase

if any payable by the Company

iii the maximum price exclusive of the expenses of purchase

if any payable by the Company which may be paid for any

such ordinary share under this authority is an amount equal to

105% of the average of the middle market closing quotations

for an ordinary share as derived from the Daily Official List of

the London Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the day of purchase and

iv unless previously renewed revoked or varied the authority

hereby conferred shall expire on the earlier of 15 months after

the passing of this Resolution or at the conclusion of the

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2011

but contract for purchase may be made before such expiry

which will or may be executed wholly or partly thereafter and

purchase of ordinary shares may be made in pursuant of any

such contract

Resoution 14

That the Companys Articles of Association be hereby

amended by deleting all the provisions of the Companys

Memorandum of Association which by virtue of section 28 of

the Companies Act 2006 are to be treated as provisions of the

Companys Articles of Association and

that the Articles of Association produced to the meeting and

initialled by the chairman of the meeting for the purpose of

identification be adopted as the Articles of Association of the

Company in substitution for and to the exclusion of the

existing Articles of Association

Resoution 15

That general meeting other than an annual general meeting may

be called on not less than 14 clear days notice provided that this

authority shall expire at the end of the next annual general meeting

of the Company to be held in 2011

By order of the Board

rn

Jill Goldsmith

Company Secretary

Registered Office

Westfield House

26 Westfield Road

Edinburgh EH11 2QB

Registered in Scotland

No SC089839

March 2010
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Notes

Entitlement to attend and vote

Only those shareholders registered in the register of members of the

Company as at 6.00 p.m on 18 May 2010 or if this meeting is adjourned

at 6.00 p.m on the day two days prior to the adjourned meeting

excluding any part of day that is not working day shall be entitled to

attend and vote at this Annual General Meeting in respect of the number

of shares registered in their name at that time Changes to entries on the

relevant register of securities after 6.00 p.m on 18 May 2010 or if this

meeting is adjourned at 6.00 p.m on the day two days prior to the

adjourned meeting excluding any part of day that is not working

day shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to

attend or vote at this Annual General Meeting

Appointment of proxies

AJiy shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at this Annual General

Meeting at the time set out in note above is entitled to appoint one or

more proxies to attend speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting on

his or her behalf

form of proxy is attached which to be effective must be completed

and signed and received by the Companys registrars Equiniti Limited

Aspect House Spencer Road Lancing BN99 6ZR not later than

10.00 am on 18 May2010

proxy may only be appointed using the procedures set out in these

notes and the notes to the proxy form

In the case of shareholder which is company the proxy form must be

executed under its common seal or signed on its behalf by an officer of

the company or an attorney for the company

Any power of attorney or other authority
under which the proxy form is

signed or duly certified copy of such power or authority must be

included with the proxy form

proxy does not need to be shareholder of the Company but must

attend the Annual General Meeting to represent you Details of how to

appoint the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting or another person

as proxy using the proxy form are set out in the notes to the proxy

form If you wish your proxy to speak on your behalf at the Annual

General Meeting you will need to appoint your own choice of proxy not

the Chairman and give your instructions directly to them

Shareholders may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is

appointed to exercise rights attached to different shares You may not

appoint more than one proxy to exercise rights attached to any one

share To appoint more than one proxy you will need to complete

separate proxy form in relation to each appointment To request

additional proxy forms please contact the Companys Registrars Equiniti

Limited Aspect House Spencer Road Lancing BN99 6ZR You will

need to state clearly on each proxy form the number of shares in relation

to which the proxy is appointed failure to specify the number of shares

proxy appointment relates to or specifying number of shares in

excess of those held by the shareholder will result in the proxy

appointment being invalid

If you are not shareholder of the Company but you have been

nominated by shareholder of the Company to enjoy information rights

you do not have right to appoint any proxies under the procedures set

out in this Appointment of proxies section Please read the section

Nominated persons below

vote withheld is not vote in law which means that the vote will not be

counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution If no

voting
indication is given your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at

his or her discretion Your proxy will vote or abstain from voting as he or

she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which is put before the

Annual General Meeting

Appointment of proxies through CREST

CREST members who wish to appoint proxy or proxies through the

CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the Annual

General Meeting to be held on 20 May 2010 and any adjournments

thereof by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual CREST

Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members and those

CREST members who have appointed voting service providers

should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service providers who

will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf

In order for proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST

service to be valid the appropriate CREST message CREST Proxy

Instruction must be properly authenticated in accordance with

Euroclear UK Ireland Limiteds EUI specifications and must contain

the information required for such instructions as described in the CREST

Manual www.suroclear.com/CREST The message regardless of

whether it constitutes the appointment of proxy or to an amendment to

the instruction given to previously appointed proxy must in order to be

valid be transmitted so as to be received by the issuers agent ID RA19

by the latest times for receipt of proxy appointments specified in the

notice of meeting For this purpose the time of receipt will be taken to be

the time as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the

CREST Applications Host from which the issuers agent is able to retrieve

the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST

After this time any change of instructions to proxies appointed through

CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and where applicable their CREST sponsors or voting

service providers should note that EUI does not make available special

procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system

timings and limitations will therefore appiy in relation to the input of

CREST Proxy lnstructi6ns It is the responsibility of the CREST member

concerned to take or if the CREST member is CREST personal

member or sponsored member or has appointed voting service

providers to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service

providers takes such action as shall be necessary to ensure that

message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular

time In this connection CREST members and where applicable their

CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred in particular

to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations

of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invalid CREST Proxy Instruction in the

circumstances set out in Regulation 355a of the Uncertificated

Securities Regulations 2001

Appointment of proxy by joint shareholders

10 In the case of joint holders where more than one of the joint holders

purports to appoint proxy only the appointment submitted by the most

senior holder will be accepted Seniority is determined by the order in

which the names of the joint holders appear in the Companys register

of shareholders in respect of the joint holding the first-named being the

most senior
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Changing proxy instructions

11 To change proxy instructions new proxy appointment form should be

submitted using the methods set out above Note that the cut-off time

for receipt of proxy appointments see above also apply in relation to

amended instructions any amended proxy appointment received after

the relevant cut-off time will be disregarded

Where proxy has been appointed using the proxy form and instructions

are to be changed by using another proxy form please contact Equiniti

Limited Aspect House Spencer Road Lancing BN99 6ZR If more than

one valid proxy appointment is submitted the appointment received last

before the latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence

Termination of proxy appointments

12 In order to revoke proxy instruction you will need to inform the

Company by sending signed hard copy notice clearly stating your

intention to revoke your proxy appointment to Equiniti Limited Aspect

House Spencer Road Lancing BN99 6ZR In the case of shareholder

which company the revocation notice must be executed under its

common seal or signed on its behalf by an officer of the company or an

attorney for the company Any power of attorney or any other authority

under which the revocation notice is signed or duly certified copy of

such power or authority must be included with the revocation notice

The revocation notice must be received by Equiniti Limited no later than

7.00 a.m on 20 May 2010

Appointment of proxy does not preclude you from attending the Annual

General Meeting and voting in person If you have appointed proxy and

attend the Annual General Meeting in person your proxy appointment

will automatically be terminated

Appointment of corporate representatives

13 Any corporation which is shareholder can appoint one or more

corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its

powers as shareholder provided that they do not do so in relation to the

same shares

Issued shares and total voting rights

14 As at 6.00 p.m on March 2010 the Companys issued share capital

comprised 115245080 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each Each ordinary

share carries the right to one vote at general meeting of the Company

and therefore the total number of voting rights in the Company as at

6.00 p.m on March 2010 is 115245080

Nominated persons

15 If you are person who has been nominated under section 146 of the

Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information rights Nominated Person

You may have right under an agreement between you and the

shareholder of the Company who has nominated you to have

information rights Relevant Shareholder to be appointed or to have

someone else appointed as proxy for the Annual General Meeting

If you either do not have such right or if you have such right but do

not wish to exercise it you may have right under an agreement

between you and the Relevant Shareholder to give
instructions to the

Relevant Shareholder as to the exercise of
voting rights

Your main point of contact in terms of your investment in the Company

remains the Relevant Shareholder or perhaps your custodian or

broker and you should continue to contact them and not the Company

regarding any changes or queries relating to your personal details and

your interest in the Company including any administrative matters

The only exception to this is where the Company expressly requests

response from you

Communication

16 Except as provided above shareholders who have general queries about

the Annual General Meeting should use the following means of

communication no other methods of communication will be accepted

calling the Company on 440131 272 7000 or

by email to ipfo@wolfsonmicro.com

You may not use any electronic address provided either

in this Notice of Annual General Meeting or

any related documents

to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those

expressly stated

Documents on display

17 The following documents are available for inspection on any day except

Saturday Sunday and Bank Holidays up to and including the date of this

Annual General Meeting during usual business hours at the registered

office of the Company and at the offices of Shepherd and Wedderburn

LLP Condor House 10 St Pauls Churchyard London EC4M 8AL and

will on the date of this Annual General Meeting be available for

inspection at the meeting from 9.45 a.m until the conclusion of the

meeting

the register of interests of directors and their family interests in the

ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each of the Company

ii copies of the executive directors service agreements and non-

executive directors letters of appointment

iii copy of the rules of The Wolfson Microelectronics Approved SAVE

Scheme

iv copy of the rules of The Wolfson Microelectronics 2009 Staff Share

Award Plan as amended by directors resolution

copy of the rules of The Wolfson Microelectronics 2010 Senior

Executive Deferred Bonus Plan

vi the Companys current Memorandum and Articles of Association and

vii copy of the proposed new Articles of Association of the Company

and copy of the existing Articles of Association marked to show the

changes being proposed in Resolution 14

Website giving information reJarcing the Meeting

18 In accordance with section 311 of the Companies Act 2006 the

contents of this Notice of Annual General Meeting details of the total

number of shares in respect of which members are entitled to exercise

voting rights at the Meeting and if applicable any members statements

members resolutions or members matters of business received by the

Company after the date of this Notice of Annual General Meeting will be

available on the Companys website at www.wolfsonmicro.com

Questions at the Meeting

19 Pursuant to section 31 9A of the Companies Act 2006 the Company

must cause to be answered at the Meeting any question relating to the

business being dealt with at the Meeting which is put by member

attending the Meeting except in certain circumstances including if it

is undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the

Meeting that the question be answered or if to do so would involve

the disclosure of confidential information
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Explanatory Notes

Shareholders resolutions and agenda items

20 Under section 338 and section 338A of the Companies Act 2006

shareholders meeting the threshold requirements in those sections have

the right to require the Company to give to shareholders of the

Company entitled to receive notice of the Meeting notice of resolution

which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the

Meeting and/or ii to include in the business to be dealt with at the

Meeting any matter other than proposed resolution which may be

properly included in the business resolution may properly be moved or

matter may properly be included in the business unless in the case

of resolution only it would if passed be ineffective whether by reason

of inconsistency with any enactment or the Companys constitution or

otherwise it is defamatory of any person or it is frivolous or

vexatious Such request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form

must identify
the resolution of which notice is to be given or the matter to

be included in the business must be authorised by the person or

persons making it must be received by the Company not later than

April 2010 being the date clear weeks before the Meeting and in the

case of matter to be included in the business only must be

accompanied by statement setting out the grounds for the request

Website publication of audit concerns

21 Under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 shareholders meeting

the threshold requirements set out in that section have the right to require

the Company to publish on website statement setting out any matter

relating to the audit of the Companys Accounts including the

Auditors report
and the conduct of the audit that are to be laid before

the Meeting or ii any circumstance connected with an Auditor of the

Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which

annual accounts and reports were laid in accordance with section 437

of the Companies Act 2006 The Company may not require the

shareholders requesting any such website publication to pay its

expenses in complying with sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act

2006 Where the Company is required to place statement on website

under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 it must forward the

statement to the Companys Auditor not later than the time when it

makes the statement available on the website The business which may

be dealt with at the Meeting includes any statement that the Company

has been required under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to

publish on website

Recommendation

The directors of the Company the Directors consider that the proposals

set before the meeting are in the best interests of the Company and its

shareholders in general and are most likely to promote the success of the

Company for the benefit of its shareholders as whole The Directors

therefore unanimously recommend that you vote in favour of all of the

resolutions set out above as they intend to do in respect of their own

beneficial holdings

Annual Report and Accounts Resolution

The Directors are required by the Companies Act 2006 to lay before the

Company at this Annual General Meeting the accounts of the Company for

the financial year ended January 2010 the report of the Directors the

Directors remuneration report and the report of the Companys auditors on

those accounts and that part of the Directors remuneration report which

is required to be audited

Remuneration Report Resolution

Listed companies must prepare Directors remuneration report and put

resolution to the shareholders ill general meeting Accordingly

Shareholders are invited to approve the Directors remuneration report which

is set out in full on-pages 34 to 47 of the Annual Report and Accounts 2009

The Directors remuneration report includes details of the remuneration paid

to Directors and the Companys remuneration policy for its Directors

In accordance with the Regulations the vote of this resolution is advisory and

no Directors remuneration is conditional upon the passing of this resolution

Re-election of Directors Resolutions and

The Articles require certain Directors to retire by rotation from time to time

At the Annual General Meeting in 2009 Mr Barry Michael Rose retired and

was re-elected as Director and Glenn Collinson and Joseph Michael Hickey

were elected as Directors

In accordance with the Articles Mr Mark Cubitt Mr Ross King Graham and

Dr Alastair David Milne now retire and each makes himself eligible for re-election

The biography and the age of each of the above-mentioned Directors are

contained on pages 20 and 21 of the Companys Annual Report and

Accounts 2009 The Chairman has confirmed that following formal

performance evaluation both Mr Grahams and Dr Milnes performance

continues to be effective and each demonstrates commitment to their roles

including commitment of time for Board and in the case of Mr Graham

Committee meetings and their other duties

Due to the valuable contribution made by all of these individuals to date and

which the Company expects them to make in the future the Board

recommends the re-election of each of these Directors

Re-appointment of Auditors Resolution

The Company is required to appoint auditors at each general meeting at

which accounts are laid before the Company to hold office until the next

such meeting Resolution proposes the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc

as auditors of the Company

Remuneration of Auditors Resolution

Resolution authorises the Directors to determine the auditors remuneration

for the ensuing year

Authority to allot ordinary shares Resolution

Under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 Directors require

shareholders authority for allotment of shares Shareholders last granted

such general authority to the Directors at the Annual General Meeting in

2009 Such authority will expire at the end of this Annual General Meeting

and Resolution seeks to renew it although the Directors have no current

plans to utilise the authority

Resolution will be proposed as an ordinary resolution to authorise the

Directors to allot generally relevant securities up to maximum nominal value

of 38415 which represents approximately 33.3% of the issued share capital

of the Company as at March 2010 This authority will expire on the earlier of

15 months after the passing of the resolution or on the conclusion of the

Annual General Meeting of the Compny to be held in 2011
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Approval and adoption of The Wolfson Microelectronics

Approved SAVE Scheme the SAVE Plan Resolution

This resolution concerns the Companys proposal to introduce new UK HM

Revenue Customs approved savings-related share option plan Resolution

sets out the full resolution to approve the SAYE Plan Resolution will be

proposed as an ordinary resolution

summary of the main provisions of the SAYE Plan is set out in Appendix

to this Notice

Approval of The Wolfson Microelectronics 2009 Staff Share

Award Plan Resolution 10

The directors seek shareholder approval of the Wolfson Microelectronics

2009 Staff Share Award Plan the SSAP an employees share scheme

established by the directors in 2009 formerly called The Wolfson

Microelectronics 2009 Staff Performance Share Plan The SSAP provides

for annual discretionary awards in the form of deferred share awards to be

made each year to selected employees in the form of either contingent share

awards or nil-cost options over shares with market value at the date of

award of up to 100 per cent of an employees rate of annual salary Awards

are made in recognition of individual performance in the year preceding that

in which the award is made Such awards vest in three equal tranches at

each of the first three anniversaries of the date of award subject to the award

holder remaining employed within the Group The principal terms of

the SSAP are summarised in Appendix

Awards under the SSAP are made to employees who are neither directors

of the Company nor senior managers and until now have been made only on

the basis that they are satisfied by the transfer by the Plan Trustee of shares

purchased in the market with funds contributed by the Group It is intended

that awards under the SSAP will be made only to employees other than

directors and members of the senior management team The approval of

shareholders is required to ensure compliance with the requirements of US

federal and state securities laws and in accordance with the
Listing Rules

to allow awards to be made to US employees and be satisfied by the issue

of new shares subject to the limit of per cent on the issue of new shares

for executive share incentive schemes in any 10-year period

Approval and adoption of The Wolfson Microelectronics 2010

Senior Executive Deferred Bonus Plan the DB Plan

Resolution 11

The directors seek shareholder approval of the Wolfson Microelectronics

2010 Senior Executive Deferred Bonus Plan the DB Plan This is new

plan which provides for annual bonuses of directors and other senior

executives to be paid if the eligible employee so elects to participate
in the

DB Plan partly in shares in the Company deferred for three years but with

the prospect of an awardholder receiving additional matching shares after

three years if he or she remains employed within the Group and corporate

performance targets are met The maximum number of matching shares

which may be so awarded cannot in any event exceed twice the number of

deferred shares awarded in lieu of bonus however in relation to any awards

made under the DB Plan in 2010 it is intended that the ratio of Matching

Shares will be limited to for Awards may be satisfied by the issue of new

shares subject to the overall limits on the issue of new shares mentioned at

Note in Appendix to this Notice The principal terms of the DB Plan are

summarised in Appendix The performance targets proposed to be set by

the Remuneration Committee in relation to Matching Shares to be awarded

under the DB Plan in 2010 are described in the Remuneration Report on

page 36 of the Annual Report and Accounts 2009

Authority to allot ordinary shares for cash on non pre-emptive

basis Resolution 12

Under section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 if the Directors wish to allot

any of the unissued ordinary shares for cash they must in the first instance

offer them to existing ordinary shareholders in proportion to their ordinary

shareholding There may be occasions however when the Directors will

need the flexibility to finance business opportunities by the issue of ordinary

shares without pre-emptive offer to existing ordinary shareholders

Shareholders last granted authority to the Directors to disapply pre-emptive

rights at the Annual General Meeting in 2009 Such authority will expire at the

end of this Annual General Meeting and Resolution 12 seeks to renew it

Resolution 12 which is proposed as special resolution imposes limit of

approximately 5% of the issued ordinary share capital as at March 2010

on the issue of new shares and the sale of any treasury shares without first

offering them to existing ordinary shareholders Resolution 12 also seeks

disapplication of the pre-emption rights on rights issue or other pre-emptive

type issue so as to allow the Directors to make exclusions or such other

arrangements as may be appropriate to resolve legal or practical problems

which for example might arise with overseas ordinary shareholders

This authority will expire on the earlier of 15 months after the passing of

the resolution or on the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the

Company to be held in 2011

The Directors have no present intention of using the authority proposed to

be granted by Resolution 12

As at March 2010 the Company did not hold any shares in treasury being

the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document

Authority to purchase Companys owi shares Resolution

In certain circumstances subject to the provisions of the Companies Act

2006 it may be advantageous for the Company to purchase its own shares

and Resolution 13 seeks authority from shareholders to do so up to limit

of approximately 10% of the issued share capital At the Annual General

Meeting in 2009 shareholders granted the Directors authority for the

Company to purchase its own shares up to limit of approximately 10%

of the issued share capital of the Company The current authority will expire

at the end of this Annual General Meeting Resolution 13 seeks to renew

this authority to give the Company flexibility to purchase its own shares

The Directors intend to exercise this power only when in the light of market

conditions prevailing at the time they believe that the effect of such

purchases will be to increase earnings per share and is in the best interest of

shareholders generally Other investment opportunities appropriate gearing

levels and the overall position of the Company will be taken into account

before deciding upon this course of action

Any shares repurchased may either be cancelled or held by the Company as

treasury shares If any shares were held by the Company as treasury shares

no voting rights
would be exercised or dividends paid in respect of any

treasury shares

The authority sought by Resolution 13 will expire on the earlier of 15 months

after the passing of the Resolution or the conclusion of the Annual General

Meeting of the Company held in 2011 The Directors intend to seek renewal

of this power at subsequent Annual General Meetings

As at March 2010 there were options over 5308284 ordinary shares

representing 4.61 of the then issued share capital of the Company If the

authority sought by Resolution 13 were exercised in full and all shares

purchased by the Company were cancelled these options would represent

5.12% of the issued share capital of the Company as at March 2010

The Company does not hold any shares in treasury as at March 2010
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Adoption of new articles of association Resolution 14

It is proposed in Resolution 14 to adopt new articles of association

the New Articles in order to update the Companys current articles of

association the Current Articles primarily to take account of the coming

into force of the Companies Shareholders Rights Regulations 2009 the

Shareholders Rights Regulations and the implementation on October

2009 of the last parts of the Companies Act 2006

The principal changes introduced in the New Articles are summarised in

Appendix to this Notice Other changes which are of minor technical

or clarifying nature and also some more minor changes which merely reflect

changes made by the Companies Act 2006 or the Shareholders Rights

Regulations or conform the language of the New Articles with that used

in the model articles for public companies produced by the Department

for Business Innovation and Skills have not been noted in Appendix

The New Articles showing all the changes to the Current Articles are available

for inspection as noted on page of this document

Notice of genera meetings Resolution 15

Changes made to the Companies Act 2006 by the Shareholders Rights

Regulations increase the notice period required for general meetings of the

Company to 21 days unless shareholders approve shorter notice period

which cannot however be less than 14 clear days Annual general meetings

will continue to be held on at least 21 clear days notice

Before the coming into force of the Shareholders Rights Regulations on

August 2009 the Company was able to call general meetings other than

an annual general meeting on 14 clear days notice without obtaining such

shareholder approval In order to preserve this ability Resolution 15 seeks

such approval The approval will be effective until the Companys next annual

general meeting when it is intended that similar resolution will be

proposed The flexibility offered by this resolution will be used where taking

into account all the circumstances the directors consider this appropriate

in relation to the business and merited by the time sensitive nature of the

business to be considered at the meeting and in the interests of the

Company and shareholders as whole

Summary of the principal provisions of

The Wolfson Microelectronics Approved SAYE

Scheme the SAYE Plan

Introduction

The aim of the Remuneration Committee of the directors of the Company

the Remuneration Committee is to develop and implement remuneration

policies which provide an appropriate motivational framework and help to

align the interests of the executive directors and employees with the performance

of the business and the interests of shareholders As part of this exercise

the Remuneration Committee has decided that the introduction of an

all-employee savings related share option plan is key to supporting the

business strategy in the future The SAYE Plan will have duration of 10 years

The Company is now seeking the necessary approval of the Companys

shareholders at the AGM and wishes to inform shareholders of the terms of

the SAYE Plan

The SAYE Plan will provide for the grant of options linked to savings

contracts by the Company or the Trustee as appropriate to subscribe for or

to purchase Ordinary Shares in the Company Shares The SAYE Plan has

been submitted for approval to HM Revenue Customs under Schedule of

the Income Tax Earnings and Pensions Act 2003 ITEPA HM Revenue

Customs has informally indicated that the SAYE Plan rules are in form

capable of HM Revenue Customs approval The board of directors retains

the
right to make such changes to the SAYE Plan as may be necessary or

expedient to obtain such approval

The SAYE Plan will be administered by the Remuneration Committee

The key terms of the SAYE Plan are set out below

Participation

All UK resident and ordinarily resident employees and full time executive

directors i.e directors who spend at least 25 hours per week in the

performance of their duties of the Company and its subsidiaries who have

completed specified qualifying period of employment not exceeding

years will be eligible to participate in the SAYE Plan

The Remuneration Committee has the discretion to allow other employees

to participate

Grant of options

Invitations to apply for the grant of an option

Employees may at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee be invited

to apply for or year options It is intended that initial invitations will invite

the employees to apply for year options

Participants will not have to make payment for the grant of an option

Grant of an option linked to savings contract

All options will be granted on condition that employees enter into linked

savings contract with savings provider nominated by the Remuneration

Committee and approved by HM Revenue Customs Under such contracts

employees must save between and 250 per month or such other limit

as is introduced under such contracts from time to time Such sums will be

deducted from the participants net pay

Timing of option grants

The Remuneration Committee may procure that invitations are issued to apply

for options under the SAYE Plan during the period beginning with the date of

adoption of the SAVE Plan by the Company and ending 42 days after the

date on which the SAYE Plan is formally approved by HM Revenue Customs
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Thereafter the Remuneration Committee may issue invitations to apply for

Options within period of 42 days commencing on

the dealing day following
the announcement of the Companys results

for any period or

the dealing day on which any dealing restriction which prohibits the

making of invitations lifts or

the occurrence of exceptional circumstances which the Remuneration

Committee considers justify making an invitation to apply for options

Exercise price and the number of shares subject to an option

The exercise price will be set at not less than the higher of 80% of the

market value of share and in the case of an option to subscribe the

nominal value of an ordinary share

If the Remuneration Committee so determines the exercise price may be

determined by reference to the average middle market quotation of an

ordinary share in the Company for the three dealing days following the

announcement of the Companys results for any period Where such

averaging is used the invitation period will commence on the fourth dealing

day following
the announcement of the Companys results

The number of Shares subject to an option will be the maximum number of

Shares which can be acquired at the exercise price based on the aggregate

of contributions to the savings contract and the bonus earned

if any on maturity of the savings contract

Both the number of Shares subject to an option and the exercise price may

be adjusted by the Remuneration Committee with the agreement of HM

Revenue Customs to take account of any capitalisation rights issue

consolidation sub-division of shares or reduction of share capital or other

variation of the Companys share capital

In the event that applications for options exceed the number of Shares

available the Remuneration Committee shall scale down the applications

Options will be granted within 30 days of the first dealing day by reference

to which the market value of the Shares is determined for the purposes of

the SAYE Plan or of the date of invitation If
scaling

down is necessary

the period shall be extended to 42 days

Exercise of Options

There will be no performance conditions attaching to options

The proceeds of the savings contract may be used to fund the exercise of

Options Normally options may be exercised no earlier than the date on

which bonus is payable under the relevant savings contract the Bonus

Date and no later than six months after the Bonus Date Options may be

exercised prior to the Bonus Date for limited period upon the occurrence

of certain other events set out in the rules of the SAYE Plan These include

where the participant reaches the specified age which has been set at 60

years of age or ceases to be an employee due to injury or disability

redundancy or retirement or his employment or employing company being

transferred outside the Group

If more than three years after the date of grant participant ceases

employment for shy other reason he will have the opportunity toexercise

his options within six months of the date of cessation of employment

If participant dies before the maturity
of the related savings contract

his option may be exercised by his peronal representatives within 12

months of his death

Lapse of Options

Generally any option not exercised by the day falling six months after

the date on which it first becomes capable of exercise will lapse

If within three years following the date of grant participant ceases

employment for any reason other than injury or disability redundancy

retirement or his employment or employing company being transferred

outside the Group the option will lapse on the date of cessation of

employment with the Group

If participant gives notice that he intends to stop paying monthly

contributions under the savings related contract or is deemed to have

given such notice or makes an application for the return of his accumulated

savings the participants option will lapse

participants option will also lapse if he is adjudicated bankrupt

To the extent that an option is not exercised by participants personal

representatives within 12 months of his death the option will lapse

Takeover reconstruction and winding-up

Options will also become exercisable on change of control reconstruction

or voluntary winding up of the Company on the date participants

employing company ceases to be under the control of the Company or on

sale or transfer of business or part of business which results in the

participants employment no longer being with group company

On change of control or reconstruction of the Company an Option may

with consent of the company acquiring control be released in consideration

of the grant of equivalent rights over shares of the acquiring company or

company associated with it

Options which are not exercised within the prescribed time periods following

such events will normally lapse

Source of shares

The SAYE Plan allows options to be granted by the Company over unissued

Shares or treasury shares or by the trustee of the Companys employees

share trust over Shares purchased on the market

Limitations on Grant

In any 10 year period the aggregate number of Shares which may be issued

or are issuable or treasury shares which remain re-issuable under the SAYE

Plan and any other employees share scheme established by the Company

may not exceed 10 per cent of the issued ordinary share capital
of the

Company For these purposes Shares in respect of which options were

granted before 21 October 2003 when Shares in the Company were

admitted to the Official List
shall be left out of account

No options may be granted under the SAYE Plan which would cause this

limit to be breached
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Administration and Amendment

The Remuneration Committee will administer the SAVE Plan and may

delegate such administration to other persons as it sees fit The savings

provider will administer the operation of the savings contract The Board of

Directors of the Company may amend the rules of the SAVE Plan in any

respect provided that

no alteration or addition to the advantage of any existing participant or

person eligible to participate in the SAYE Plan may be made to the

provisions of the SAYE Plan concerning

the class of persons who may benefit under the Plan

ii the limit on the number of Shares available under the Plan or

iii the adjustment of options to take account of any capitalisation issue

rights issue or open offer sub-division or consolidation of Shares or

reduction of capital or any other variation of capital

without prior approval of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting

prior approval of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting is

not required in respect of an alteration which is minor amendment to

benefit the administration of the SAVE Plan to take account of any

changes in legislation or to obtain or maintain favourable or avoid

unfavourable tax exchange control or regulatory treatment of the

Company subsidiary or any participant

after formal approval and whilst the SAYE Plan is approved and is

intended to remain approved by HM Revenue Customs no

amendment to any key feature shall have effect until approved by HM

Revenue Customs key feature is feature which is necessary to

comply with Schedule to ITEPA and the relevant legislation and

where change would have material adverse effect on participants no

such change may be effective unless amajority of the participants so

affected agrees in writing to the change

The Remuneration Committee may at any time without further formality

establish other employees share schemes to apply in overseas territories

governed by rules similar to the SAVE Plan but modified to take account of

local rules regulations and practice provided that any shares issued or

issuable under such plans shall be treated as counting against any limits on

overall participation in the SAVE Plan

Voting Dividend Transfer and other rights

Until Options are exercised participants have no voting or other rights in

respect of the Shares under their Option Shares issued or transferred under

the SAVE Plan shall rank pan passu in all respects with Shares already in

issue except they will not rank for any dividend or other distribution paid or

made by reference to record date prior to the date of allotment or transfer

Application will be made to The London Stock Exchange Plc for the

admission of such Shares to the Official List

Options are not transferable or assignable Any benefits provided under the

SAVE Plan will not be pensionable

Termination

The SAVE Plan may be terminated at any time by resolution of the

Remuneration Committee and shall in any event terminate on the tenth

anniversary of the date on which the SAYE Plan is approved by the Company

in general meeting

Termination shall not affect outstanding rights of participants

Summary of the principal provisions of

The Wolfson Microelectronics 2009 Staff Share

Award Plan the SSAP

Deferred Share Awards

Under the SSAP awards may be made each year to selected employees

on discretionary basis in the form of either contingent awards of free

Shares an Award or nil-cost options to acquire Shares In either case

Awards vest in three equal tranches upon the first three anniversaries of

the award date Contingent Award Shares are issued by the Company or

transferred by the Plan Trustee as applicable as soon as practicable

after they have become vested nil-cost option may be exercised in

respect of vested Shares at any time up to the tenth anniversary of the

Award date Awards are made on the basis of individual performance

and once made are contingent only upon continuing employment within

the Group When an Award is made the Directors may provide that when

the Award Shares are acquired by the employee he or she will then be

awarded additional Shares acquired by the reinvestment of dividends

paid on the Award Shares since the date of award Awards may normally

only be made in period of 42 days beginning with the fourth dealing

day following an announcement of the Companys results No Award may

be made after 16 February 2016

Individual limit on Awards

There is limit of 100 per cent of an employees salary on the market

value of Shares in respect of which Awards may be made to an employee

in any year except that if an employee is required to bear the cost of

employers NIC5 on the gain on exercise of Nil-Cost Option the

number of Award Shares may be increased to compensate for that cost

Limit on the issue of new shares

The Company may issue new shares for the purpose of satisfying

Awards but the number of Shares which may on any day be so issued

when added to Shares previously issued for the purposes of this Plan

and the number of Shares issued or in respect to which rights to

subscribe for Shares have previously been granted and which if not

exercised have not lapsed in the period of 10 years ending on that day

for the purposes of any other
discretionary

executive share incentive

schame shall not exceed per cent of the issued share capital of the

Company on that day In addition the number of Shares so issued or

in respect of which rights to subscribe for Shares have previously been

granted and which if not exercised have not lapsed in the period of

10 years ending on that day for the purposes of this and any other

employees share scheme shall not exceed 10 per cent of the issued

share capital of the Company on that day For these purposes Shares

in respect of which options were granted before 21 October 2003

when Shares in the Company were admitted to the Official LiŁt shall

be left out of account

Leaving employment

If an Awardholder leaves after the third anniversary of the date of award

then vested Shares will be transferred to him and any vested Nil-Cost

Option must be exercised within 12 months of leaving If after the first

anniversary of the Award date an Award holder leaves the Group by

reason of injury ill-health disability death retirement or the business or

subsidiary in which he works being sold outside the Group then he is

entitled to vested Award Shares and proportion corresponding to such

proportion of the 3-year period as fell before the leaving date or such

greater proportion as the Directors may specify of the unvested Award

Shares If an Awardholder leaves the Group for any other reason then

unless the Directors otherwise determine he or she forfeits any

entitlement to Award Shares
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Corporate event

Awards may vest early in the event of demerger statutory

reconstruction or change of control takeover of the Company

Variation of share capital

In the event of capitalisation rights
issue or open offer sub-division

consolidation of Shares or reduction of capital or any other variation in

the share capital of the Company the Committee may make such

proportional adjustment as it considers appropriate to the number of

Shares in respect of which an Award subsists provided that in the case

of any variation other than sub-division consolidation or capitalisation

issue independent advisers have confirmed that the proposed

adjustment is fair and reasonable

Amendment of the SSAP

The Remuneration Committee may amend the SSAP However the

provisions relating to eligibility limitations on the making of awards and

the basis for determining participants entitlement to acquire Shares

and the adjustment of such entitlements in the event of capitalisation

issue rights issue or open offer sub-division or consolidation of Shares

or reduction of capital or any other variation of capital cannot be altered

to the advantage of participants without the prior approval of

shareholders of the Company in general meeting except for minor

amendments to benefit the administration of the SSAP to take account

of change in legislation or to obtain or maintain favourable tax exchange

control or regulatory treatment for participants
in the Plan or for any

member of the Group

Summary of the principal terms of The Wolfson

Microelectronics 2010 Seiioi Executive Deferred

Bonus Plan the DB Plan

Deferred Share Bonus Awards

Under the DB Plan part of an annual bonus to be paid to director of

the Company Director or other senior executive of member of the

Group may if the Directors or in the case of bonus for Director the

Remuneration Committee so determines and if the employee so

requests be taken in the form of Shares in the Company on either net

after tax or gross before tax basis Deferred Share Bonus Award

If the award is to be on net basis the net amount of such bonus after

deduction of tax is applied in the acquisition of Shares at their market

value by the trustee of the Companys employees share trust the Plan

Trustee to be held as bare trustee on behalf of the participant If the

award is to be on gross basis the employer company will pay the gross

amount to the Plan Trustee which will acquire Shares at their market

value for transfer to the participant
after years if he or she then remains

employed within the Group and has not then given or received notice of

termination of employment In this case income tax and NICs will be

charged on the value of the Shares when they are transferred Awards

may normally only be made within the period of 42 days following an

announcement of the Companys results Benefits under the DB Plan are

not pensionable No Award may be made after 20 May 2020

Matching Share Awards

When making Deferred Share Bonus Award the Directors or in the

case of director the Committee may determine that if or insofar as

pre-set targets relating to the performance of the Company over years

beginning with that in which the award is made are met and the

participant remains employed within the Group the Company will then

procure the transfer to the participant
of number of additional Shares

Matching Share Award The number of such additional Shares

Matching Shares shall not in any event exceed twice the number

of shares in respect of which the corresponding Deferred Share Bonus

Award is made or if it was made on net basis the number of Shares

in respect of which it would have been made if the gross amount had

been applied in the acquisition
of Shares In relation to Deferred Share

Bonus Awards made in 2010 it is intended that the ratio of Matching

Shares will be limited to for

Performance-linking of Matching Share Awards

The performance targets proposed to be set in relation to Matching

Share Awards to be made in 2010 are the same as those to be set in

relation to awards made in 2010 under the Companys Performance

Share Plan and are described in the Remuneration Report on page 36 of

the Annual Report and Accounts 2009 Notwithstanding the achievement

in part or in full of the performance target the Committee may reduce the

number of Matching Shares to be transferred if it is of the opinion that the

underlying financial performance of the Company is such that it would be

contrary to the best interests of the Company and its shareholders for

participant to acquire all of the vested Matching Award Shares Likewise

the Committee may determine that having regard to the underlying

financial performance of the Company some or an enhanced proportion

of the Matching Shares shall be transferred notwithstanding that the

performance target has not been met in full

Lapse of Matching Share Awards

If the participant requests the Plan Trustee to dispose of any of the

Deferred Bonus Award Shares the Matching Share Award will lapse

in respect of corresponding proportion of the Matching Shares
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Dividends on Award Shares Limit on the issue of new shares

The Directors may determine when an Award is made that when any

Shares are transferred the participant may be paid either an additional

cash sum not exceeding the amount of dividends paid on the Shares or

such additional Shares as could have been or were in fact acquired by

the reinvestment of dividends paid on those Shares since the date of

award

Leaving employment

If participant leaves the Group by reason of death injury ill-health

disability redundancy retirement or the business or subsidiary in which

he works being sold outside the Group then the Plan Trustee will release

all of the Shares in respect of which Deferred Share Bonus Award was

made to that participant on net basis and transfer all of the Shares in

respect of which Deferred Share Bonus Award was made on gross

basis In this event the Company will also either procure the transfer

after the end of the 3-year performance period of proportion

corresponding to such proportion of the 3-year performance period as

fell before the leaving date of such of the Matching Shares as then

become vested in consequence of the performance target being met or

if the Directors so determine as soon as practicable after the leaving

date procure the transfer to the participant of time-apportioned

proportion of such of the Matching Shares as are then deemed to

become vested having regard to the extent to which the Company is

likely to meet the performance target If participant leaves by reason of

misconduct then Deferred Share Bonus Award Shares shall be released

after the end of the deferral period and any entitlement to Matching

Shares will immediately lapse If participant leaves the Group for any

other reason then unless the Remuneration Committee otherwise

determines Shares in respect of which Deferred Share Bonus Award

was made shall be released after the end of the deferral period and

entitlement to any Matching Shares will immediately lapse

Corporate events

If there occurs demerger statutory reconstruction or change of control

takeover of the Company then the Remuneration Committee shall

determine to what extent any performance target shall then be deemed

to be satisfied having regard to the period which has elapsed since the

Award Date the actual performance of the Company and its progress

towards meeting any performance target The Company may or in the

case of change of control shall procure that all of the Deferred Share

Bonus Award Shares are then released or transferred and that the Plan

Trustee transfers to each participant time-apportioned proportion of

such of the Matching Shares as become vested in consequence of the

performance target then being deemed by the Remuneration Committee

to be met

The Company may issue new Shares for the purpose of
satisfying

awards made under the Plan but the number of Shares which may on any

day be so issued when added to shares previously issued for the

purposes of this Plan and the number of Shares issued or in respect to

which
rights to subscribe for Shares have previously been granted and

which if not exercised have not lapsed in the period of 10 years ending

on that day for the purposes of any other discretionary executive share

incentive scheme shall not exceed per cent of the issued share capital

of the Company on that day In addition the number of Shares so issued

or in respect of which
rights to subscribe for Shares have previously been

granted and which if not exercised have not lapsed in the period of

10 years ending on that day for the purposes of this and any other

employees share scheme shall not exceed 10 per cent of the issued

share capital of the Company on that day For these purposes Shares

in respect of which options were granted before 21 October 2003 when

Shares in the Company were admitted to the Official List shall be left out

of account

Variation of share capital

In the event of capitalisation rights issue or open offer sub-division

consolidation of shares or reduction of capital or any other variation in

the share capital of the Company the Remuneration Committee may

make such adjustment as it considers appropriate to the number of

Shares in respect of which Matching Share Award subsists provided

that in the case of any variation other than sub-division consolidation

or capitalisation issue independent advisers have confirmed that the

proposed adjustment is fair and reasonable

Amendment of the DB Plan

10 The Remuneration Committee may amend the DB Plan However the

provisions relating to eligibility
limitations on the making of awards and

the basis for determining participants entitlement to acquire Shares

cash or other benefits and the adjustment of such entitlements in the

event of capitalisation issue rights issue or open offer sub-division or

consolidation of Shares or reduction of capital or any other variation of

capital cannot be altered to the advantage of participants without the

prior approval of shareholders in general meeting except for minor

amendments to benefit the administration of the DB Plan to take

account of change in legislation or to obtain or maintain favourable tax

exchange control or regulatory treatment for participants in the Plan

or for any member of the Group

These summaries in Appendices and do not form part of the

rules of the SAVE Plan the SSAP or the DB Plan and should not be taken

as affecting the interpretation of their detailed terms and conditions

The directors of the Company reserve the right up to the time of the

Annual General Meeting to make such amendments and additions to the

rules of the SAYE Plan the SSAP and the DB Plan as may be necessary

to take account of comments of the UK Listing Authority and otherwise

provided that such amendments do not conflict in any material respect

with these summaries
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Explanatory notes of principal changes to the

Companys Articles of Association

The Companys objects

The provisions regulating the operations of the Company are currently set

out in the Companys memorandum and articles of association the Current

Articles The Current Articles contain among other things the objects

clause in the memorandum which sets out the scope of the activities the

Company is authorised to undertake This is drafted to give wide scope

The Companies Act 2006 the Act significantly reduces the constitutional

significance of companys memorandum The Act provides that

memorandum will record only the names of subscribers and the number of

shares each subscriber has agreed to take in the company Under the Act the

objects clause and all other provisions which are contained in companys

memorandum for existing companies at October 2009 are deemed to be

contained in the companys articles of association but the company can

remove these provisions by special resolution

Further the Act states that unless companys articles provide otherwise

companys objects are unrestricted This abolishes the need for companies

to have objects clauses For this reason the Company is proposing to

remove its objects clause together with all other provisions of its

memorandum which by virtue of the Act are treated as forming part of the

Companys articles of association as of October 2009 Paragraph of

Resolution 14 confirms the removal of these provisions for the Company

As the effect of this resolution will be to remove the statement currently in

the Companys memorandum of association regarding limited liability the

proposed articles of association the New Articles also contain an express

statement rearding the limited liability of shareholders

Articles which duplicate statutory provisions

Provisions in the Current Articles which replicate provisions contained in

the Companies Act 2006 are in the main to be removed in the New Articles

This is in line with the approach advocated by the Government that statutory

provisions should not be duplicated in companys constitution

Change of name

Under the Companies Act 1985 the 1985 Act company could only

change its name by special resolution Under the Act company will be able

to change its name by other means provided for by its articles To take

advantage of this provision the New Articles enable the directors to pass

resolution to change the companys name

Authorised share capital and unissued shares

The Act abolishes the requirement for company to have an authorised

share capital and the New Articles reflect this Directors will still be limited

as to the number of shares they can at any time allot because allotment

authority continues to be required under the Act save in respect of employee

share schemes

Redeemable shares

Under the 1985 Act if company wished to issue redeemable shares it had

to include in its articles the terms and manner of redemption The Act enables

directors to determine such matters instead provided they are so authorised

by the articles The New Articles contain such an authorisation The Company

has no plans to issue redeemable shares but if it did so the directors would

need shareholders authority to issue new shares in the usual way

Authority to purchase own shares consolidate and sub-diviIe

shares and reduce share capital

Under the 1985 Act company required specific enabling provisions in its

articles to purchase its own shares to consolidate or sub-divide its shares

and to reduce its share capital or other undistributable reservesas well as

shareholder authority to undertake the relevant action The Current Articles

include these enabling provisions Under the Act company will only require

shareholder authority to do any of these things and it will no longer be necessary

for articles to contain enabling provisions Accordingly where possible the

relevant enabling provisions have been removed in the New Articles

Provision for employees on cessation of business

The Act provides that the powers of the directors of company to make

provision for person employed or formerly employed by the company or

any of its subsidiaries in connection with the cessation or transfer to any

person of the whole or part of the undertaking of the company or that

subsidiary may only be exercised by the directors if they are so authorised

by the companys articles or by the company in general meeting The New

Articles provide that the directors may exercise this power

Use of seals

Under the 1985 Act company required authority in its articles to have an

official seal for use abroad Under the Act such authority will no longer be

required Accordingly the relevant authorisation has been removed in the

New Articles

The New Articles provide an alternative option for execution of documents

other than share certificates Under the New Articles when the seal is

affixed to document it may be signed by one director in the presence of

witness whereas previously the requirement was for signature by either

director and the secretary or two directors or such other person or persons

as the directors may approve

Suspension of registration of shars transfers

The Current Articles permit the directors to suspend the registration
of

transfers Under the Act share transfers must be registered as soon as

practicable The power in the Current Articles to suspend the registration
of

transfers is inconsistent with this requirement Accordingly this power has

been removed in the New Articles

Vacation of office by directors

The Current Articles specify the circumstances in which director must

vacate office The New Articles update these provisions to reflect the approach

taken on mental and physical incapacity in the model articles for public

companies produced by the Department for Business Innovation and Skills

Voting by proxies on show of ha ida

The Shareholders Rights Regulations have amended the Act so that it now

provides that each proxy appointed by member has one vote on show of

hands unless the proxy is appointed by more than one member in which case

the proxy has one vote for and one vote against if the proxy has been

instructed by one or more members to vote for the resolution and by one or

more members to vote against the resolution The Current Articles have been

amended to reflect these changes

Voting by corporate representativs

The Shareholders Rights Regulations have amended the Act in order to

enable multiple representatives appointed by the same corporate member

to vote in different ways on show of hands and on poil
The New Articles

contain provisions which reflect these amendments

Wolf son Microelectronics plc Notice of Annual General Meeting



Adjournments for lack of quorum

Under the Act as amended by the Shareholders Rights Regulations general

meetings adjourned for lack of quorum must be held at least 10 clear days

after the original meeting The Current Articles have been changed to reflect

this requirement

Voting record date

Under the Act as amended by the Shareholders Rights Regulations the

Company must determine the right of members to vote at general meeting

by reference to the
register not more than 48 hours before the time for the

holding of the meeting not taking account of days which are not working

days The Current Articles have been amended to reflect this requirement

Gener

Generally the opportunity has been taken to bring clearer language into the

New Articles and in some areas to conform the language of the New Articles

with that used in the model articles for public companies produced by the

Department for Business Innovation and Skills
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Wolfson Microelectronics plc Form of Proxy Annual General Meeting

for use at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 26 Westfield Road Edinburgh EH1 2CB on 20 May 2010 at 10 a.m

or at any adjournment thereof

I/We

of

CAPITALS PLEASE

being shareholders of the Company entitled to vote and attend at General Meetings

of the Company hereby appoint the Chairman of the Meeting or see Note overleaf

to act as my/our proxy to attend speak and to vote as directed or in the event that no direction is given to vote at his or her discretion on my/our behalf at the Annual

General Meeting to be held at 26 Westheld Road Edinburgh EH1 2QB on 20 May 2010 at 10.00 am or at any adjournment thereof

Number of ordinary shares in respect of which the proxy is appointed see Note ovorleaf

Please mark this box with an if this proxy appointment is one of multiple appointments b8ing made

For the appointment of more than one proxy please refer to Note overleaf

fold
I/we direct my/our proxy to vote on the resolutions as I/we have indicated by marking the appropriate box with an If no indication is given my/our proxy will vote or

abstain from voting at his or her discretion and I/we authorise my/our proxy to vote or abstain from voting as he or she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which is

put before The Annual General Meeting

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS OR AGAINST WTHHELD

see Note 15

overleap

To receive the accounts of the Company for the year ended January 2010 together with the

reports of the directors and auditors

To approve the directors remuneration report set out in the Annual Report and Accounts 2009

To re-elect Mark Cubitt as director of the Company

To re-elect Ross King Graham as director of the Company

To re-elect Alastair David Milne as director of the Company

To re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company

To authorise the directors of the Company to determine the remuneration of the auditors

To authorise the directors of the Company to allot relevant securities pursuant

to Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006

To approve and adopt The Wolfson Microelectronics Approved SAYE Scheme

10 To approve The Wolfson Microelectronics 2009 Staff Share Award Plan

11 To approve and adopt The Wolfson Microelectronics 2010 Senior Executive Deferred Bonus Plan

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

12 To authorise the directors of the Company to allot equity securities for cash as if Section 561 of the

Companies Act 2006 or any pre-emption provisions contained in the Articles of Association did not apply

13 To authorise the Company to make market purchases of its ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each

14 To adopt the new Articles of Association of the Company

_______

15 To authorise the Company to call general meeting other than an Annual General Meeting

on not less than 14 clear days notice

Please return this Form of Proxy duly completed and signed to Equiniti Limited Aspect House Spencer Road Lancing BN99 6ZR so as to be received

not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting or adjourned meeting

Dated 2010

fed

Signed

See Note 10 overleap or Common Seal See Note overleat



Notes to the proxy form

As member of the Company you are entitled to appoint one or more

proxies to exercise all or any of your rights to attend speak and vote at

general meeting of the Company You can only appoint proxy using the

procedures set out in these notes

Appointment of proxy does not preclude you from attending the Annual

General Meeting and voting in person If you have appointed proxy and

attend the Annual General Meeting in person your proxy appointment

will automatically be terminated

proxy does not need to be member of the Company but must attend

the Annual General Meeting to represent you To appoint as your proxy

person other than the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting insert

their full name in the box If you sign and return this proxy form with no

name inserted in the box the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting

will be deemed to be your proxy Where you appoint as your proxy

someone other than the Chairman you are responsible for ensuring that

they attend the Annual General Meeting and are aware of your voting

intentions If you wish your proxy to make any comments on your behalf

you will need to appoint someone other than the Chairman and give

them the relevant instructions directly

You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed

to exercise rights attached to different shares You may not appoint more

than one proxy to exercise rights attached to any one share

To appoint the Chairman as your sole proxy in respect of all of your

shares fill in any voting instructions and sign and date the form of proxy

leave all other proxy appointment details blank

To appoint single proxy other than the Chairman in respect of all of your

shares delete the words the Chairman of the Meeting or see Note

overleaO and insert the name of your proxy in the space provided

To appoint more than one proxy you will need to complete separate

proxy form In relation to each appointment To request additional proxy

forms please contact the Companys Registrars Equiniti Limited Aspect

House Spencer Road Lancing BN99 6ZR Please indicate in the box

marked next to the proxy holders name the number of shares in

relation to which you authorisŁ them to act as your proxy Please also

indicate by marking the next box on the proxy form if the proxy

instruction is one of multiple instructions being given All forms of proxy

must be signed and should be returned to Equiniti Limited Aspect

House Spencer Road Lancing BN99 6ZR failure to specify the

number of shares proxy appointment relates to or specifying
number

of shares in excess of those held by the shareholder will result in the

proxy appointment being invalid

To direct your proxy how to vote on the resolutions mark the appropriate

box with an To abstain from voting on resolution select the

relevant Vote withheld box If no voting indication is given your proxy

will vote or abstain from voting at his or her discretion Your proxy will

vote or abstain from voting as he or she thinks fit in relation to any other

matter which is put before the Annual General Meeting

To appoint proxy using this form the form must be

completed and signed

sent or delivered to Equiniti Limited at Aspect House Spencer Road

Lancing BN99 6ZR and

received by Equiniti Limited no later than 48 hours before the time fixed

for holding the Annual General Meeting or any adjournment thereof

In the case of shareholder which is company this proxy form must be

executed under its common seal or signed on its behalf by an officer of

the company or an attorney for the company

Any power of attorney or any other authority under which this proxy form

is signed or duly certified copy of such power or authority must be

jncluded with the proxy form

CREST members who wish to appoint proxy or proxies by using the

CREST electronic appointment service may do so by using the

procedures described in the CREST Manual www.euroclear.com/CREST

To be valid the appropriate CREST message regardless of whether it

constitutes the appointment of proxy or an amendment to the

instructions given to previously appointed proxy must be transmitted

so as to be received by our agent ID RA19 by the latest times for receipt

of proxy appointments specified in the Notice of Annual General Meeting

See the notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting for further

information on proxy appointment through CREST

10 In the case of joint holders the signature of any one of them on the Form

of Proxy will suffice but the names of all should be shown Where more

than one of the joint holders purports to appoint proxy only the

appointment submitted by the most senior holder will be accepted

Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint

holders appear in the Companys register of members in respect of the

joint holding the first-named being the most senior

11 As an altenative to completing this hard-copy proxy form you can

appoint or revoke proxy electronically by using the procedures

described in the CREST Manual www.euroclear.com/CREST as outlined

in Note above

12 You may not use any electronic address provided in this proxy form to

communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those

expressly stated

13 If you submit more than one valid proxy appointment the appointment

received last before the latest time for the receipt of proxies will take

precedence

14 For details of how to change your proxy instructions or revoke your proxy

appointment see the notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

15 vote withheld is not vote in law and will not be counted in the

calculations of the proportion of votes for and against the resolution
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We have managed the business prudently in difficult trading

conditions finishing the year vith cash ar shor term deposits

balance of $98m compared to $92m at the end of 2008 and no

debt an enviable position in such challenging mes In additio

we havo reduced overheads and have carefully rianaged the

balance sheet resultinç in net cash inflow from work ng capital

of $11 8m

Whilst keeping tight rein on total costs we nc eased our

underlying sterlingWassd RD spend and launched 34 new devices

to our global customers during 2009 double the number lau cbed

the year before We have continuec to refiesh and add to our

compelling Wolison AudioPlusrM portfolio which itegrates

incremental and complementary technologies into powerful rr ore

efficient aid highly optimised devices and solutions Wolfson

commitment to and funding of planned RD activities combined

with the introduction of so marty exciting nev devices meant that

we exited 2009 with much stronger pmduct portfolio We hove

improved the breadth depth of our product offedng eiiabling

us to deliver components and solutions that add real value tot

our customers

consequence of the refresh of our product portfolio is an inc case

in our addressable market year ago we indicated our intention

through the continued implementation of our Wolfson AuoioPlus

portfolio to treble our Serviceable Addressable Market SAMt rom

$1 bn in 2009 to $3bn in 2012 We estimate now that our new

products launched in 2009 will incrsase the SAM again to arou id

$5bn by 2012 This increase in SAM provides the opportunity to

Wolfson to deliver strong financial results as our prodi ct flow

grows and market conditions improve

As digitat apphicattons convege and consumers demand ever mnrp

features from their elecironic products we are building eve stronger

relationships with our customers arid partneis to deliver effective

solutions that help our customers bring their products to life

Wolfson continues to innovate in the core audio component areas

for which we are renowned whilst bringing to market new leading

edge technologies like MicroElectroMechanical Systems MLMS
mici ophones architecturedefining audio hub systems arid

revolutionary noise cancellation solutions As we comb ne our

devices to provide comolete solutions help our partners to
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integrate these solutions into their products improve their bme

market deliver better performance and ncrease their cost

compettiveness we enable our customers to differentiate ther

new consumer electronos prooucts

The Board of Directors and the senior management team have

recently ident fed number of business priorities
for the Company

in the next few years These include extending our leadership

position in high-performance audio further estab ng our

category-defining audio hubs for mobile phones and portable

media products capita ising on our unique and revolutionary

noise cancellation technology and leveraging our MEMS

capability across more real world interface transducers

We believe that by focussing on these priorities and cont nuing

to innovate and deliver compelling solutions to our customers

Wolfson should achieve further design-ins with existing customers

and attract new customers all of wh ch should result

in renewed growth

The challengirg economic environment coupled th oreviously

announced design losses made 2009 an especially tough trading

year for Wo fson and we reported revenues of $121 3m for the

year 2008 $1 98.2m However customer response to the new

dcv ces introduced during the year has been very encouraging

This is evdent by our selection for many new end products by

both existing and new customers across the applicaton areas

we serve Particular pleasing has been the continued adoption

of our audio devices in the mobile phone segment and we are

working with all Tier and sign ficant number of Tier handset

manufacturers Contributing 30% of the Company revenue in

2009 this application sector is now our larges

Strong customer relat onships ealthy pipeline of design

opportunities and our record-breaking 250 design-ins across our

portfolio are bulding solid foundation for an accelerating recovery

and collectively underscores oi confidence of returning to

significant growth in the second half of 2010

As technology business it is important that Woifson attracts

develops and retains people with the appropriate skills to take the

company forward We have world-class design team surrounded

by enthusiastic and experienced support teams across the globe

am also pleased to report that during 2009 Wolfson attracted

significant new talent from many of the worlds eading high

technology companies

It is also important that the company creates an efficient and

effective working envronment to help maxim se the potential of

our employees For this reason we have recently consolidated

our High Wycombe and Swindon operations in the UK into new

facility at Newbury would like to thaik the staff at these sites for

their cooperation during the move and wish tnem every success

in their new home

In November we officially opened our new Semiconductor

Development Centre in Yokohama Japan The Development

Centre is staffed by team of experienced mixed-signal engineErs

and welcome them to the Wolfson family The prime objectives

of the team are to expand and enhan Wolfsons portfolio and

to offer our Japanese customers the very best technical support

Japan is acknowledged as the testing ground for many new and

innovative consumer electronics prooucts arid strong presence

there vli ensure our continued si.ccess that important marke

and with those partners

This has been demanding year for nanagement and employeEs

alike transition such as the one VVolfson is undergoing can feel

unrewarding unti the financial results announced externally beg

to reflect the very considerable endeavours and unseen progress

within would like to thane the whole team for ther dedication

and hard work for staying focussed during what has been

challenging year and for creating an exciting portfolio of products

that will be the foundation for 2010 Thanks to the progress mace

in 2009 the Board believes the oppoSunities for Woltson are

plentiful ano the future looks org ii

Finally would like take this opportunity to thank you

our shareholders for your continued support

Cha rman
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Woltson isa semiconductor company specalising in tie design

and supply of high perforriance mixed-signal integrated circuits

Its devices pay an essental role many of the worlds leading

dgdal consumer electronics products converti ig information from

the rca worlo of analogue sgnals emaiating from sounds images

and physica touct to the digital domain and back again Wolfson

focuses on the supply of hgh performance audio and tra low

pus/er niegrated circuits arid nas strong obal eputation butt

ound thest key competencies

Wolfsons devices can be found inside wide range of consumer

ectronics oducts These include portable batteryoperated

products such as mobile phones portable nedia players PMPs
headsets headphones portable navigation devices PND5
handhc garre consoles and

digital
still cameras DSC5 and also

ma is-operated products such as hi-fi equipment flat panel

me evisions set-top boxes games consoles and mulb-funct onal

pi infers and scanners In each of these Wolfson devices st at the

interface the real world and are key component in enabling

oroduct manufacturers to create excmhng new user expenences

that dffere itiate ieir end products

With ts unique range of mixed signal devices Wo fsoi focus

on emerging ano high growth segments of the digital consumer

ectronics market The emergence of wide range of increasingly

complex multimedia portable devices and the convergence of

digita applicatiois have been key dnvers fo Wolfson over the past

few years Wolfson specialises in the develop nent of these highly

coriplex mixed-signal devices this specialeim requires an in-depth

market understanding and engiieenng know-how as well as the

ability to meet exacting standards of quality and performance

Wf single company competes th Vt/c lfson across all its

product segments smal number of other suppliers of mixed

sigial devices iotablyAKM AMS Aralog Devices Cirrus Logic

Dalog Sensconductor Maxim and Texas Instruments compete

with Wolfson in dmfferent segments Woifson aims to differentiate its

devices through superior additional functionality and per1orm nce

der ved from an understandng of market necds combined with

innovative engineeung An importan aspect is Wolfsons ability

to specify and supply products which anbci tate market needs

The consumer electron cs industry is global and Wolfson has

wor dwide customer base Headquarte ed in Edinburgh UK
Wolfson has total of over 400 employees working out of

locabons worldwide with design centres sales and engineer ig

teams in Eu ope tie US and across Asia

Custo iers

Wolfsons customers include most leading nouse iold consumei

cctroncs names such as Apple Caroii Creative cusuri

Hewlett-Packard JVC LG Microsoft Motorola Nokia

Olympus panasonic Pioneer Samsung Sanyo Sharp Sory

and TomTom

Wolfson custcmers are amogst the most exacbng in the world

wi regard to product oenformance quality and supp Wolfson has

become trusted supp tar to many of the worlds leading consumer

electronics manufacturers

Wolfso products

Innovative mixed signal devices combiru both analogue anc

digital circuitry on the sane pi uce of silcon are at the core of

Wolfsons business

With even sgher consumer excectations for iiultimedia

performance manufacturers rrust continue to differeitiate heir

products at the user iner ace Wolfson products play crucial role

in the quality and performance of the human nterface of consumer

electron cs products and rectly impact the aid users experience

Many consumer electronics products ncreasingly differer iated

in the market by their sound ality feature that is citicol to he

cnn users multimedia cxperienice With its worldwide reputation for

rsg performance audio ano ultra low power devices Wo iso

offers prove path to that essential differentia ioi

In the last few years Wolfson has tamen significant step forward

in developing compe ling product portfolio called Wolfson

AucioPlus This portfolio adds inc emental aid complementary

mixed-signal technolocl es to Wolfsuns estabushed compete icks

in gh performance aud and low power consu iipt on deviccs

leading to the desgn of more iowerfu more efficient and highly

optimised products and solutions for the audo sig ial path

ec cs AnnurS Report ard Accourts 2009



Pure Sound

The core of Pure Sound Wolfson renowned Analogue to

Digtal Coiverte ADC and Digtal Analogje Converter DAC

arch tectures and advanced digital filtering These devices allow

consumers shape the subjective quafty of the audio to ther own

individual preferences In addition we aunched the world-leading

ultra low power Coder Decode Crcuit CODEC which dramabcally

extends music playback time Building on the success of these

audio devices Wolfson has developed an architecture-defining

fami of audio hubs These feature-rich hubs de iver world-class

audio and mixed-signal performance to vast range of digital

consumer products including nobile phones and portable media

players Woitson audio hubs allow designers to optimally manage

the como.ex word of multiole noncurrent se cases such as

mobile ohone user listening to music on Bluetooth stereo

headset whilst navigating through busy city as an incoming

phone call arrives

Smart Power

These integrated power management solutions are crucia for

many applicatons including battery-operated po table consumer

electronics products Mixed-signal circuitry intelligently manages

votages and currents reducing critical power consumption and

maintaining max mum processor performance

rue Mice

MEMS-based tra isducer technology for silicon microphone

devices combines high performance audio with an ultra compact

form factor

Ambent Noise Cancellat on id Enhanced Soundware

This acoustic technology enables ambient noise cancellatio

sound enhancement and 3D sound techno ogies to significantly

improve the user listening expe ience

World-class engineenng

With innovative mixed-signal devices at the core of its success

Wolfson ms to invest in terms of cash expenditure between

15% and 20% of revenues in new product development on

average across the economic cyc

The process of integrated circuit development is demanding anc

complex It assisted by Compu er-Aded Design CAD facilities

but roqures substantal ceat ye input From design engineers test

engineers and product engineers to produce fully functiona

device that can be manufactured in rrillions of units with the

required quality

Specialised techniques and techno ogy are used to optimise the

performance power consumpt on and cost of mixed-signal

circuitry
Wolfso has built up an outs anding capability since was

established 25 years ago During the irs 10 years of the busine

prior to developing its own products Wol sor undertook contract

design work nurturing expertise and Jainng experience in wice

range of different applications Dye tme Wolfson established

world ciass engineering team wf ch epresents very valuable

asset to the Company

In the second wIt of 2009 we added to our engineering resource

by opening new Semconductor Development Ceitre in

Yokohama Japan The Development Centre staffed by tean

of experIenced mixed-sig id engi ieers whose highly sought-after

expertise will expand and enhance Wolfson oroducf portfolio and

help ensure tie company cont rued growth in Jaoan one of tfe

worlds most advanced consume electronics markets

The process of new product development not only generates

catalogue of feature differentIated proiucts but also creates valumble

prop ietary intellectual property hich Wolfson protects tmrougb

patents key countr es At the end of 2009 Wo fson had -nore

than 340 patents and patent appi cat oils throughout the wo Id
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Sc cc ma kedng and engineenng support

mainair ts position as market eader Wolfson must continuafy

develop products and solutions with innovative functions and

eatures demanded by the fasKc ianging consumer electronics

ma ketplace T0 do his Wolfson must ook not only at the iext

gone abon of end products but also at the generation beyond

Wolfson marketing specialis work close rth customers to

de ne iew tech iology aid new product roadmaps that meet both

he cuireni and future neeos helping to develop prooucts tiat

can be used across broad range of applications

cltsor custoners are ocated in key global markets and so

are ts sales teams Is offices throughout the world are staffed by

ocal nab onals who are experienced in the business culture of

ticir reg on and provide customers with skilled tee inical and

cornmerc al suppoit

Mos of hese offices are equipped tli aoilications laboratores

which are used by both Wolison and its customers for product

demonstrations and system debugging fda combination of ocal

application ennineers and meal laboratory lacittios ensures close

custorier Ii ikages from product def ition hrough to riarket

lauich ard ongoing application support

Bus ness mod

vVoifson enploys fabless business model by which it outsources

all of ts manufacturi ig requirements to specialist si icon foundries

and assem ily and tes houses This brings Woltson three disti id

benefits the ability to ocus on its key desiqn and development

strengths relatively ow fixed costs aid capital expenditure ano

hig ily scalable and responsive production capability In additon

to ersi Ire arleqi ate supply oni to orotect against possible supply

oisi uption at any one ste number of fferent fabrication olants

are ut sed

Wafer fabrication is outsourced to CLOBALFOUNDA rs orme ly

named Chartered Semic000uctor in Singapore MagnaC do

Se nicoriductor in Souti Korea CSMC in China TSMC in faiwa

and XFAB in Germany These mu tiple ants offer amp high

volume capacity and flexibility for current and anticipated future

needs The ma orty of asse iihly aid testing of products is ar ed

out by Unisem Carsern and ATE These supp iers provide access

to high quafty manufacturing and test technology

Getting the ight product to tte cusomer he right time vital

As he vast Tiajority of electron podudts are It in the Asia

Pacifc region Wolfsor has establiehed distribi tion ub in

Ma aysia to ensu sflort supply chain and oot miser local

customer responsiveness Fron th mb locally man factu cc

Wolfson devices are distibuted ustomers throughout the

Asia Pacific region

Qua8ty and enviro mmr tel

Quafty of manufacturing sot Jaramount imoorta 10 Wolfa ors

customers the performance of each device is cha acterised as

par of tie rigorous development pmcess id qualified throuh

process of accelerated fe testing to ensure reliab and scone iec

manufactuiability

In product on igorous oriitodng cit the nanufactur ig erocess

undertaken and each individual de\uice is tested to the publ ied

performance standards before shiprient to customer

Wolfson complies with the quality stendards id netbodology

dat ned by BS El ISO 9001 2008 foi which it ert fied by

the Brtish Standards Iristituton Wolfson is also qualfieo to

ES EN ISO 14005 2004 and is Sony Green Padre VVoifsoi is

dedicated to supplying dig quouty poduuts in uido icr 10150 ci

with the environmeital and hical equi ements of ts customeis

and its own exacting slanda ds sea further details on page 32
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For Wolfson and the consumer electronics industy generally 2009

like 2008 proved challenging

Woltsons 2009 annual revenue decreased by 39% to $121 .3m

2008 $198 2m Gross margin was broadly mal itained at 50.7%

2008 50.9% Underlying overhead costs were reduced to $69.2m

2008 $77.9m resulting in net operating loss before excepbonal

charge of $5.3m Net cash nflow from operabng activities was

$1 1.8m 2008 $16.Orn resuliPg in total cash and short-term deposits

increasing to $97.8m as at 3rd january 2010 2008 $922m

The mpac of the macroeconomic downturn that began tie

second half of 2008 continues to be felt Difficult economic

conditons together th climate of uncertainty have reduced

spending on consumer electronics As result our customers

scaled back thel orders in 2009 to we below 2008 leve leading

to decline in \Nolfsons revenue number design losses in

2008 also adversely affected our rosults in 2009

Follow ng portfo io review in ate 2008 we refocused and

prior bsed our new product development reducng the number of

deve opme it programmes by over 40% Now our investment of

both cash and resources being directed to where it will maximise

return and ensure on-time deliveiy of new products

At the id of 2008 we set the following objectives

for the busmess

Continue to target consumer electronics applications

Focus on fundamentals 2009

Product development and enewa of our product portfolio and

Cash conservation

Deliver Wolfson udioFius proaucts to

Increase our share of board and

friple our addressable mar cet within yoars

Broaden our portfolio of solutions

Leverage Wolfson AudioPIusT products to cieate compelling

solutions and

Increase target applications and diversify ou revenue and

customer base

Financial Performance

Pursue mid-term revenue growth with financial disciplne

We have made excellent progress 2009 We have fully refreshed

our product portfo and have introduced record number of

new devices in fact double the number introduced during 2008

The new Wolfson AudioPluslM tech io ogles power management

MEMS microphones and Ambent Nose Cancelling AND now

feature in devices being shipped and gniticantly increase our

addressable market Despite the dccl ne in revenue we exited

2009 very hea thy financial situat on having increased our

cash postion

Our coitinued investrient in resea ch and develooment has

esulted in 34 exciting new devices ir cluding new catego

defining family of audio hubs imarily for nobile phones the

largest consumer product sector which has been very well

received fhe interest from our customers and design-in traction

2009 gives is gieat confidence in cur technology our devices

and our growth potential

The progress made in 2009 and our combination of world-class

devices innovative technology and very strong balance sheet

mean that Wo fso is ell positioned benefit from recoverj

in narket conditions

Wolfson operates in the dynamic and growing consumer electroi cs

iiarket Within this global market the major applications addressed

by our portfolio include mobile phones multimedia products

games consoles portable naviga ion devices flat panel LCD and

LED televisions and dig tal still cameras We are also gaining

traction in fast growing applications such as ietbooks Blu-ray

DVD5 and eBook readers

Wolfso continues to build momentum across al of its product nes

and mai kets and has seen healthy pipeline of design-in activity

with many of the world leading consu ncr ectronics brands

For more deta Is on revenue by app ication descr ption please re er

to page 13

We believe that our prodcct portfolio arid capabilities are closel3

igned vith the consumer elecironics market as it moves towards

more multimedia products offering Woltson the opportunity for

strong growth In fact we believe thaL we can increase our

addressable market many times over as described on page
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Wc lfson enterod 2009 in ctmate ecoronic decline and

concur ier uncertainty ir operationni focus was on refreshing

the oduct portfolio 31st managing costs tightly and conserving

casn through good management of working capital

Wolfso aunched 34 rev products during tie year double the

number of now devices introduced durng the previous year These

nev devices iave co Tiprehens vely enhancad the competitiveness

of Wolfsons produc polfo io adding category eading parts to

product lines Additionally the products and technology develaped

durng 2009 have resulter in key new intellectual proper

which will fom the foundations of our next generation of product

devclopments At the arid of 2009 Wolfson had riore thar 340

note ts and patent applications throughout the world

Ii spho doubling the number of products developed and

iau chad in 2009 RD expenditure excluding non-cash charges

such as ariortisaton ard share based compensa ion fel by 6%
to $37 6m or 31 of revenues 2008 $398m or 20% of 2008

revanues1 Ve ee als abe to rocce overall total underlyrg

overhead expenditure excluding exceptio 181 charges amo tisation

of acquired intangble assets and share-based componsation

coals by 110/ from 2008 We thus conserved cash and fart

ncieased our total cash and sho 1-term deposits balance from the

posit on at the erd of 2008

Over ft last few yeai our strengths ci audio have evolved

into coripelling technology product portfo in we call Wolfson

Aud oPlus This adds cower management products MOMS

microphones no se cancell ig and sound harceinunt softhiare

oroducts ano solutions to our core cud capablities By integrating

these incremental rd complementary techro ogles Wolfson can

cmv de rromo powerful more efficient and highly optirn sed

oclucts and solutiors

We look to add value with complete solutions that group Wolfson

devices together and we help our customers to integrate these

solutions into ieir products improving their time to market

deliver ng better performance ar increasing cost competitiveness

Ths enables Wolfson to add rriore value and provde more pe

ocr board nto each erd consumer product With tie additio is to

the Wolfson AudioP us portfnl achieved in 2009 we believe we

have increased our add essab ma ket surpassing oor origina

goal in 2008 to treble ciur Serv ceable Addressable Marks SAM
his increase in SAM will help uiderpin Wolfsor growtn and tie

dolvery of strong fiiancial results cs market conditions mprocc

irs es og nor Se ioeab Aid eosnL2 \aret SI M0

We continue to innovate in our core audio iroduct areas as cc

bri ig to market new cading-edge technologies like MOMS

microphones arcnitecturedefning mixed-signal audio hub

systems and unique nose cancellaton so utions With our

expanded and refreshod product portfolio we have sgnificartly

mproved the competit veness of our devices In moducing devices

that set new benchmark tie industry to all ou orod ict lines

coLipled with the ncreased breadth and depth of the portfolio

allows Wolfson to deliver comolete aid niovative aud 050 utions

Our products ard solulions have been designed to address not

only the highest tier coi sumer pioducts bui also 1.0 ann value anc

functionality across all tiers of iroducts opening up far more

iiarcet opportu sties We now estimate that this new oroouc

oortfolio will enab Wolfson to ncrease ts SAM fron $lbn 2309

to over $3bn in 2010 vith growth ta $5bn by 2012 To sax misc

this opportunity we are wo king to build ever stronger

relationships wi our istomers

Du ing 2009 we efresied and mproved the competitiveness

of our core audio products We rave aunched Oust leading

devices incorporating our renowned ralogue to-Digital Coiverter

ADC Jigital-to Analogue Converte DAC architecture and

advanced digital filtering
In addition we have launched nuriber

of world-lead ng ultra low power Coder Decoder Circuits CODECs
ard blended together rrany of these orteri igs to delver nec

category-def in ng audio hubs family page 10 cor tains further details

regarding audio hubs

Wolfsons power managanent devices continued to attract nealthv

ion ber of design-ins from Ter and ie customers 2003

includi
ig

Microsoft and Samsung We aie very encouraged that

leading consumer brands are usng our technology in thet products

further enhancing our reputation and endorsing ciur technology
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Although the 2009 designdns did not make significant

contr bution to the years revenues due to the onger lead lime

from des gn in to revenue they are expected to make meaningful

contribution in 2010

Wolfson continues to build revenue from its family of MEMS-based

silicon microphones These devices are now shipping and multiple

Tier and Tier customers are currently in the design sample

and test phase of integrating our silicon microohones into

applications including gaming consoes DSC5 mobile phones

and automohve products

Wolfson continues to make encouraging progress with its unique

Ambient Noise Cancellahon ANC products across nobile phone

handsets headsets and headplones In handsets ongoing design

and esting acbvity cont nues ith the najority of Tier and

Tie mobile phone manufacturms Progress headsets and

headphones in 2009 was demonstrated by aaditional dewgn-ins

including Nokias highest her uetooth stereo headset

Wolfson AUdi0PIUSTM New Products and Solutions update

We cont nue to build our vVolfson AudioPlus products and

technologies to provide comprehensive bufding blocks and

intel ectual property that can be used to deliver increasingly

sophislicated audio so utions In 2009 Wolfson launched

34 dovices doub the number aunched in 2008 Some of the

developments new devices and appfcations are highlighted below

Pure Sound ndustry leading DACs and ADCs

2009 we aunched the WM8742 new addition to our successful

portfolio of high-performance DACs This deace continues to set

the benchmark for pure natura -sounding high performance audio

and targeted at professiona audio applications such as audio

visua rece vers DVD recorders Blu-ray recorders super audio

CD and home entertainment systems

Enhancir our DAC family of products we launched the WM89 10

an ultra low power DAC designed to sign ficantly extend olayback

time in portable audio applications such as media players mobi

phones and handheld gaming systems

Wo fson also brought to market new world- eading stereo

ADC designed to offer high quality line nput audio performance

in recordable media appl cations including flat panel LCD arid

LED televisions set top boxes ard DiD recorders

Also biought to market were the WM8523 and the WM8524 two

new DACs that dramatically cut the cost of delivering high qualit

audio to flat panel digital te evisons 13 u-ray players set-top boxes

and games consoles

Pure Sound Best ass Audio Coders Decoders

The introduct on of the worlds leading ultra low power CODED

the WM8904 further enhanced Wolfson reputation in this area

The WM890 features Wolfsons nique integrated Class

headp ione and line dr vers to extend playback time in portable

applicat ons such as nod clayew eadsets voice recoide

and multimedia phones

We extetded our ow power CODEC ange by launching the

WM894 WM8945 WM8946 and WM898 fami of high-

performance CODECs which eihance aLdio performance and

ex end bat cry life portable applications such as digital still

cameras digi al camcorders and voice recorders

Wolfson so launched the WM8961 an ultra low powe CODED

with integrated hgh power Class stcieo speaker driver This device

significantly extends playback time for audio-enabled portable

oroducts such as mobile internet det ices M1D5 handhed gam ng

consoles and portable media oduc PMP5
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Wobso has firmly established category-def ning audio hubs wthi

Os oortfo io Buildi ig on years of Iccess wth audio components

Wolfso has developed ndustry-leading tam ly of audo hubs

These tea ure nch hubs delive world-class cud and mixed signal

pe foi nance to vast range of digital consume products nc uding

mobile phones and per able media players

By bier ng toqet icr many of the successf components of

\A/olson AudioPLs P0 tfolio Wolfson hubs detver the market

leading audio whilst dnv ng down component count product cost

and product size Wolfeons hubs are easily ntegiated reduce

design ost and enable designers to deliver heir products to market

aster Uniquely Woltson audio hubs allow iewgners to optimally

iaiage the complex world of mulfple concurrent use cases

Fe example user may be wtening to nusic on stereo

bluetooth headset whilst navigating through busy city as an

ncomirg call arrves

2009 saw us munch the atest devices ow fa -nily of audio hL bs

aigely targeteu at mobi phores Tie WMB9O3 and tIm WMB99

integrate merle-class audio peformance onger music playback

ime Tore end user eatures multiple concur ent use cases end

flexible audio sgnal routing into single chip Our audio hub fa
nily

takes high performance audio at ulta low power consumption to

new level and allows designers to create portable products with

me thai 100 hews VP3 music playback bme Tim is more

tha ten-fold improve cent on previous solutions with no

addibonal incieases in leo punt or bill of matenals cost

Smart Pc ver

ii 200v vie eu icnee new eamfy of power manage cent iniegratea

cucuits PMIC5 icluding the WM831 WM831 and WM831

These devices delive unprecede ited programmability and

tlexioility for ease of desgn in allowi ig customers to maximise

bat cry life thout conpromising on apphcation processor

oerlormance The de\ices also give designers maximum flexihitty

as they Ii interface with ARM based apptcat on processors

Fncouraging orogrosu powe manage cent included iotable

design-irs with Microsofts next genera ion portable media player

the Zure HD Samsunq Ml poitacle med player aid iREX

Techno ogies new touc i-screen eReader the DR800SG In addifon

application processor vendor ZtLARS selected Wolfsen for both its

ZMS-Ou System Modul for embedded dcv ces and its Zi EGG

StemCell Ceiipurer

We further strengthenec our power nanagemert offonng wife the

launch of the VVM8320 smaller more efficient aid lower cos

power management selutie fe applicafons that use ARM-based

processors particularly mobile inter let devices VlDs mobi

ohones and digiff photo frames

Much of 2009 was spei it reinforcing the technology arid custo nr

base of Wolfson siliccie micrcphone product It Tf Co cpa iy

unique proprietary process is now fi my established in two its

oundry partners while nicroohone package cia iufactu ing has

been transferred China tor volume eroduction and improved

cost Advanced ASIC cleveloprrie its saw the comnplefon cf

analogue and digital solutions to support the microphone inter ace

requirements for its customers and also to match Woltson other

portfolio products Package developments have cent nued and the

number of package vanants has incieased to four in reseo ise to

customer requests

ln addition the Company has successfully sampled to over cO

customers acioss wide range of uppl catiens elude mobile

phones gaming conso es and digital still carrie as

Ambor Noise Cancellatmn and En canoed So mdware

in the second quartei \Nolfson delivered its unique and

evolutionary myZone ambient noise cancellation ANC
technology to Nokia for its Bluetooth Stereo Hcadet BH-90u

As the Ia gest eel sume brand the mobile phone and accessory

sector this positive endorsement by Nokia reaffirms the ndustry

caGing position of eu ANC techr egy

Wolfson unique rnyZc lemu feed-forward ANC technology eu ts

in cryst clear audio by elimi ieting iackground wise remove

the need for consumers to increase the audio volume to compensate

to external noise With headohone volume leve undergoirg

review by he European Union Wolson solution onovides
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manufacturers with an idea ophon to prevent hearing damage

caused by tstening to loud music for extended periods whilst

delivenng high definition quality sound In-box and accessory

ANC headsets present another maiket opportunity for Wolfson

We added to our investments in the headset headphone busness

area with the introducbon of the WM2000 our first chip for mobile

phones which focuses on the receive path and employs active

anti-noise which cancels out background nose around the

listeners ear and enables them to have clear telephone

conversatons in noisy environments We are engaged with most

Tier and Icr mobile handsets providers with view to

ntegrating this new and unique technology into their products

Wolfsons SoundStage Enhancement Engine software current

ncorporated into over 80 mi ton devices wor dwide Ihe software

which was designed for low power and low-end performance

processors was optimised to give great audio quality to small

speaker portable devces and was further nv gorated in late 2009

with the addition of 5.1 surround sound as well as additional software

lgorithms to sopport our core business saies activity V/fe also signed

new agreements th Chinese handset manufacturer

Broadeneig our revenue and custome base

As broaden our Wolfson AudioPlus portfolio and integrate

the incremental and complementary tech lologies of power

management VlEMS and ANC we open up mw markets such as

eBook readers personal computers Blu-ray ayers and recorders

headphones headsets garr ing consoles and set-top boxes STBs

As mentioned previously VVolfson has been very successful

providing powe management or leading brand eBook readers and

portable multimedia players In addition our ultra ow power

CODEC5 deliver exce lent audio perfoi mance for laptops netbooks

and mobile internet day ces MID5 our volt DACs reduce bill of

material BOM cost and are ideal for STBs and games consoles

while our refreshed ADC5 arid DACs are perfect for flat panel

LCD and LED te evision manLifacturers

In the third quarter of 2009 Woltson recoided its first sales nto

handset launched by new Tier mobile phone customer when

our audio hub was designed into new code division multiple

access CDMA phone for the US cellular market

In January2010 we signed distribution agreement with Future

Electronics which is now our primary global distributor with

authonisation to sell all Wolfson oducts wor dwide This new

partnership with Future Electro iics is part of drive by Wolfson to

widen its customer base and address ihe proliferation of audio aid

mixed gnal applications in consumer and industnia products

The lead time from design-in to in ial ievenue is dependent on

when the customer products ramp to volume manufacturing

Typica ly
this means that revenue in the current year is heavily

dependent on products launched in tie previous year

The conpany also experienced lowe thai anticipated sales to

leading customer which changed its product mix earlier tian

expected to new mobile phone hanr set without Wolfson device

These factors combined to rrake 2009 very chal enging rom

evenue perspective

Despite he difficult macroeconon ic conditions Wolfson success ully

expanded and refreshed its portfolio during 2009 as explaioed

earlier We have seen hese new dcvi es desgned nto some

exciting customer produc and we conti iue to build solid

oundation for an accelerated recovery as these new customer

products are aunched during 2010

Cas conservabon

Although our revenue yes down 39/ to 21 3m we managed

the iet operating ioss to $15.3m before the exceptional charge

of $0.5m by maintaining gross margin of over 50% and reducing

overheads to $69.2m 2008 $77.9m Co nbined th prudent

balance shee management this resulted total cash and

short-ta deposits increasing by $5 6n to be ance of $97.8ni

2008 $92 2m at 3rd January 2010

For further details please refer to pages 14 to 16 in the Operating

and Fi iancial Revew

Wo is ce Annuai Report and Aocoents 2009



nser mg cash and conVnung to nnovate

aroerabve that Wolfson confnues to design nnovabve new

oc ucts ard build its product portfolio Desgning category

leadwg products that can be irtegrated to provde powerful and

compelling so utions to our customers is essenbal For ths reason

we have coitinued to make signrfcant nvestment in new

Doduct development

2009 we opened the Japanese Ser iconcuctor Development

Ce rtre in Yokohama wh ch staffed by team of experiencec

iiixed-signa engneers In addhion we consolidated the design

teams based Swindon and High Wycombe at new fac Ii

Nevbury UK

it ooerational nancial managemen meant that all of ttese

ivestnents were managed wi un the 2009 operating budoet which

was 11% down on 20013 despite mantaining development spending

As we commence 2010 revenue visbitty is mproving with order

cad mes lengtheuing bat eeuue growth hghly dependent

on our custonors new product introductiona ramping to

volume productiou

Our operat onal focus vail be on delivering compelling new products

to our customers and max ng audio solution opportuiities

with our xed-signal aud hubs at the core aug nen ed by ou

exteusive and nnovafve Woifsoi AudioPlus portfolio

We all bLild on experhse and experience of high performance

audio to deliver quality audio solubons across all major app icabon

segments For example as the form factor aid speaker locabon of

lat nanel televisor evolve Wolfson plans to be ready with audio

so uhors that meet the challenge SOul any we plau to deliver audio

so utons for personal computers PCs which are fast becoming

home media cenbes with consumers demand ng high defintion

cnema sound expe ssnce

Desgners of portable products ace the allenge of consu ncr

deruand for 3D graph cs video playback at television quatty

and nc tiple audo-rout ng use cases with imoroved battery hfe

Wo fson pa us to delver the highest uual ty audio solubons to neat

these expectations based around our category defining mixed

sgr al audio hubs

Wolfson recognises that portable product battery ufe associated

cal and ayback bmes are crucial es these devces becorun

more and more complsx and pport an ever ncreasing numbcr

of apptcations Wolfson will therefore con nue develop ul

low power devices and power iuanagement solutions to nest

these challenges

We pan to leverage our unique port ion ir noise cancellanon an

maximise opportunities for our amt ient noise cancella ion and

Soundware products bY ding or the posibve trocbon th tier

and cr2 manufacture achieved 2009 Ths technology appi ad

combination wth our hgh perforrrance low power audio products

suitable for numerous applicatons including obile phones

howe entertainment sytews headsets and headpt ones

Our MEMS-based transducer tecunology currently used in our

sil con microphones combines exca lent audo perfor uance with

an ultra compact form actor We plan to continue to add our

portfolio of MEMS procucts and maxmse the opportuntbes

mulbple microphone app ic-at ons suc as speech recogniton

conference phones ga ning consolirs direcbora seusitvity arc

noise cancellabon

We ear to maximise our ffnanc al performa ice urough discio med

discretionary spend and to maintain gross margins through care ul

product design and prccess cost reductio is as wel as by

con inung to bghtly ma uage nventory

Through comb uat on of targeted new product deve opmen

maximrwng sales from our refreshed product porYoto and tightly

maintai iing opera ional cost contro we beleve Wolfsun wil

prosper as our 2009 product additons become integrated nto

customer end products and as market condrtrons start to show

sustained improvement

In summary we arm to further ntrengthen our co npetit ye and

financia positron and to continue tc build solid foundat on ft

growtu through 2010 and beyond
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Pure Sound is the largest segment and includes the supply and

sale of integrated circuits containing Wolfsons high performance

audio technologies The product lines within this segment are

categorised as High Performance Audio Low Power Audio

Audio Hubs Imaging and Audio Amplifiers Revenues at $116.lm

accounted for 96% of Group revenue 2008 98% and fell by 40%

in the year from $1 94.5m in 2008

Gross margin for this reportable segment reduced slightly to 50.5%

from 50.8% reflecting the adverse effect of change in product mix

partly offset by improved operational efficiencies in the supply chain

Wolfsons market position in multimedia and smartphones remains

strong and these applications accounted for approximately 30% of

Group revenue in 2009 This was despite fall in sales primarily as

result of leading customer changing its product mix faster than

expected to new mobile handset not featuring Wolfson product

Growth was demonstrated across various applications such as

flat panel televisions which now account for around 8% of total

revenues eBook readers and automotive Portable navigation

devices games consoles and digital
still cameras saw decline

in revenues year on year percentage of annual revenue by

application chart is on page 17

The product portfolio has been significantly enhanced with new

products across all product lines Wolfson introduced 34 new

products in 2009 double the number in 2008 As one example

building on years of success with audio devices Wolfson has

developed an architecture-defining family of mixed-signal audio

hubs These feature-rich hubs deliver world-class audio and mixed-

signal performance to vast range of digital consumer products

including mobile phones and portable media players More details

regarding these hubs are contmned the Business Review on

page 10

Wolfsons other business includes the supply and sale of integrated

circuits in the Smart Power True Mics and Enhanced Soundware

product lines None of these segments meets any of the quantitatve

thresholds for determining reportable segments in 2009 or in 2008

and accordingly the relevant revenue and segment gross profits

are shown in aggregate as other operating segments note to

the financial statements on pages 62 65

The past year saw the Wolfson AudioPlusTM portfolio make

significant progress in its aim of ircreasing market share and the

size of its serviceable addressablo market Power management

products MEMS microphones noise cancelling and sound

enhancement software products and solutions were launched and

adopted by leading consumer electronics manufacturers These

three product lines contributed $52m of total revenues in 2009 up

41% from 2008 2008 $3.7m and now accounts for 4% of Group

revenue double that in 2008

Gross margin from these other segments increased to 53.4% from

51.5% in 2008 reflecting higher amount of royalties from noise

cancelling and sound enhancement products such as the headset

design-in with Nokia in 2009 as explaned on page 10 of the

Business Review

Traction of these products with customers is encouraging and

includes most Tier and Tier customers Interest fuelled by

the fact that these innovative class leading solutions are easily

integrated into their products improving time to market delivering

better performance and increasing cost competitiveness This wider

portfolio enables Wolfson to offer fuller solutions add more value

and provide more parts per board into each end consumer

product With the additions to the Wolfson AudioPlusM portfolio

achieved in 2009 the Company believes it has increased its

addressable market from $1 bn in 2009 to $3bn in 2010 and

expects it to grow to $Sbn by 2012 as we further expand our

product portfolo
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The Group and the Company financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards arid its

ntei pretations as adopted by the European Union adopted IFRS

The financial results of the Group for the 53 week period ended

January 2010 before the exceptional charge are summarised in

the table below The consolidated income statement for the period

is on page 50

Financial highlights are also included on some of the charts on

page

Revenue

Gross profit

Overheads

Research development expenses

Dstribution sel ing costs

Adminstrative expenses

Underlytng operatng lass profit

Amorisation charges

Share-based compensation charges

Operatng lass profit

Net financing income

Loss profit before tax

Income tax

Loss profit after tax

Diluted loss earnings per share cents

Underlying diluted loss /earnings per share cents

Average 21US$ exchange rate

52 week

period

ended

28 December

2oos

Ta figures are stated before excepionsl charge of $0.5r1 in 2009 and $6.4m in 2008

and assOcsfed tax beneft of $0.1 sad $1 .7m respec vely

under ying results cxc ude charges for the smorbsstion of acquired mtangible assets

2009 $5.Om 2008 $5.Om and share-based compensaf on charges 2009 $2.8m

2008 $3 2m so in 2009 srd 2008 exceptonal charges of $0.5m and $6.4m

respectively are excludud The term underlying is not defined in lFR5 and therefore

may not be comparable mth milarly titled measures reported by other companies

underlying measures are not intended as eubstitu for ore superior measure fo

IFR5 esures Reconcilations of underlying measures to IFR5 messuree for operat ng

expenses end opera ng lions proft in respect of each period are promded the

tables on page 15

1982

Revenue decreased by 39% to $121 3m 2008 $198 2m on the

back of the general decline in consumer electronics spend and was

compounded by the impact of design losses at major customer

The loss before tax and exceptional charges was $14.3m 2008

$1 7Dm profit and the decline of $31 3m from 2008 can be

attributed mainly to

fall in revenue of $77m 39% reducing gross profit by $39m

Gross margin percentage maintained

decline in interest income ot $1 reflecting fall in US dollar

deposit rates

partly offset by

reduction in overheads of $9m underlying overheads down 11

Gross profit in 2009 was $61 Sm down 39% from the previous year

2008 $1 DD.8m before he exceptional charge Despite the fall in

revenues the gross margin percentage was broadly maintained at

507% against 509% irt 2008 before exceptional charges as

efficiencies were achieved in the supply and production cha to offset

the impact of reduced volumes and product mix

An exceptional charge of $D.Srn was booked in the third quarter of

1OD8 2009 to cover the remaining lease costs of the exited offices in the

south of England following the consolidation of these offices into

new office in Newbury 2008 exceptional charges of $2 9m

covering restructuring costs and $3.5m inventory wrte down
3g.8

24.2

1A Wolfson has continued ts focus on overhead management Total

229 underlying overheads excluding exceptional charges amortisation

5.Q
of acquired intangibles and share-based compensation charges

3.2
amounted to $69.2m compared to $77.9m in 2008 decrease of 11%

147
Our continuous investnnent in rtew product development and best-

23
in-class engineering tools is imperative to our growth strategy artd

our long-term competitiveness Expenditure on research and

170 development excluding non-cash charges such as amortlsation

4.7 and share-based compensation charges fell by 6% to $37.6m 01

31% of revenue 2008 $39.8m or 20% of revenue The decrease
123

resulted from an increase in underlying sterling based costs offset

6.5
by the favourable exchange rate movement

15.4 Distribution and selling expenses excluding the exceptional charge

1.88
and share-based compensation charges decreased by 18% to

$19.9m or 16% of revenue 2008 $24.2m or 12% of revenue

The reduction reflects the reduced product volumes shipped in the

year the full year impact of the restucture in 2008 and the impact

of the favourable exchange rate movement

Administrative expenses excluding share-based compensation

charges decreased by 16% to $1 Tm or 10% of revenues

2008 $13.9m or 7.0% of revenue through tight cost control

and the favourable excf ange rate movement

Share-based compensation charges calculated accordance

with IFRS together with the associated payroll taxes amourtted

to $2.6m in 2009 compared to $3.2m in 2008 before exceptional

chargej the decrease being attributed to the lapsing of share-

based awards under various executive schemes where the

performance conditions have not been met

Woitson Microelectronics plc Annual Report and Accaurits 2008



Operathig expenses reconciliafion from Undellying to FRS

Amorlisation

Share-based of acquired Exceptional

compensation intangible assets charges

$000 $000 $000

53 weeks ended January 2010

Distributon and selling costs 867 500

Research and development expenses 1425 5016

Administrative expenses 279

2571 5016 500

52 weeks ended 28 December 2008

Distribution and selling costs 1036 743

Research and development expenses 1178 5020 127

Adminstrative expenses 979 1980

3193 5020 2850

Operating toss profit reconciliation from Undedying to FRS

52 weeks

ended

28 December

2008

$000

Underlying operating loss profit
22905

Share-based compensation and related payroll taxes 3.193

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 5020

Exceptional charges 63DO

Operating loss profit IFRS 8342

Intangible asset amortisation charges on the 2007 acquisitions amounted to $5.Om 2008 $5.Om The projected amortisation charge for

2010 is expected to increase to $5 3m

Underlying operating loss was $7.7m compared to profit of $22.9m or 12% of revenue in 2008 Net financing income reduced to $1 Om

2008 $2.3m The finance expense of $1 .3m booked in 2009 relates mainly to the interest on the pension scheme obligation and notional

interest on the discounted deferred consideration on the acquisitions both being non-cash items

The effective rate of tax for 2009 was 31% 2008 28% benefiting from additional allowances on research and development expenditure

However this benefit was partly offset by the partial non-deductibility of share-based compensation charges on awards above the current

share price The projected effective tax rate for 2010 is expected to be around 28%
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Share repurchases

In light of the uncertain macroeconomic environment and the

priority
to conserve cash the Board decided to suspend the share

repurchase programme in 2009 with no share purchases made by

the Company in 2009 In 2008 the Company purchased and

cancelled 3.2 million shares for total consideration of $6.7 million

The Management of the Company constantly considers and

reviews risk and the risk profile of this business In addition the

Company has put in place formal processes for the identification

and where possible the management and or mitigation of

significant risks which are reviewed regularly by senior management

This is formally reported on regular basis to the Board as result

of which the directors of the Company the Directors are aware of

the potential cost and resources involved in managing these risks

Details on the identification and management of risks are also

included on page 29 in the Corporate Governance statement

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements

that are Wolfsons expectations and behefs about our future

business These statements are made by the Directors in good

faith based on information available to them at the time of the

approval of the report Undue reliance should not be placed on

such statements which are based on Wolfsons current plans

estimates projections and assumptions By their nature forward-

looking statements involve known and unknown risk and

uncertainty because they relate to events and depend on

circumstances which may occur in the future and which in some

cases are beyond Wolfsons control Actual results may differ from

those expressed in such statements depending on variety of

factors These factors include but are not limited to consumer and

market acceptance of the Companys products and the products

that use the Companys products decreases in the demand for the

Companys products excess inventory levels at the Companys

customers decline in average selling prices of the Companys

products cancellaton of existing orders or the failure to secure

new orders the Companys failure to introduce new products and

to implement new technologies on timely basis the Companys

failure to anticipate changing customer product requirements

fluctuations in manufacturing and assembly and test yields the

Companys failure to deliver products to its customers on timely

basis disruption in the supply of wafers or assembly testing

services the timing of significant orders increased expenses

associated with new product introductions masks or process

changes the commencement of or developments with respect to

any future litigation
the cyclicality of the semiconductor industry

and overall economic conditions

There are number of potential risks and uncertainties which could

have material impact on the Companys long-term performance

New product specffication and introductons

Specifying and then designing the correct products is fundamental

to the success of the Company Customers tend to have set des gn

windows that must be met for product to be selected and

missing these windows through being late or not meeting the

required specification can result in missing an entire end consumer

product cycle The average design cycle for the Companys

products can take 18 to 24 months to complete and achieve

volume production therefore missing cycle can take more than

two years to recover This long design cycle coupled with limited

customer visibility as to future requirements and plans makes

forecasting product demand and the timing of that demand difficult

There are also inherent risks in lengthy design cycles including risk

of future design loss to competitor isk of cancellation and limted

uptake for new products

Dependence on the growth of the consumer eectroncs market

The Companys future success is dependent on the growth of the

digital consumer electronics market and the successful adoption by

customers of its integrated circuits in their products The future size

of the digital audio portable devices digital imaging markets ard

other potential markets is uncertain and depends on number of

factors all of which are beyond the Companys control The failure

of these markets to develop as generally expected would have

material adverse effect on the business financial condition and

results of the Companys operations
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Catastrophic failure of enduser device in the field

The Company supplies components primarily into consumer

electronics products Many of the major consumer brands require

indemnities should customer product recall be required as

result of significant field failures caused by one of the Companys

components The Company looks to avoid such indemnities and

where given to limit the scope and quantum of the indemnity

however this is often not possible and indeed some indemnities

are unlimited in quantum To reduce this risk there are rigorous

procedures and controls on the design manufacture testing and

quality processes of the Company so as to avoid any components

being supplied that could result in such field failures The Company

also has significant but not unhmited product liability insurance in

place to cover such an event

Competitors

The markets in which the Company operates are very competitive

and are characterised by rapid technological change and evolving

standards Many of the Companys competitors are larger in size

have larger financial marketing and/or technical resources longer

tradng history and larger installed customer bases As result they

may devote greater resources to the development promotion and

sale of their products than the Company can These factors may

prevent the Company from competing successfully against current

or future competitors

Acquisitions

The Company expects to review further potential acquisition targets

as part of its Wolfson AudioPlus strategy The internal investment

case for such acquisitions may not materialise as planned In addition

the integrahon of acquired companies involves additional risk

including diversion of management time potential failure to realise

the synergy benefits anticipated from the acquisition the cultural

risk associated with integrating different companies in various

countries and risks associated with unexpected liabtities or events

arising post acquisition

Communication networks and informatmn technology

The Company depends on worldwide communication links

and accurate timely information and numerical data from key

information technology systems and software applications to

facilitate the daily operation of the business and decision making

Any disruption caused by failings in these systems of related

equipment or of communication networks could delay or otherwise

impact everyday decision making and some business operations

The Company has developed and tested disaster recovery

arrangements in order to minimise the disruption caused by

failings
in these systems

Foreign currency exposure

Refer to Treasury and Foreign Exchange section on page 16

Mark Cubitt

Chief Financial Officer
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Chairman Chief Fmancial Officer and Finance Director

Mr Ruettgers joined the Board and became Chairman on January

2008 and he is also chairman of the Nomination Committee and is

member of the Remuneration Committee Mr Ruettgers joined

EMC Corporation in 1988 and served as its Chief Executive Officer

from 1992 until January 2001 before becoming Executive

Chairman and finally Chairman until 2005 Under his leadership

EMC achieved dramatic growth over more than decade From his

arrival through year-end 2000 EMCs revenues grew from $120

million to nearly $9 billion EMC is now leading digital storage

company it is listed on the New York Stock Exchange Mr Ruettgers

is the lead independent director at the Raytheon Company also

New York Stock Exchange company Mr Ruettgers also serves as

non-executive director at the Orvis Company Inc

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

from January 2009

Mr Hickey was appointed to the Board on September 2008 as

Chief Executive Officer Designate and he became Chief Executive

Officer with effect from January 2009 Mr Hickey joined Wolfson

from Motorola Inc where from March 2005 he hold various senior

positions in Motorolas mobile device business Most recently he

was Senior Vice President and General Manager of the Multimedia

Product organisation reporting directly to the Mobile Devices

business president Previous to Motorola he served as non-

executive chairman of Incline Global Techno ogy Services Ltd and

prior to this Chief Executive Officer of Kymata Ltd both private UK

companies Mr Hickey has also held senior positions at Alcatel

Optronics until the end of 2002 and during an earlier period from

1993 to October 2000 at Motorola Prior to this he worked for

Digital Equipment Co Ltd and Philips Ltd Mr Hickey holds Sc

in Physics and Electronics from Brunel University London DMS

and an MBA from Portsmouth Business School He is member of

the nstitute of Management the Institution of Engineering and

Technology and is chartered engineer

Mr Cubitt joined the Board in January 2007 and serves as the

Chief Financial Officer and Finance Director Mr Cubitt was previously

Vice President of Finance at Jacobs Engineering in the UK and

Ireland He was the Finance Director of Babtie Group from 2001

until the sale of the company to Jacobs Engineering in 2004 when

he then took up wider finance role within Jacobs Before joining

Babtie Mr Cubitt was the Finance Director of Dawson International

PLC where he worked from 1996 until 2000 From 1988 to 1994

he held number of finance posts in Christian Salvesen PLC and

its then subsidiary Aggreko Mr Cubitt is Chartered Accountant

and has degree in Accountancy and Computer Science from

Heriot-Watt University and is currently the chairman of the

Scottish Finance Directors Discuss on Group

Nonexecutive Director

Mr Rose was appointed to the Boa-d in 2001 and serves as

non-executive director and is tie Senior Independent Director

He is chairman of the Companys Remuneration Committee and

is member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee

From 1993 to 2001 Mr Rose was Cnief Executive of Scottish

Provident UK Mr Rose is currently Chairman of Baillie Gifford

Shin Nippon plc and non-executive director of Optos plc and

of Dimensional Imaging Limited



Directors continued

5Alastair David Mime age 67

Non-executive Director

Dr Mime co-founded the Company in 1984 and served as the

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director until 28 February

2007 He remained an executive director of the Company until

November 2007 when he retired and was appointed as non-

executive director from November 2007 From 1973 to 1985

Dr Mime directed the Woltson Microelectronics Institute at Edinburgh

University which developed CAD software and integrated circuit

technology Dr Mime was Vice President of the Royal Society of

Edinburgh from October 1995 to September 1998 and is Fellow

of the Royal Academy of Engineers Dr Milne was Chairman of the

European Leadership Council of the Global Semiconductor Alliance

in 2007/2008 Dr Milne has been director and chairman of

Edinburgh International Science Festival Limited since 2007

Dr Mime was appointed director and chairman of the board of

Elonics Limited in September 2008 He has Doctorate in Physics

from Bristol University and was member of the Court of the

University of Edinburgh from 1998 until 31 August 2007 Dr Mime

has honorary Doctorates of Science from Universities of Heriot-Watt

and Edinburgh and an honorary Doctorate of Engineering from

Bristol University Dr Mime was awarded the OBE in 1985 for

services to industry

6Ross King Graham age 62

Non-executive Director

Mr Graham was appointed to the Board in September 2003 and

serves as non-executive director and chairman of the Audit

Committee He is also member of the Remuneration and

Nomination Committees Mr Graham qualified as chartered

accountant with Arthur Young in 1969 and was made partner of

that firm in 1981 In 1987 Mr Graham joined Misys on its flotation

as its Finance Director becoming Corporate Development Director

in 1998 and finally retiring from the Board at the end of 2003

Throughout his time at Misys he played key role in developing

and implementing its acquisition strategy Mr Graham also holds

non-executive directorship at Psion plc

7Robert Laurence Eckelmann age 53

Non-executive Director

Mr Eckelmann joined the Board in November 2004 and serves on

the Audit Nomination and Remuneration Committees From 1988

to 2002 Mr Eckelmann was employed by Intel Corporation where

he launched its Asian business and was then vice president and

general manager of the EMEA region Before joining Intel in 1988

Mr Eckelmann served for six years at the US Department of

Commerce responsible for high-tech trade policy and negotiations

with Asia and the EU Mr Eckelmann holds several non-executive

directorships including Emulation Verification Engineering MDS

Holdings and Xaar plc and he is chairman of Silecs OY

8GIenn Coflinson age 46

Non-executive Director

Mr Collinson was appointed to the Board on Se5tember 2008

and serves as non-executive director and is member of the

Audit Committee In 1998 Mr Collinson co-founded Cambridge

Silicon Radio CSR plc as start-up project and was member of

the board of directors that managed the growth of CSR through its

listing as public company in 2004 and up until 2007 serving first

as Marketing Director and then as Sales Director Prior.to CSR plc

Mr Collinson held positions including Senior Engineer and then

Marketing Manager at Cambridge Consultants Ltd from 1996 to

1998 and held positions as Design Engineer and Marketing

Manager at Texas Instruments from 1989 to 1996 He is member

of the Institution of Engineering and Technology and holds B.Sc

in Physics and an M.Sc in Electronics from Durham University

as well as an MBA from Cranfield University Mr Collinson currently

holds non-executive director positions at DiBcom SA at Inside

Contactless SA and at Solar Press Limited
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Dfrectors Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report and financial

statements for the 53 week period ended January 2010

Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged In the design manufacture and

supply of high performance mixed-signal integrated circuits The

Business Review on pages to 12 provides further details of the

principal activities of the Group

Financial

The Groups consolidated loss for the 53 week financial period

after taxation was $10224000 2008 $7666000 profit financial

review of the results for the 53 week period is set out on pages 13

to 19

The financial risk management objectives and policies and an

indication of the exposure to financial risk is included in note 21

to the financial statements

Dividends

The Companys current policy which is kept under regular review

is to retain future earnings for the development and- expansion of

the business Payment of any future dividends will be at the

discretion of the Board after taking into account various factors

including the Companys current and future cash requirements

development plans and operating results

Business Review

The report of the Directors should be read in conjunction with the

Chairmans Statement the Business Review and the Operating and

Financial Review on pages to 19 which contain details of the

principal activities of the Group during the period and an indication

of future developments The review of the business has been

divided into three areas and dealt with in this Annual Report as

follows

principal risks and uncertainties pages 17 to 19 of the

Operating and Financial Review

review of the development and performance of the business

and the position of the Group at January 2010 included in

the Business Review on pages to 12 and in the Operating and

Financial Review on pages 13 to 19 and

key performance indicators on page on page and on

pages 13 to 19

All of the information detailed in those sections which is required

for the business review or otherwise for this report is incorporated

by reference in and shall be deemed to form part of this report

Research and development

The Group continues to invest in research and development of

mixed-signal integrated circuits

Donations

The Group made no political contributions during the 53 week

period ended January 2010 Sponsorships and donations to UK

charities amounted to $313000 2008 $245000

Directors

The directors who held office at January 2010 and their interests

in the shares of the Company at that date are set out on page 41

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company

are set out on page 47 No director had during or at the end of the

financial period any material interest in any contract of significance

in relation to the Groups business

Michael Hickey having been appointed to the Board on

September 2008 as an executive director and Chief Executive

Officer Designate became Chief Executive Officer with effect from

January2009

David Allen Shrigley resigned from the Board with effect from

31 December 2008

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting Cubitt RK Graham

and AD Milne will retire by rotation and being eligible will offer

themselves for re-election

The names and biographical details for the directors who held

office at January 2010 are set out on pages 20 and 21 and details

of directors service contracts are set out in the Directors

Remuneration Report on pages 39 and 40

Appointment of directors

The holders of the Companys ordinary shares may by ordinary

resolution appoint any person to be director At each Annual

General Meeting AGM any director who was elected or last

re-elected at or before the AGM held in the third calendar year

before the then current calendar year must retire by rotation

retiring director is eligible for re-election unless the directors

have agreed otherwise

The Board may appoint director to fill casual vacancy or as

an additional director to hold office until the next AGM when that

director shall then be eligible for election

Directors responsibilities

The directors responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and

the financial statements are shown on page 48

Share capital and control

The Companys authorised share capital as at January 2010 was

135000.00 divided into 135000000 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence

each and there were 115238980 ordinary shares in issue as at

January 2010 all of which were fully paid Note 17 to the financial

statements contains information regarding the Companys share

capital including details of ordinary shares issued during the

period The ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange

The rights and obligations attaching to the Companys ordinary

shares in addition to those conferred on their holders by law are

set out in the Companys Articles of Association copy of which

can be obtained from Companies House or by writing to the

Company Secretary The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to

receive the Companys Annual Report and Accounts to attend and

speak at general meetings of the Company to appoint proxies and

to exercise voting rights
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Report continud

The Company may amend its Articles of Association Articles

by adopting new Articles by special resolution Amendments to the

Articles primarily to accommodate changes in company law arising

from the Companies Act 2006 were approved by the shareholders

at the Annual General Meeting held on 20 May 2009

At the Annual General Meeting to be held on 20 May 2010

shareholders will be asked to consider special resolution which

proposes amendments to the Companys current Articles of

Association The directors propose that new Articles of Association

are adopted in order to update the Companys current Articles

of Association primarily to take account of the coming into force

of the Shareholders Rights Regulations and the implementation

on October 2009 of the last parts of the Companies Act 2006

An explanation of the main proposed changes to the current

Articles of Association is included in the explanatory notes section

of the Notice of Annual General Meeting booklet which is being

sent to shareholders along with this Annual Report

The Board of Directors is responsible for the management of the

business of the Company and may exercise all the powers of the

Company subject to the provisions of relevant statutes and the

Companys Memorandum and Articles of Association

There are no known arrangements under which financial rights are

held by person other than the holder of the shares As far as the

Company is aware as at February 2010 there were no persons

with significant direct or indirect holdings of voting rights in the

Company other than as set out in the section on this page entitled

Substantial shareholdings

Significant agreements change of control

The Companys equity-based plans contain provisions relating to

change of control Share options would normally vest and become

exercisable on change of control subject to the satisfaction of

any performance conditions at that time Contingent share awards

would normally vest on change of control of the Company

subject to the satisfaction of any performance conditions and on

time apportioned basis The provisions of the deferred share award

granted to an executive director and the provisions of directors

long term incentive arrangement are noted on pages 45 and 46

respectively of the Directors Remuneration Report

The undrawn committed bank facility as referred to in note 21 to

the financial statements would terminate upon change of control

of the Company without the consent of the bank

Purchase of own shares

At the Annual General Meeting held on 20 May 2009 the shareholders

granted the Company the authority to purchase in the market its

own ordinary shares up to maximum of 11512098 ordinary

shares In 2009 the Company did not purchase any of its own

shares As reported in the 2008 Annual Report and Accounts at the

beginning of 2009 in view of the economic environment at that

time the Board decided to suspend the share buyback programme

which had been implemented in the second half of 2008 During

that period in 2008 totalof 3209000 of the Companys ordinary

shares were bought back and cancelled and the aggregate

consideration paid by the Company for those shares including

expenses was $6661000

The authority for the Company to purchase in the market its own

ordinary shares up to maximum of 11512098 ordinary shares

expires at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held

on 20 May 2010 and shareholders will be asked to give similar

authority at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting as set out

in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Substantial shareholdings

As at February 2010 the Company had received notifications

from the following parties that they have an interest in the ordinary

share capital of the Company

Artemis Investment

Management Limited 13882450 12.05% Direct

Blackrock Inc 12141815 10.54% Indirect

Majedie Asset Management Ltd 6347873 5.51% Indirect

Legal General Group Plc 7044985 6.11% Direct

Wellington Management

Company LLP 5543421 4.81% Indirect

DJ Carey 4553422 3.95% Direct

Employees

Employee involvement

The Company is committed to employee involvement throughout

the business and this is described on pages 30 and 31

The Company has established offshore employee share trusts in

connection with the Companys performance share plans and

executive shared ownership plan As at January 2010 these trusts

held total of 5056461 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the

capital of the Company The shares to which the trusts relate have

voting rights However under the terms of these trusts the trustees

have agreed to refrain from exercising voting rights otherwise than

to the extent the shares have vested

In 2010 subject to shareholder and HM Revenue and Customs

approval the Company plans to implement Save As You Earn

share option scheme in which all UK employees should be eligible

to participate

Employees with disabilities

The Companys policy is to give full and fair consideration to

suitable applications from people with disabilities for employment

If existing employees become disabled they will continue to be

employed wherever practicable in the same job or if this is not

practicable every effort will be made to find suitable alternative

employment and to provide appropriate training

Nuriber of issued

ordinary shars share capital

Nature of

holdi 19
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Directors Report continued

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Companys policy concerning the payment of creditors for goods

and services is to pay suppliers within 30 days of the end of the

calendar month in which the invoice is received net 30 day terms

unless alternative terms have been specifically agreed in advance

This policy and any specific terms agreed with suppliers are made

known to the appropriate staff and suppliers At January 2010 the

Company had 48 days 2008 29 days purchases in trade payables

Qualifying third party indemnity

Since 21 April 2005 qualifying third party indemnity provision

has been in force pursuant to the Companys current Articles

of Association

The Company maintains directors and officers liability insurance

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors

report confirm that so far as they are each aware there is no relevant

audit information of which the Companys auditors are unaware and

each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as

director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and

to establish that the Companys auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

resolution to reappoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors will be put

to the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 20 May 2010 in

Edinburgh The Notice of the Annual General Meeting is contained

in separate booklet which is being sent to shareholders along

with this Annual Report

Notice of general meetings

The Companies Act 2006 requires that all general meetings must be

held on 21 days notice unless shareholders agree to shorter notice

period The Company is currently able to call general meetings

other than AGM5 on 14 days notice if the conditions set out in the

Companies Act 2006 are met At the Annual General Meeting to be

held on 20 May 2010 special resolution will be proposed so that

the Company can continue to be able to do so The authority being

sought pursuant to this resolution will expire at the end of the next

annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2011 It is the

current intention of the directors to renew this authority annually

By order of the Board

Jill Goldsmith February 2010

Company Secretary

Edinburgh
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Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate

governance throughout the Group and therefore applies where

they are deemed appropriate the principles of corporate

governance set out in the Combined Code the Code as issued

in June 2008 The statement below describes how the directors

have applied the principles of corporate governance and the extent

to which the principles and provisions of the Code have been

complied with during the 53 week period ended January 2010

From January 2009 following the resignation on 31 December

2008 of DA Shrigley as an executive director the Board has

comprised eight directors the Chairman two executive directors

and five non-executive directors of whom four are independent in

accordance with the terms of the Code The four independent non-

executive directors in accordance with the Code are BM Rose

RK Graham Eckelmann and Collinson

The Board considered that on his appointment as Chairman on

January 2008 Ruettgers met the independence criteria as set

out in provision A.3.1 of the Code Biographical details of the

directors serving as at January 2010 are given on pages 20 and 21

Comphance with the Combined Code

The Group has complied throughout the 53 week period ended

January 2010 with the provisions set out in Section of the Code

Board composition and operation

The Board considers that it has an appropriate number of directors

who amongst them have the necessary range of skills and

experience given the size and complexity of the Group The Boards

view is that the independent directors are of sufficient calibre and

number that their views carry appropriate weight and influence on

the Boards decision making

The Board considers all of its non-executive directors to be

independent in character and judgement However only BM Rose

RK Graham Eckelmann and Collinson are independent in

terms of Code provision A.3.1 as none of these non-executive

directors

has been an employee of the Group within the last five years

has or has had within the last three years material business

relationship with the Group

receives remuneration other than directors fee participates in

the Companys share option schemes or is member of the

Companys pension scheme

has close family ties with any of the Groups advisers directors

or senior employees

holds cross-directorships or has significant links with other

directors through involvement in other companies or bodies

represents significant shareholder or

has served on the Board for more than nine years

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board

and the Chief Executive Officer is clearly delineated set out in

writing and is regularly reviewed and monitored by the Board

BM Rose is the Senior Independent Director

All directors must submit themselves for election at the annual

general meeting following their appointment and thereafter for

re-election at least once every three years The non-executive

directors are generally initially appointed for fixed terms of three

years In 2007 the Board in accordance with the terms of his letter

of appointment invited Eckelmann to serve for an additional

period of three years in 2008 BM Rose was invited to serve for an

additional period of two years and the Board invited RK Graham

during 2009 to serve for an additional period of three years Each

of these non-executive directors accepted those extensions to his

term of appointment The Group seeks to retain the services of the

non-executive directors for periods that may be longer than is

recommended by the Code due to their experience and knowledge

The terms and conditions of appointment of non-executive

directors are available for inspection at the Companys registered

office during normal business hours These terms and conditions

are also made available for inspection on the day of the Companys

annual general meeting

There is formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board

which has been reviewed and updated since the beginning of 2009

The responsibilities of the Board include determining and setting

the strategic direction of the Group and approving the business

plan and annual budget ensuring that high standards of corporate

governance are maintained monitoring the performance of the

Group approving financing and significant capital expenditure

authorising significant transactions reviewing the Groups systems

of risk management and internal bontrol approving appointments

to the Board and of the Company Secretary determining the scope

of delegations to Board committees approving policies relating to

directors remuneration dealing with the appointment and removal

of the Companys principal advisers and auditors and ensuring that

satisfactory dialogue takes place with shareholders The Board is

responsible for reviewing and approving the annual report and

accounts the interim management report and half yearly financial

report and quarterly results announcements and for ensuring that

these present balanced assessment of the Groups position

The Board delegates to management responsibility inter alia for

the implementation of the strategies and policies of the Group as

determined by the Board monitoring the operating and financial

results against budgets and managing and controlling the allocation

of capital human and technical resources The Board regujarly

receives detailed financial and operational information in order

for it to monitor the performance of the key areas of the business
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The Board normally meets at least eight times during the year and

may meet at other times at the request of any director The number

of scheduled Board meetings and committee meetings attended by

each director during the 53 week period ended January 2010 was

as follows

Ruettgers 1010 n/a

JM Hickey 10 10 n/a n/a n/a

MCubitt 1010 n/a n/a n/a

ADMilne 1010 n/a n/a n/a

Shrigley n/a n/a

BM Rose 1010 55
RK Graham 1010

Eckelmann 10
Collinson 10 10 n/a n/a

resigned from the Board on 31 December 2008

The figures in brackets indicate the totsi number of meelings held in the period during

which the individual was director and member of the relevant Committee

When directors were unable to attend Board meetings they were

provided with all of the documentation for the meeting and were

given the opportunity to provide their views to the Chairman or

the Chief Executive Officer regarding the matters to be discussed

The minutes from the meeting were then provided as appropriate

During the year the Chairman has held meetings with the non-

executive directors without the executive directors present

An induction process is in place for any new director tailored to

the individual directors requirements in the light of his or her

experience and prior industry knowledge

In 2009 the Board again applied formal process for evaluating

the performance and effectiveness of the Board its committees

and its members This was performed through series of detailed

questionnaires completed by the members of the Board and its

committees towards the end of the year The results of this

evaluation were collated and reported by the Chairman so that

follow up actions can be implemented The general results of this

evaluation process were communicated to the rest of the Board

and any specific feedback communicated to the individual directors

Appropriate actions are then identified and taken The Senior

Independent Director conducts the annual performance evaluation

of the Chairman taking into account the views of all directors

formal process of evaluation of the performance and effectiveness

of the Board and its committees is conducted on an annual basis

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company

Secretary and to the provision of independent professional advice

in furtherance of their duties at the Companys expense The Company

maintained directors and officers
liability

insurance cover

throughout 2009 This insurance cover has been renewed for 2010

Conflicts of interest

The Company has procedures in place to deal with conflicts of

interest and believes that the procedures are operated

appropriately inaccordance with the Companys Articles of

Association and relevant legislation Any decision of the Board to

authorise conflict of interest is only effective if it is agreed without

the conflicted directors being included in the quorum at any

meeting at which such authorisation is given and is only effective

if it is agreed without the conflicted directors voting or without their

votes being counted The Board will continue to monitor and review

potential conflicts of interest on regular basis The Audit

Committee will keep under review any conflict or potential conflict

of interest situations authorised by the Board and determine

whether it is appropriate for such matter to remain so authorised

Committees of the Board

The Board has Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee

and an Audit Committee The terms of reference for each

committee can be found on the Investor Relations section of the

Groups website at www.wolfsonmicro.com The Board also has

Treasury Committee

Nomination Committee

Committee Chairman Ruettgers

Committee Members BM Rose

RK Graham

Eckelmann

DA
Shrigley until

31 December 2008

majority of the members of the Nomination Committee during the

53 week period were independent non-executive directors The

Nomination Committee which meets not less than once per year

has responsibility for considering the size structure and

composition of the Board and its committees the retirements and

appointments of additional and replacement directors and makes

appropriate recommendations to the Board It was considered by

the Board to be appropriate to have DA Shrigley as member of this

committee until his resignation as director on 31 December 2008

as he has many years of experience in the industry and was able to

provide valuable input regarding suitable candidates for the Board

The Nomination Committee considers that the current composition

of the Board is satisfactory to provide the proper governance

administration and business counsel of the Companys affairs It will

continue to monitor the situation in 2010

The other significant commitments of each non-executive director

are required to be disclosed to the Board prior to his appointment

and the Board is kept informed of subsequent changes to these

commitments

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee were

reviewed during the period and there were no significant changes

to these terms

Scheduled Audit Remuneration
Nomination

Board committee committee committee

meetings meetings meetings meetings
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Remuneration Committee

Committee Chairman

Committee Members

BM Rose

Eckelmann

RK Graham

Ruettgers

Only non-executive directors served on the Remuneration

Committee in 2009 although the Chief Executive Officer is normally

invited to attend meetings of this Committee

The Remuneration Committee which normally meets at least three

times year has the delegated responsibility

for making recommendations to the Board on the policy for

remuneration of executive directors and other senior management

for reviewing the performance of executive directors and senior

management and

for determining within agreed terms of reference specific

remuneration packages for each of the executive directors and

senior management including pension rights any compensation

payments and the implementation of executive incentive schemes

The Board is responsible for setting the remuneration of the non-

executive directors subject to the limits contained in the Articles of

Association In accordance with the Remuneration Committees

terms of reference no director may participate iii discussions

relating to his own terms and conditions of service or remuneration

During the period since the beginning of 2009 the Terms of

Reference of the Remuneration Committee were reviewed revised

and approved by the Board The revisions to these Terms of

Reference did not fundamentally alter the role and responsibilities

of the Remuneration Committee

During 2009 the business discussed and considered by the

Remuneration Committee included

review and discussion of feedback from meetings held with

shareholders and investor bodies which the chairman of the

Committee and another member of the Committee attended

review of AGM voting guidelines as issued by investor groups

in respect of the notice of the 2009 annual general meeting

approval of cash bonus payments in respect of 2008

assessment of the extent to which performance conditions had

been achieved for those performance share plan awards and

ExSOP awards which had been granted in 2006 and the

performance period for those awaids concluded at the end of 2008

review and approval that for 2009 there would be no increases

in basic salaries for directors senior management and all other

employees

agreement of 2009 remuneration packages and setting of

performance targets for 2009 performance-related remuneration

for directors and senior management

negotiation and approval of remuneration packages for incoming

senior management

obtaining and reviewing comparative remuneration data from

external organisations

review of compensation structure for employees across the Group

review and approval of long term incentive arrangements for

awards in 2009

review and approval of contingant share awards to employees

other than executive directors and senior managers

review and approval of cash bonus arrangements for all

employees

review of the Companys pension arrangements including the

funding position of the defined benefit pension scheme

review and updating of the Committees terms of reference

review of best practice in remuneration policies and

consideration of 2010 executive remuneration policy

Further information regarding the activities of the Remuneration

Committee in 2009 is included in the Directors Remuneration

Report which is set out on pages 34 to 47

Executive directors can accept external appointments as non-

executive directors of other companies and retain any fees paid to

them if such an appointment does not conflict with their duties to the

Company Specific approval of the Board is required in each case

Audit Committee

Committee Chairman

Committee Members

RK Graham

BM Rose

Eckelmann

Collinson

Only independent non-executive directors serve on the Audit

Committee and members of the Audit Committee have no links with

the external auditors The Board considers that the members of the

Audit Committee have sufficient recent and relevant financial

experience to discharge its functions Members of this committee

have considerable past employment experience in either finance or

accounting roles or comparable experience incorporate activities

The Audit Committee normally convenes at least three times per

year and meets the external auditors at least twice year with no

executive directors present During 2009 the Audit Committee met

five times with the external auditors present at four of these meetings

During the period since the beginning of 2009 the Terms of Reference

of the Audit Committee were reviewed revised and approved by the

Board The revisions to these Terms of Reference did not fundamentally

alter the role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for amongst other things making

recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the external

auditors and their remuneration The Audit Committee considers

the nature scope and results of the auditors work and reviews and

reserves the right to approveany non-audit services that are to be

provided by the external auditors see reference on page 28 to Policy

on Use of External Auditors for Non-audit Services On internal

controls the Audit Committee participates in the risk review process

and links this to the implications for internal controls assessment
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The Audit Committee reviews the programmes of both the external

auditors and the internal audit function and findings therefrom

It receives and reviews reports from management and the Groups

auditors relating to the Groups annual report and accounts

The Audit Committee focuses particularly on compliance with legal

requirements accounting standards and the Listing Rules and on

ensuring that the auditors have full access to accounting records

and personnel to enable them to undertake their work The ultimate

responsibility for reviewing and approving the annual report and

accounts remains with the Board

During 2009 the business discussed and considered by the Audit

Committee included

the review of the Groups preliminary announcement of the

financial results for the 52 week period ended 28 December 2008

the 2009 half yearly financial report and the quarterly results

announcements prior to approval by the Board and their release

the consideration and review of the Groups 2008 financial

statements and the 2009 half yearly financial report prior to

Board approval and reviewing the relevant external auditors

detailed reports

monitoring the ongoing compliance with International Financial

Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

adopted IFRS by the Group and by the Company

the consideration and review of the appropriateness of the

Groups and the Companys accounting policies in accordance

with IFRS in particular the adoption of IFRS Operating

segments refer to note of the financial statements

the review and consideration of the accounting treatment and

disclosure of the exceptional charge in the Groups financial

statements for 2009

the review and consideration of the significant areas of

management judgement and estimate in relation to financial

reporting matters as summarised in note 26 to the financial

statements

the consideration and review of compliance with legal

requirements and the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and

Transparency Rules of the UK Listing Authority

the review of key performance indicators

the review and discussion of the proposals from the external

auditors and the internal audit function regarding their audit

programmes for 2009 with particular regard to the assessment

of internal systems and controls and assessment of the

adequacy of internal controls generally

the approval of the audit fee and reviewing non-audit fees

payable to the Groups external auditors

the review of reports from management on the Groups main

risks and the assessment and management of those risks

including those arising from the global economic downturn

the review of the reports from the internal audit and compliance

functions and the external auditors on the Groups systems of

internal control and its effectiveness reporting to the Board on

the results of the review

the review of the appropriateness of the Groups whistle

blowing policy by which staff of the Company may in

confidence raise concerns about possible improprieties in

matters of financial reporting or other matters

the consideration and review of non-audit servides by the

external auditors in accordance with the policy regarding the

provision of those services

the monitoring and assessment of the independence of the

external auditors and

the review of the performance of the external auditors at the

beginning of 2009 which resulted in the Audit Committee

recommending that resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG

Audit Plc as the Companys external auditors be proposed to

shareholders at the annual general meeting in May 2009

The Audit Committee has discussed with the external auditors their

independence and has reviewed the written disclosures received

from them as required by the Auditing Practices Boards International

Standard on Auditing ISA UK and Ireland 260 Communication of

Audit Matters to those Charged with Governance

During 2009 the Audit Committee reviewed the Policy on the Use

of External Auditors for Non-audit Services which aims to monitor

the non-audit services being provided to the Group by its external

auditors The purpose of this review was to consider whether the

policy continues to be appropriate or if any amendments to the

policy were required No significant amendments were made to the

policy as result of this review This policy should ensure that non-

audit work is only undertaken by the external auditors when they

are the most suited to undertake it Any non-audit work involving

expenditure of more than $30000 requires approval of the

chairman of the Audit Committee The policy specifically prohibits

the external auditors from making management decisions for the

Group being put in the role of advocate for the Group or

conducting any other work which is prohibited by ethical guidance

The amounts paid to the external auditors during the period for

audit and other services are set out in note to the financial

statements on page 66 The amount of non-audit fees is not

significant overall and therefore it is considered that KPMGs

independence is not compromised

The Audit Committee also monitors the arrangements by which

staff of the Company may in confidence raise concerns about

possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other

matters whistle blowing policy was implemented and

communicated to all staff several years ago which details the

arrangements which are in place for the proportionate and

independent investigation of such matters and for the appropriate

follow up actions This policy was reviewed by the Committee

during 2009 and is considered still to be appropriate It is included

in the Staff Handbook and is available for reference to all

employees on the Companys intranet
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Treasury Committee

The Treasury Committee is chaired by RK Graham and its other

members are the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial

Officer This committee meets periodically as required and

provides report to the Board after each meeting The Treasury

Committee reviews the Groups overall financial risk management

including specific areas such as foreign exchange risk and related

hedging policies interest rate risk credit risk and liquidity

management The policies of the Group and the Company in these

areas are explained in note 21 to the financial statements on pages

91 to 98 The Treasury Committee reports to and makes

recommendations to the Board regarding these matters During

2009 the Committee reviewed the Treasury Policy to ensure its

ongoing appropriateness and adequacy and considered the

hedging policy as referred to in note 21 of the financial statements

on pages 91 and 92

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Groups systems of

internal control and risk management and for monitoring their

effectiveness The purpose of these systems is to manage rather

than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives

and provide reasonable assurance as to the quality of management

information and to maintain proper control over income

expenditure assets and liabilities of the Group with particular

reference to the risks identified No system of control can however

provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

It should be noted that in the context of the Disclosure and

Transparency Rules of the UK Listing Authority section 7.1 the

Audit Committee reviews the Companys internal financial controls

and the Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing the wider

internal control and risk management system

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectiveness of the

system of internal control for the period under review and up to the

date of the approval of the financial statements

The Board has established an internal control framework consistent

with the guidance issued by the Turnbull Committee The Board

seeks regular assurance to enable it to satisfy itself that the

systems of internal control are functioning effectively and to ensure

that they are effective in managing risks The key elements of the

systems of internal controls are as follows

Control environment

The Group has operational and financial controls and procedures

These controls include physical controls segregation of duties

authorisation controls and reviews by management

Risk identification

The Board has established process of identifying evaluating and

managing the key commercial financial and general risks facing the

Groups business This risk identification and review process has

been in place for the period under review and up to the date of

approval of the Annual Report and Accounts The Board undertakes

regular review to analyse how the key business risks are being

managed consistent with the strategy objectives and activities of

the business and its risk profile Regular meetings take place to

review the status of actions procedures and controls aimed to

mitigate or manage the key business risks The outcomes from

these meetings are reported to the Board on regular basis The

key business risks identified are taken into account by the Board

when assessing the Groups internal controls

Financial reporting and monitoring of operations

detailed annual plan is collated from submissions by each

functional department The plan is reviewed by the executive

directors and approved by the Board The annual plan is monitored

on monthly and quarterly basis and is used to monitor and control

actual performance Monthly financial information including trading

results cash flow statement and operating expenses details are

presented and explained in comparison to the plan to the Board

The trading and operating results compared to the plan for each

functional department are also reported to the Board each month

The executive directors hold meetings on at least weekly basis

with the senior managers to review business and financial

performance compared to the plan and forecasts and also to

discuss operational matters including order levels compared to

forecasts product and project status and manufacturing statistics

Relevant matters arising from these meetings are reported to the

Board by the respective members of the senior management team

balanced scorecard was used during 2009 to set specific

business objectives for the year comprising both financial and non

financial metrics and to monitor performance across the business

against those objectives during each quarter in 2009

Capital investment

Capital expenditure requirements are assessed as part of the

annual plan Strict authorisation processes are laid down for the

making of capital investment commitments against the plan

Monitoring and corrective action

There are procedures in place to monitor the systems of internal

controls These include the performance of internal audit

procedures which are aligned with the areas of key business risk

The annual internal audit plan is reviewed and approved by the

Audit Committee Reports of the findings and conclusions from the

internal audit procedures are reviewed by the Audit Committee and

the status of theimplementation of the agreed actions is monitored

The Group has Quality Management System QMS which

underwent reassessment by BSI in June 2009 and now conforms

to BS EN ISO 9001 2008 This lays out the fundamentals required

to control all aspects of product development and delivery in

support of the Groups business goals and customer satisfaction

An integral part of the QMS is the phase review process for

delivering and monitoring the introduction of new products Internal

audits are conducted to documented schedule ensuring ongoing

compliance with the requirements of BS EN ISO 9001 2008

Management review meetings are held bn regular basis to

monitor the effectiveness of the BS EN ISO 9001 2008 system

Third party audits are conducted by British Standard Institution

to verify continued compliance with BS EN ISO 9001 2008
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Going concern

The Groups business activities together with the factors likely to

affect its future development performance and position are set out

in the Business Review and the Operating and Financial Review on

pages to 19 The financial position of the Group its cash flows

and
liquidity position are described within the Operating and

Financial Review on pages 13 to 19 In addition note 21 to the

financial statements includes the Groups financial risk

management objectives details of its financial instruments and

hedging activities its exposures to credit and liquidity risk and its

objectives policies and processes for managing its capital

The Group has considerable financial resources comprising as at

January 2010 cash and cash equivalents balances of $14.5 million

and short-term deposits of $83.3 million as well as an undrawn

committed multi-option facility of $30 million and this facility

expires in March 2011 The Group has no loans nor borrowings nor

complex financial instruments The Group has established

relationships with number of the leading global consumer

electronics manufacturers and integrated circuits developed by the

Group are designed into range of the end products for these

customers refer to Chairmans Statement and Business Review on

pages to 12 The Group continues to invest in the development

of new innovative products as explained in the Business Review

and Operating and Financial Review on pages to 19 As

consequence the directors believe that the Group is well placed to

manage its business risks successfully despite the current

uncertain general economic outlook

The directors have reviewed the latest forecast results and cash

flow projections After making enquiries the directors have

reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the

foreseeable future The financial statements for the 53 week period

ended January 2010 have therefore been prepared on going

concern basis

Communications with shareholders

The directors believe firmly in the importance of communication

with shareholders In order to provide information regarding the

Groups trading and financial performance on regular basis

the Company produces quarterly results announcements

The Group also has policy of maintaining an active dialogue with

institutional shareholders through individual meetings with these

shareholders attended by members of the Board and their

participation in conference meetings and calls relating to results

announcements After these meetings the views of these

shareholders are reported to and discussed by the rest of the

Board All non-executive directors are available to meet with major

shareholders if requested Ruettgers BM Rose and RK Graham

met with most of the Companys major shareholders during 2009

During the period regular dialogue has been maintained with

institutional shareholders analysts and the financial press Investor

relations and other information is published on the Companys

website at www.wolfsonmicro.com

Shareholders who attend the annual general meeting AGM are

invited to ask questions and meet with the directors informally after

the meeting The numbers of proxy votes cast in respect of each

resolution are announced after the resolution has been voted on

Following the AGM in 2009 summary of the proxy votes lodged

was published on the Companys website The Company intends to

propose separate resolution at theAGM in 2010 on each

substantially separate issue and in particular intends to propose

resolution at the AGM relating to the Annual Report and Accounts

2009 The chairmen of the Audit Remuneration and N9mination

Committees are available to answer questions relating to the

Annual Report and Accounts at the AGM Notice of the AGM and

related papers are sent to shareholders at least 20 working days

before the meeting

Organisation and people

Our People

Our success depends upon our 400 skilled and motivated

employees around the world So at the heart of our Human Resource

and Organisational Development strategies is being an employer of

choice In return for our employees contribution to our success we

aim to provide them with diverse and challenging environment

An environment where they can be developed and rewarded and

one where they can excel and which they choose to be in

Recruiting and retaining our people

We also aim to attract and retain the best available talent across

all of our functions and even more so when the economic outlook

is uncertain In 2009 we have reinforced lines of communication

between our senior management team the Leadership Team
and all of our employees so we can provide constant updates

against the strategy and plans and gather feedback on

companywide activities As result of this and the careful attention

and creativity we bring to the employee focused programmes we

have particularly high retention with an annualised retention rate

of greater than 98%

In 2009 our graduate recruitment programme was expanded with

the highest number of graduates recruited in one intake in Wolfsons

history from multiple universities and colleges This reflects our desire

to diversify our employee base and refresh our talent pool allowing

our current employees to move upwards within the organisation

Towards the end of the fourth quarter of 2009 an employee opinion

survey was conducted whereby all employees were invited to

participate using non-attributable on-line questionnaire

administered by The HR Leadership Council part of The Corporate

Executive Board There was high level of participation in this

survey with over three quarters of employees completing the

questionnaire The results of this survey were analysed and

benchmarked against other similar sized companies in the hi-tech

sector The results show high commitment to Wolfson of our

employees with engagement and retention indices being amongst

the highest scores The overall results are being used to irjitiate

continuous improvement projects
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Developing our people

Employee development activities in 2009 included the launch of

our Career Management Programme which has delivered

comprehensive programme for career management Career ladder

structures now exist for every function bringing clarity and insight

into the potential career progression both within function and by

cross functional moves The career ladders make it evident that

both managerial and technical career carry equal weight and

that following technical career path also allows growth and

seniority We have also implemented behavioural competency
framework into our performance management programme which

sets very clear definitions about the types of behaviours we expect

from our employees Focus Accountability Teamwork

Communication and Innovation The performance management

programme is directly linked to pay so that those employees who

are demonstrating the right behaviours and performing well can be

assured of rewards

The Company is committed to developing quality leadership

technical and management capability During 2009 we continued to

invest in the development of our people through our structured

management essentials programme and through focused

development activities to create high performing teams across

number of our functions Technical training also remains critical in

driving the development of our people supported by coaching and

mentoring programmes

The Company continues to support professional development and

is currently supporting anumber of employees studying for

professional qualifications The Company supports professional

qualifications and reimburses professional institution membership

fees where appropriate

Rewarding our people

Our remuneration packages are we believe competitive and we

continually review this position by using appropriate salary survey

and market data which directly reflects the market in which we

operate Our philosophy is very much to pay for performance Our

non-cash recognition programme also provides our managers

with many other forms and types of recognition so they can reward

and motivate our people through one-off rewards such as

weekend break vouchers for the cinema dinner out with family

Managers are encouraged to think about the reward ensuring that

the reward matches the employeesinterests

Share ownership

The Company operates discretionary employee share schemes

This includes the Companys all employee share option scheme

and also contingent share award scheme which although

discretionary are used to provide option grants or contingent share

awards to the Companys employees In 2010 subject to

shareholder and HM Revenue and Customs approval the

Company plans to implement Save As You Earn share option

scheme in which all UK employees should be eligible to participate

In this way the Company seeks to encourage the involvement of

employees in the Companys performance There is also

shareholding policy which is applicable to the executive directors

and senior management team as described on page 39 in the

Directors Remuneration Report
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Although the Company is accountable to its shareholders it also

recognises that it has responsibilities to other stakeholders which

include employees see pages 30 and 31 customers suppliers

and the local communities in which it operates The Board accepts

its responsibility to be accountable to all stakeholders

The Company is dedicated to supplying high quality products

which meet the requirements of its customers in manner

consistent with high environmental and ethical standards These

principles form an integral part of the Companys management

processes and operations throughout the world

Environment

The Companys policy is to behave in an environmentally

responsible manner consistent with and in compliance with local

legislation and protocols The Company requires its subcontractors

to have BS EN ISO 14001 2004 certification and to conform to the

Montreal Protocol for substances that deplete the ozone layer and

to relevant local legislation to ensure control and/or elimination of

materials recognised as hazardous Additionally the Company

recycles waste materials where possible and where appropriate

encourages its suppliers and or subcontractors to do likewise

The Company attained BS EN ISO 14001 2004 certification in

2005 It has mature environmental management system for

assessing controlling and monitoring the potential environmental

impact of activities at the Companys premises and at those of its

subcontractors programme of targets and objectives subject to

periodic review is in place to ensure continual improvement and to

prevent pollution The Company has established an environmental

training procedure for relevant staff The Companys Environmental

Policy and Environmental Manual are available for reference by all

employees on the Companys intranet The Environmental Policy is

also available on request to the public

The Company has adopted the Joint Industry Guide Standard

JIG-i 01 an industry consensus on material bans restrictions and

disclosures The Company also reviews any customer requirements

beyond JIG-i Di of which it is made aware The Company requires

its subcontractors to demonstrate that they do not use what are

internationally considered to be harmful materials All Wolfson

products are fully compliant with the EC Directive on Restriction of

Hazardous Substances without any reliance on exemptions and

are halogen-free as defined in IEC 61 249-2-21 The Company

continues to receive enquiries from customers about whether

EC Regulation 1907/2006 concerning the Registration Evaluation

Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals REACH applies to

the Companys products It has been established that REACH does

not apply the products are articles as defined by the Regulation

and they contain no Substances of Very High Concern SVHC5
as defined at present The Company regularly reviews the REACH

list of SVHCs in order to be able to respond appropriately should

any additions to the list make this necessary so as to ensure that

REACH continues not to be applicable

The responsibility for the Companys environmental policy and

management has been delegated by the Board to the Chief

Executive Officer who reports back to the Board at least annually

This includes the setting of the policies of the environmental

management system its objectives and targets The Vice President

of Quality is responsible for the implementation and maintenance of

the environmental management system in accordance with the

requirements of BS EN ISO i400i 2004 Management review

meetings are held on regular basis to monitor the performance of

the environmental management system Environmental reporting is

verified through audit procedures performed by the British

Standards Institution for compliance with BS EN ISO 14001 2004

Ethical business practices

Wolfson is fabless semiconductor company based in the UK with

subcontracted manufacturing operations overseas The Company

aims to ensure that the products which it supplies are manufactured

by subcontractors to internationally recognised ethical and

environmental standards and laws such as the Electronic Industry

Code of Conduct EICC The Companys key suppliers must

confirm in writing that they meet these standards and laws

All employees are expected to behave ethically when working for

the Company and this is reflected in the policies which are detailed

in the employee handbook Ethical business practices are integral

to the Company and are reflected in the practices in relation to

recruitment disciplinary matters and grievances

In recent years in line with the Companys objectives the Company

has enhanced its ethics policy which was communicated to all

employees Employees concerned about ethics within the

organisation are encouraged to raise their concerns with the

Human Resources department their line manager or to follow the

guidance in the Companys whistle blowing policy

Wolfson is committed to the principle of equal opportunity in

employment and its internal procedures reflect this The principle is

supported by the Companys recruitment disciplinary and

grievance procedures

The Company recognises its legal responsibilities to ensure the well

being safety and welfare of its employees and to maintain safe

environment for visitors and any subcontractors while they are on

the Companys premises All staff are instructed on the Companys

health and safety policy which can be accessed by all employees

on the Companys intranet The Vice President of Quality has

responsibility delegated by the Board for the Companys health

and safety matters
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Local Community

The Company aims to make contribution to the communities in

which it operates The responsibility for community matters has

been delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive Officer within

agreed budgetary parameters community relations programme

which includes proposed levels and categories of sponsorship and

charitable donations was approved by the Board during 2009

The principal elements are education sports and event

sponsorship and employee charity matching

The Company provides scholarship programme for number of

students at Edinburgh University during their engineering degree

courses and for post-graduate research fellowships As well as

providing financial support the programme includes placements

for work experience and project work within the Company

During 2009 the Company sponsored an exhibit in the Edinburgh

International Science Festival aimed at raising childrens awareness

and interest in science The Company has also committed to

funding events in 20 Edinburgh based schools run by Generation

Science for the same purpose The Company provides sponsorship

to employees who undertake fundraising activities for charities and

supports community projects in which employees participate

In 2009 the Group supported charitable and community activities

including the scholarship programmes with donations and

sponsorships totalling $313000 2008 $245000
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This report describes the current arrangements for the

remuneration of executive directors and senior management as

agreed by the Remuneration Committee Committee The

arrangements for these aspects of remuneration in 2009 and the

remuneration policy for 2010 are included This report also provides

the details of the remuneration of the non-executive directors as

approved by the Board of Directors The report has been prepared

on behalf of the Board by the Committee In addition to meeting

statutory requirements particularly the Companies Act 2006 the

Committee has aimed to comply with the best practice guidelines

in producing this report

Role of the Remuneration Committee

During 2009 the Remuneration Committee was comprised of

BM Rose Chairman of the Remuneration Committee RK Graham

Ruettgers and Eckelmann Ruettgers is Chairman of the

Board of Directors of the Company and was independent upon his

appointment to the Board on January 2008 All other members

of the Committee are independent non-executive directors of the

Company The terms of reference of the Committee which are

reviewed annually are published on the Investor Relations section of

the Companys website at www.wolfsonmicre.com The Committee

meets at least three times year and as shown on page 26 there

were meetings of the Committee held in the 53 week period

ended January 2010 list of some of the Committees activities

during the period is set out on page 27

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee as delegated by

the Board is to establish the remuneration and its composition

for the executive directors and senior management team In so

doing the Committee aims to ensure that the remuneration policy

supports long term growth in shareholder value including the

implementation and achievement of the strategy of the Company

in manner that is consistent with the Companys culture and risk

appetite as agreed by the Board The Committee therefore adopts

the following approach to key aspects of remuneration policy and

these were reviewed by the Committee during 2009

Remuneration Philosophy

Our objective is to offer remuneration packages that attract

motivate and retain highly talented individuals to promote and

share in the future success of the Company Packages are

structured to meet business needs and to focus employees on

their contributions to the achievement of the Companys

strategic objectives and goals in manner consistent with the

Companys appetite for risk In determining such packages and

arrangements we give full regard to any relevant legal

requirements the provisions and recommendations in the

Combined Code and the UK Listing Authoritys Listing Rules and

associated guidance including that from investor bodies

We aim to offer fair and proper reward for the efforts skills and

performance of our people that is suitably structured to reflect

individual commitment performance and level of responsibility

Whilst basic salary is structured to be competitive all variable

incentives are subject to performance requirements thus aligning

outcomes with the long term interests of our shareholders We are

happy to reward exceptional performance appropriately and

to have due regard to the individuals seniority and role

However there is no concept of being rewarded for failure

Non performers are not rewarded through basic salary increases

bonus or share schemes and are aOtively managed through clear

performance management process either to improve or to exit

The Committee considers pay levels elsewhere in the Company

when determining directors remuneration The Committee

considers total expected remuneration and its shape as the

basis for reviewing remuneration packages rather than targeting

their components Remuneration packages for executive directors

and senior managers are reviewed annually by the Committee

For executive directors and senior managers the Committee

thinks it appropriate to set demanding and longer term performance

requirements in line with the Companys strategic objectives

and that long term incentives should be greater part of their

remuneration as they are in position to influence long term

performance to much greater extent than more junior colleagues

Principles for short term performance-related remuneration

We aim to judge performance of our people through mixture

of metrics using balanced scorecard approach to target our

strategic objectives and by the application of an open and fair

appraisal scheme for all employees Our compensation and

benefit programmes are designed to motivate desirable

employee behaviours actions and results with view to aligning

interests with those of our shareholders The metrics we use are

mixture of challenging financial targets and non financial ones

such as product development customer satisfaction etc

However the more senior an individual in the Company the

higher the proportion of variable pay that is dependent on

meeting financial metrics We are very aware of the Companys

need to be profitable and consider carefully the affordability of

incentives and the setting of appropriate amounts and

conditions We also take great care to ensure that our targeting

is consistent with the Companys desired level of risk

Policy for remuneration on appointment

The default position for any starter or retention packages for

executive director and senior manager positions is that any

discretionary up front awards are linked to the performance of

the Companyover at least required three year period and are

expressed in shares This may be varied in difficult recruitment

conditions

Policy for remuneration on termination or severance

For the executive directors as stated on page 39 contractual

notice periods are 12 months and for the senior management

team they range from to 12 months depending on role

The Committee considers and if appropriate approves any

severance packages relating to executive directors or senior

managers In so doing we have agreed policy of notice

payments commencing from the date of resignation

Consideration of payment in lieu of notice is only made where

it is at the Companys request that the employee does not

require to work their period of notice Where discretion may be

applied to payments we pro-rate for time and performance

conditions and also restrict any payments to maximum of

100% of salary unless legal or contractual considerations

dictate otherwise For bad leavers as defined under the relevant

scheme rules all unvested long term incentive plan LTIP
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awards shall lapse subject to the scheme rules It is at the

discretion of the Remuneration Committee subject to the

relevant scheme rules to determine whether the share-based

awards which are deemed to have vested in the circumstances

are transferred to a- good leaver as soon as practicable or left

in place until the end of the original performance period for the

LTIP award

Shareholding policy

We would like all our senior managers to become shareholders

in the Company to align further their interests with those of

shareholders Our shareholding policy will be strengthened in

2010 to make it more effective by encouraging executive directors

and senior managers to build up over sometime and to maintain

holding of shares in the Company to the value of 100% and

50% respectively of salary This should be achieved by the

retention of 50% of the net shares from vested LTIP5 from the

2010 LTIP award onwards We are also reviewing methods of

encouraging wider ownership of the Companys shares by more

junior colleagues refer to page 31 for further details

Other remuneration policies

We approve the key elements for the remuneration policies

elsewhere in the Company In so doing we review the consistency

of remuneration levels between different grades as well as being

fair in relation to the external environment and the actions of

competitors All bonus schemes in the Company with the

exception of our sales team are comprised of the same metrics

based on balanced scorecard approach but potential payouts

vary by grade of employee

The remuneration of non-executive directors excluding that of

the Chairman is matter for the Chairman and the executive

members of the Board No director or manager is involved in any

decisions about his own remuneration

Advisers to the Committee

During 2009 PricewaterhouseCoopers advised the Committee

about remuneration practices and trends in the UK and elsewhere

The Committee also obtained variety of remuneration reviews

surveys and data including Towers Watson and the annual reports

of similar and competitor companies to inform itself of

remuneration practices for executive and other positions of similar

and competitor companies Pinsent Masons also advised the

Committee during the year in relation to the all employee

contingent share award scheme The Committee was also advised

by the Companys Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

and the Vice President of Human Resources but the areas covered

did not relate to these individuals own remuneration The Company

Secretary also attends meetings of the Committee in the capacity

of secretary to the Committee

local office of PricewaterhouseCoopers also provides accounting

and payroll services to one of the Companys overseas branch offices

Communication with shareholders and investor bodies

In early 2009 and 2010 the Remuneration Committee Chairman

and another member of the Committee met with the Companys

larger shareholders and investor bodies to describe the

remuneration arrangements and policies which were proposed for

2009 and 2010 including the proposed -long
term incentive scheme

arrangements and type of performance metrics proposed to be

applied to those awards The meetings which were held in 2010

to discuss the proposed executive remuneration policies for 2010

have meant that these proposals have been discussed with more

than 50% of the shareholders by value In addition the main

elements of the policy for executive remuneration in 2009 were

disclosed and explained in the Directors Remuneration Report

which was contained in the Annual Report and Accounts 2008

Policy for executive remuneratkn ill 2010

Executive remuneration in 201 Owill consist of combination of

basic salary cash bonus scheme long term share-based

incentive scheme pension and benefits in kind The basic salary

will be the only pensionable portion of the remuneration package

Basic salary

For 2010 the Committee has reviewed the level of basic salaries

for the executive directors and senior management The Committee

considers Group performance the level of salaries in comparable

companies in the hi-tech sector market conditions the level of

increase awarded to employees throughout the business and the

individual performance of executive directors-and senior managers

The Committee has concluded that firstly where basic salaries for

these executives fall belowa competitive market position then this

will be addressed The Committee has also determined an overall

budget of approximately 3% to increase the basic salaries br

executive directors and senior managers in 2010

Cash bonus

The cash bonus scheme for 2010 will be capped at 100% of basic

salary except for JM Hickey where the cash bonus will be capped

at 200% of basic salary On target performance will result in

bonus of 50% of basic salary except for JM Hickey where on target

performance will result in bonus of 100% of salary The targets

will be challenging financial and corporate non-financial

performance targets which are the same as those performance

targets set for all of the Groups employees except for the sales

team and again has balanced scorecard approach The

additional bonus arrangement for Cubitt in respect of cash

management for 2009 will not be repeated in 2010

Long term incentive scheme

The long term share-based incentive scheme will comprise

combination of market value share options to be awarded from

The 2003 Wolfson Microelectronics-Executive Share Scheme and

contingent share awards under The Wolfson Microelectronics 2006

Performance Share Plan PSP The awards under the long term

incentive scheme will be equivalent to maximum of 100% of

relevant salary with 60% of the award comprising market value

share options and 40% of the award comprising contingent share

awards under the PSP These are the same proportions as applied

to the long term incentive scheme awards in 2009 and these are

considered by the Committee to remain appropriate
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The 2010 awards will be subject to performance conditions over

three year period relating to revenue target for the share option

awards and to gross profit target for the PSP awards The

Committee has setdemanding targets for each of these metrics

which have been set at level that is greater than thd current

analysts consensus for 2012 The targets will be met if in any

consecutive four quarters during the three year period the audited

results for that period exceed the target set These metrics were

chosen because they arethe key.objectives under our strategic

plan The management team has clear line of sight to the metrics

and manages them actively The Board considers that success in

achieving these metrics will create enhanced shareholder value

The Company is going through transformational process and the

Board feels it is appropriate during this period to recognise

strategic success should it happen earlier in the three year period

and considers such an outcome to be in shareholders interests

It will also have the advantage of creating value in the LTIPs of our

top team and be highly motivational to them after some years of

low payouts on bonus and LTIP schemes The Committee has

taken the discretion to review the payment of the award at the end

of the three year period in the light of the underlying performance

of the Company at that time

Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme

It is proposed that deferred annual bonus scheme be introduced

in 2010 Under this scheme if executive directors and senior

management invest up to 50% of the net proceeds of the annual

bonus scheme in Wolfson shares and hold them for three years

then the Company will match these shares 11 on gross basis

subject to demanding performance metric In 2010 this metric

will be the same as for the 2010 PSP scheme as outlined above

PoUcy for executive remuneration in 2009

The remuneration package for executive directors and the senior

management team consisted of combination of basic salary

cash bonus scheme long term share-based incentive scheme

pension and benefits in kind In 2009 the long term incentive

scheme comprised The 2003 Wolfson Microelectronics Executive

Share Scheme Executive Share Options and The Wolfson

Microelectronics 2006 Performance Share Plan PSP Basic salary

was the only pensionable portion of the remuneration package

For JM Hickey 73% of the total potential remuneration package in

2009 was performance related and for Cu bitt 67% of the total

potential remuneration package in 2009 was performance related

The directors salaries bonuses and benefits in kind for 2009 are

shown in the tables on pages 42 and 43

Basic salary

The basic salaries for executive directors are reviewed annually and

any change to salary is normally effective from the beginning of the

Companys financial year The Committee takes into consideration

range of factors when reviewing salaries such as Group

performance level of salaries in comparable companies in the hi-

tech sector market conditions the level of increase awarded to

employees throughout the business and the individual performance

of individual directors Current annual salaries for executive

directors are shown in the tables on pages 42 and 43

For 2009 in view of the adverse general economic environment

and market conditions facing the Company at the time of the 2009

salary review the Committee recommended that there would be

no basic salary increases This was approved by the Board and it

applied to all employees and to the Board including executive

and non-executive directors

Cash bonus

The cash bonus in 2009 was discretionary and non-pensionable

and applied to the Groups executive directors and senior

management team On target performance would result in

payment of bonus of 50% of salary to each participant in the

senior management team with sliding scale of payments around

this figure according to the performance actually achieved For JM

Hickey on target performance would result in payment of bonus

of 100% of basic salary The overall cash bonus payment is

normally capped at one times salary for each participant other than

for JM Hickey which is capped at two times basic annual salary

In view of the adverse general economic and market conditions

experienced towards the end of 2008 and in existence in early

2009 when the cash bonus arrangements for that year were being

finalised the Committee concluded that it was appropriate to

implement different metrics for the cash bonus scheme compared

to those applicable for the 2008 scheme which were more closely

aligned to the Companys short-term objectives As explained in the

Business Review section of the Annual Report and Accounts 2008

the key operational focus areas for the Company in 2009 were

to deliver new compelling products to our customers

to seek to maximise the return on investment from all the core

platform intellectual property which the Company develops

to maximise financial performance through disciplined

discretionary spend and gross margin control and

to maintain the Companys cash position

The metrics were therefore mixture of financial and appropriately

challenging business performance targets and follow balanced

scorecard approach with each metric having relative weighting

attached to it The target for each metric was set due to the

dynamic nature of the business in respect of each quarter in the

financial year The weighting of the financial to non-financial

measures was reviewed at the half year and the weightings altered

for the second half such that the financial measures represented

higher proportion in the second half of the year Achievement of the

on target financial measures would have resulted for the first half of

the year in cash bonus equal to 40% of the on target percentage

for that period and that was increased to 50% of the on target

percentage for the second half of the year
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The targets for each metric were identical to those applied for the

cash bonus arrangements for all other employees in the Group

with the exception of the sales team The cash bonus becomes

payable if minimum threshold for each measure is achieved in

the quarter Once that threshold is achieved the amount of bonus

payable on sliding scale is dependent upon the extent to which

the actual performancØ compares to the target for that period

The financial performance measures were revenues gross margin

and overhead costs In total for the year as whole the financial

performance measures were only partially
achieved to the extent

of 20% of the on target percentage that is payment of 10% of

salary for Cubitt and the senior managers or 20% in the case

of JM Hickey

The corporate performance targets which were the same for each

participant and also for the basis of the all employee bonus

arrangements except for the sales team were assessed as

appropriately challenging and included non-financial measures

suchas new product introductions IP development and design-ins

Each corporate performance target was also set for each quarter in

the financial year and had relative weighting attached to it There

were no personal objectives included as performance measures for

the purposes of the cash bonus arrangements in 2009 for the

executive directors and senior managers In total for the year as

whole the non-financial performance measures were partially

achieved to the extent of approximately 36% of the on target

percentage that is payment of 18% of salary for Cu bitt and

the senior managers or 36% in the case of JM Hickey

Although the targets are set measured and monitored on

quarterly basis the cash bonus payments in respect of 2009 to

the executive directors and senior management team are not paid

until after the year end following the announcement of the audited

financial results for 2009

As explained in the Directors Remuneration Report contained in

the Annual Report and Accounts 2008 in addition to the cash

bonus scheme outlined above and in view of the general economic

conditions and the importance of cash management and cash

generation for the Company the Committee considered it

appropriate to have an additional cash bonus arrangement for

Cubitt in 2009 This consisted of an additional entitlement to

7.5% of basic salary each quarter in 2009 if the Group was cash

generative in the quarter compared to the total cash and short-

term deposits balance at the end of 2008 with such cash bonus

amounts achieved being paid to Cubitt in early 2010 subject to

the overriding proviso that the Group was cash generative for the

full financial year in 2009 The Groups cash and cash equivalents

and short-term deposits balance at the end of 2008 was $92.2m

The Group was cash generative in each quarter in accordance with

the definition in the terms of this arrangement with the total cash

and short-term deposits balance as reported in the quarterly

results announcements in 2009 at the end of each quarter being

quarter one $97.8m quarter two $1 00.7m quarter three $1 00.3m

As shown in the audited consolidated balance sheet on page 51

the balance at the end of quarter four 2009 was $97.8m The

outcome of the measures for this additional bonus for Cubitt

were such that he is entitled to receive an additional cash bonus

equivalent to total of 30% of basic salary which is included in the

tables on pages 42 and 43 and will be paid to Cubitt following

the preliminary announcement on February 2010 of the audited

financial results for 2009 There is no additional cash bonus

arrangement proposed for Cubitt in 2010

The Committee has undertaken formal and rigorous process to

assess the achievement compared to the corporate performance

targets This review has resulted in for the executive directors an

amount payable under the cash bonus arrangements in 2009 to

JM Hickey and to Cubitt as set out in the tables on pages 42

and 43 The amount comprises approximately 56% of base annual

salary for JM Hickey and approximately 58% of base annual salary

for Cubitt which consists of 28% from the Company cash bonus

scheme for 2009 and 30% from the additional cash bonus

arrangement in 2009 as described above for Cubitt

Long term incentive scheme

It was stated in the Directors Remuneration Report contained in

the Annual Report and Accounts 2008 that the long term incentive

scheme for 2009 would comprise combination of market value

share options from the existing executive share option scheme

and contingent share awards under the PSP In that report it was

explained that meetings were held by the members of the

Committee and the Companys major shareholders which included

an explanation of this LTIP arrangement and the proposed metrics

The awards under the long term incentive scheme in 2009 were

equivalent to maximum of 100% of relevant salary with 40% of

the award comprising contingent share awards under the PSP and

60% of the award comprising market value share options These

awards are subject to performance conditions over three year

period relating to share price growth and cash generation

performance of the Group These metrics are considered to be

appropriate by the Committee in view of the general economic

conditions which were facing the Company at the time that these

awards were granted Further details of the performance conditions

set in relation to awards made in 2009 are set out on page 38

As reported and explained in the Directors Remuneration Report

contained in the Annual Report and Accounts 2008 the Committee

considered that it was appropriate as part of its process to finalise

the policy for executive remuneration for 2009 to review the relative

weightings of the combination of PSP5 to share options As result

of that review the Committee recommended that the proportion of

the long term share-based incentive scheme award to be delivered

as contingent share awards under the PSP should be increased

to 40% from the 25% weighting used in 2006 and 2007 in order

to motivate and retain key executives given current equity

market conditions
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Executive Share Options

The primary purpose of the executive share options is to align the

executives interest with those of shareholders and to reward the

executives for strong performance by the Company In 2009 the

executive directors and senior managers were awarded market

value share options exercisable if and to the extent that performance

conditions are met iii 2012 equal in value at date of grant to 60%
of their basic annual salary No amounts were payable by the

executive directors and senior managers on the grant of these

share options The exercise price of those share options was set

in accordance with the rules of the share option scheme based on

the market value of the Companys shares averaged over the three

business days prior to the date of award The details of the share

options granted to the executive directors in 2009 are given in the

table on page 47

The share options granted to executive directors and senior

managers in 2009 under the LTIP arrangements are exercisable to

the extent that the share options vest based on the satisfaction of

performance conditions which are measurable over three year

period Performance is measured over the three financial years 2009

to 2011 The proportion vesting will be decided by reference to the

Companys share price growth over threshold level and also by

reference to the preservation of the Groups cash and cash

equivalents and short-term deposits balance in the three year period

50% of the maximum share options granted will vest if the

Companys share price appreciates from the share price on the

date of the preliminary announcement of the 2008 financial results

by more than 50% over period of at least five consecutive

business days within the performance period The share price is

the middle market quotation for the Companys ordinary shares

from the Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange

50% of the maximum share options granted will vest if the cash

and cash equivalents and short-term deposits balance as reported

in the audited balance sheet of the Group for each of the financial

years 2009 2010 and 2011 is at least equal to the balance of cash

and cash equivalents and short-term deposits reported for the 2009

Group at the end of 2008 being $92.193 million The cash and cash

equivalents and short-term deposits balance for this performance
2008

measure is the total balance of cash and cash equivalents and

short-term deposits net of any debt as reported in the audited

2007
consolidated balance sheet of the Group This balance is subject to

adjustment if deemed appropriate by the Committee for receipts

and or payments in the relevant period which are outside the

normal course of the Groups and the Companys trading operations pp
PSP
The primary purpose of the PSP is to retain and motivate key

executives On 19 March 2009 contingent share awards were

made to each executive director and other members of the senior

management team as part of the long term incentive arrangements

for 2009 No consideration was paid for an award The value of the

award on the date of grant was equivalent to 40% of the

individuals basic annual salary Details of the awards made to the

executive directors are set out on page 43

participant will derive the whole value of shares finally determined

as vesting under the PSP Performance is measured over the three

financial years 2009 to 2011 The proportion vesting will be decided

by reference to the Companys share price growth over threshold

level of growth and also by reference to the preservation of the

Groups cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits

balance in the three year period

50% of the maximum PSP award will vest if the Companys share

price appreciates from the share price on date of the preliminary

announcement of the 2008 financial results by more than 50%

over period of at least five consecutive business days within

the performance period The share price is the middle market

quotation for the Companys ordinary shares from the Daily Official

List of the London Stock Exchange

The other 50% of the maximum PSP award will vest if the cash and

cash equivalents and short-term deposits balance as reported in

the audited balance sheet of the Group for each of the financial

years 2009 2010 and 2011 is at least equal to the balance of cash

and cash equivalents and short-term deposits reported for the

Group at the end of 2008 being $92.1 93 million The cash and

cash equivalents and short-term deposits balance for this

performance measure is the total balance of cash and cash

equivalents and short-term deposits net of any debt as reported in

the audited consolidated balance sheet of the Group This balance

is subject to adjustment if deemed appropriate by the Committee

for receipts and or payments in the relevant period which are

outside the normal course of the Groups and the Companys

trading operations

In summary long term incentive scheme arrangements in the years

2007 to 2009 have consisted of

Financial Composition of the hIP arrangements for

year the financial year

60% of LTIP was market value share options

40% of LTIP was contingent share awards under the PSP

100% of LTIP comprised contingent share awards

underthe PSP

25% of LTIP was contingent share awards under the PSP

75% of LTIP was ExSOP awards

Details of the awards made to executive directors in 2007 and in

2008 under the PSP are set out on page 43

ExSOP

In 2006 and in 2007 part of the long term incentive scheme for

executive directors and senior management comprised awards

under The Wolfson Microelectronics Group Executive Shared

Ownership plan ExSOP The details of these awards are set

out on pages 44 and 45

Long term incentive scheme arrangements in previous years
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Share options

In years prior to 2006 the long term incentive arrangements

comprised only share options which were awarded by the

Company to executive directors and the senior management team

The awards of options in each year are summarised below

Awards in 2008 No share options were awarded to executive

directors in 2008

Awards in 2007 No share options were awarded to executive

directors in 2007 other than to the then-serving Chief Executive

Officer who was awarded share options instead of the ExSOP

award as the ExSOP is intended for executives who are solely UK

tax payers and the then-serving Chief Executive Officer was subject

to both UK and US tax

Awards in 2006 None of the current executive directors were

employed by the Company at the time of the 2006 share option

awards No share options were awarded to executive directors in

2006 other than to the then-serving Chief Executive Officer who

was awarded share options instead of the ExSOP award as

explained above

Previous awards None of the current executive directors were

employed by the Company at the time of the share option awards

from The 2003 Wolfson Microelectronics Executive Share Scheme

in 2004 and in 2005

Share options awarded to executive directors and senior managers

in prior years were subject to performance requirements measured

over three year period

Share ownership policy

As explained on page 35 executive directors and senior management

are being actively encouraged to build up holdings over some time

of 100% or 50% of salary respectively in Wolfson shares and in

particular to invest 50% of the net shares from vested LTIP5 from

the 2010 LTIP awards onwards until this is achieved

Dilution

The Committee ensures that the aggregate of all share-based

awards using new issue shares does not exceed the guidelines

set out by the Association of British Insurers These suggest that

the number of awards granted in respect of all share-based

schemes should not exceed 10% of the current issued share

capital in any rolling ten year period The number of awards granted

in respect of executive discretionary schemes should not exceed

5% of the current issued share capital in the same period

The rules of each of the Companys discretionary share option

schemes executive and all employee in effect since its flotation

contain limit of 10% of the issued ordinary share capital on the

shares over which rights to subscribe for new shares may be

granted in rolling period of 10 years The rules for each of the

PSP and ExSOP schemes contain similar limit and also 5%

limit over 10 year period for these executive discretionary schemes

Awards granted during the period from 21 October 2003 the date

of the Companys flotation to January 2010 under all the

Companys discretionary share option and share-based schemes

where these will be satisfied using new issue shares are within the

applicable limits The PSP ExSOP and all employee contingent

share awards made to date and certain employee share option

awards are being satisfied by shares purchased in the market by

the employees share trusts

Pensions

The Company operates two pension schemes one being defined

benefit scheme and the other being defined contribution scheme

The former was closed to all new entrants after JuLy 2002 None

of the current directors is an active participant of the Companys

defined benefit scheme which provides benefits based on final

pensionable pay 1/60th per year of employment The current

employer contribution rate is 15.4% and 6% is contributed by

each participating employee

As explained in the Directors Remuneration Report for 2006 with

effect from April2006 AD Mime became deferred member of

the defined benefit scheme and the Company ceased to make

contributions to the scheme on his behalf

JM Hickey and Cubitt are members of the Companys Group

Personal Pension Plan defined contribution pension scheme

The Company currently matches employee contributions up to

maximum of 6% of basic salary

Service contracts

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of its

executive directors none of which is for fixed term Such contracts

are terminable by either party giving not less than 12 months

notice The Company may in its absolute discretion terminate the

employment of any of the executive directors at any time by making

payment in lieu of notice equivalent to the directors basic salary

over any unexpired period of notice

Details of the service contracts currently in place forexecutive

directors who have served during the 53 week period ended

January 2010 are as follows

DA Shrigley resigned as director on 31 December 2008 and his

service contract dated 15 December 2006 terminated on that date

Executive directors can accept appointments as non-executive

directors of other companies and retain any fees paid to them if

such an appointment does not conflict with their duties to the

Company Specific approval of the Board is required in each case

DA Shrigley who resigned as director of Wolfson Microelectronics

plc on 31 December 2008 was also non-executive director of

Rambus Inc company listed on NASDAQ None of the other

excutive directors served as non-executive directors of other public

companies during the 53 week period As DA Shrigley was only

director of Wolfson Microelectronics plc for three days in the 53

week period ended January 2010 the Company has not sought

for disclosure purposes to apportion his remuneration for his non-

executive directorship of Rambus Inc for that three day period

JM Hickey

Cubitt

Date of contr3ct

September 2008

20 December 2006
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Non-executive directors

Appointment

Each of the current non-executive directors has entered into an

agreement setting out the terms of his appointment with the

Company The dates of the terms of appointment that are currently

in place for non-executive directors who have served during the

53 week period ended January 2010 are as follows

Date of terms of appointment

25 September 2003

25 September 2003

November 2004

November 2007

December 2007

effective November 2007

18 August 2008

signed on 22 August 2008

The letters of appointment are for fixed term of three years

Eckelmanns appointment has been extended until 31 October

2010 and in 2008 BM Roses appointment was extended until

22 November 2010 In 2009 RK Grahams appointment was

extended until 24 September 2012

150

All of these agreements state that either party may terminate the

appointment at any time by giving to the other not less than one

months notice Each non-executive directors appointment may be

terminated at any time without compensation in accordance with

the Companys articles of association or the Companies Act 2006

or if the shareholders of the Company fail to re-elect him as director

Wolfson Microelectronics plc total shareholder return

Remuneration

The remuneration of the non-executive directors is determined by

the Board The non-executive directors do not participate in

discussions about their own remuneration Non-executive directors

fees are designed to be of level to attract good quality candidates

to the Board and to reflect the time commitment of directors Fee

levels are reviewed yearly and are set within the aggregate limits

contained in the articles of association of the Company

Ruettgers fee as Chairman of the Board is 85000 per annum

Each of the other non-executive directors receives fee of 31500

per annum The chairmen of the Audit and of the Remuneration

Committees each receive art additional 5000 per annum

Members of these Committees receive an annual fee of 3000

per committee membership and the Senior Independent Director

received an additional 3000 per annum

All fees are non-pensionable and there is no other remuneration

save that the Company meets allowable expenses incurred on

Company business

Performance graphs

The following graph charts the total cumulative shareholder return

of the Company over the past five years compared to the FTSE

All-Share index Techmark index and the FTSE Technology Hardware

and Equipment index The FTSE All-Share index is broad equity

market index but given the Companys technology credentials the

Techmark index or the FTSE Technology Hardware and Equipment

index could be considered more relevant as comparator

RK Graham

BM Rose

Eckelmann

Ruettgers

AD Mime

Collinson
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Directors shareholdings

The interests of the directors who were serving as at January 2010 in the Companys ordinary shares of 0.1 pence which excludes

interests under the share option schemes are set out below

At Shares Shares At

29 December 2008 acquired disposed January 2010

Number of Number of Number of Number of

ordinary ordinary ordinary ordiniy

shares shares shares shares

Ruettgers 600000 600Of0

JM Hickey 71729 90000 71729 9ooo
AD Mime 3339147 250000 3089147

Cubitt 95707 95717

BM Rose 38809 388119

RKGraham 168928 63800 1o518
Eckelmann 30000 20000 10010

Collinson

4344320 90000 405529 40287f

Of these ordinary shares at 29 December 2008105128 are held in the name of RK Graham and 63800 are held by trust in which RK Graham is Trustee arid has third beneficial

interest The trust sold as the trust was being closed the 63800 shares during 2009 and therefore the 105128 shares as at January 2010 are held in the name of RK Graham

Another trust of which RK Graham is trustee but not beneficiary purchased total of 22241 of the Companys ordinary shares in the 53 week period ended January 2010

These shares are not included in the table above as RK Graham does not hold beneficial interest in those 22241 ordinary shares

Of these ordinary shares 45000 are held by JM Hickey and 45000 are held by JM Hickeys wife

Excluding ExSOP shares the relevant directors interests in ordinary shares at 29 December 2008 were Cubitt 55000 The other directors do not hold an interest in shares

under the ExSOP

Excluding ExSOP shares the relevant directors interests in ordinary shares at January 2010 were Cubitt 55000 The other directors do not hold an interest in shares under

the ExSOP

The deferred share award made to JM Hickey on 25 September 2008 refer to page 45 and also the awards made under thePSP refer to

page 43 are not aggregated with existing shareholdings of directors because they are subject to vesting period and/or satisfaction of

performance conditions

Directors potential interest in shareholdings of employee share trusts

In addition to the interests disclosed above all the executive directors are potential beneficiaries of The Wolfson Microelectronics No

Employees Share Trust and The Wolfson Microelectronics No Employees Share Trust They are therefore treated as having the following

interests in the shares held by those trusts as at January 2010

Each executive director is interested as the beneficial co-owner of such shares under the ExSOP in the following number of shares

Cubitt 40707

JM Hickey nil

Each executive director is interested as the holder of an award under the PSP and also in the case of JM Hickey of deferred share

award in the following number of shares

MCubitt 213184

JM Hickey 534983

Each executive director is interested as member of the class of potential beneficiaries of The Wolfson Microelectronics No

Employees Share Trust in 4411424 shares

Each executive director is interested as member of the class of potential beneficiaries of The Wolfson Microelectronics No

Employees Share Trust in 645037 shares

As at8 February 2010 there had been no changes in the above shareholdings
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Directors Remuneration Report continued

Individual aspects of remuneration

The auditors are required to report on the information contained in this section of the report

Directors emoluments

The emoluments in respect of qualifying services of each person who served as director during the 53 week period ended January 2010

were as shown below Note that these amounts are expressed in US dollars the Groups functional and reporting currency though actually

paid in sterling and converted at the average exchange rate used in the 53 week period ended January 2010

Directors emoluments US dollars

Salary

Salary Total fee Total

fee Sonuses Benefits Other 2009 2008 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Executive directors

JM Hickey 413 236 42 69t 139 459

Cubitt 278 164 17 45ft 329 407

Non-executive directors

Ruettgers 135 135 160 160

AD Mime 50 50 59 59

BM Rose 68 68 78 78

RK Graham 63 63 73 73

Eckelmann 60 60 69 69

Collinson 55 55 19 19

Former executive director

DA Shrigley 478 1649

Totals 1122 400 59 1581 1404 2973

JM Hickey was appointed as director and as CEO Designate on September 2008 He became CEO with effect from January 2009

DA Shrigley resigned as director and stepped down as CEO on 31 December 2008 page 46 refers to the leaving arrangements for DA Shrigley which were disclosed in the Annual

Reporl and Accounts 2008 and the total amounts receivable by DA Shrigley in accordance with those arrangements although not payable until 2009 were included in total

emoluments in 2008 in the table above
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Directors emoluments sterling

DA Shrigley

Totals 708 248 38 94

250 914

753 1639

JM Hickey was appointed as director and as CEO Designate on September 2008 He became CEO with effect from January 2009

DA Shrigley resigned as director and stepped down as CEO on 31 December 2008 Page 46 refers to the leaving arrangements for DA Shrigley which were disclosed in the Annual

Report and Accounts 2008 and the total payments receivable by DA Shrigley in accordance with those arrangements although not payable until 2009 were included in total

emoluments for 2008 in the table above

Long term incentive schemes

PSP awards

The Wolfson Microelectronics 2006 Performance Share Plan PSP was approved by shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held

on 16 February 2006 Contingent share awards held by directors are as follows No consideration was paid for any award

As at

29 December

2008 at Market price

Performance Market price or date of contingent 3Janwry at date of

period ending Award at date of cessation award vested Lapsed .010 vesting vesting

Director 31 December date award number number number number nuirOer date pence

JM Hickey 2011 19.03.09 0.92 113043 113343 March n/a

2012

Cubift 2009 07.02.07 3.15 13569 13569 See note n/a

below

2010 30.04.08 1.41 123529 123529 April n/a

2011

2011 19.03.09 0.92 76086 76086 March n/a

2012

DAShrigley 2009 07.02.07 3.15 18503 18503 80.5

2010 30.04.08 1.41 176470 176470 80.5

DA Shrigley resigned as director and stepped down as CEO on 31 December 2008 The Directors Remuneration Report contained in the Annual Report and Accounts 2008

explained that as part of DA Shrigleys leaving arrangements the Committee agreed that the contingent share awards under the PSP which were granted to DA Shrigley in 2007 and

in 2008 as shown in the table above should vest in full on 31 December 2008 Due to the provisions of the Model Code issued by the UK Listing Authority the transfer of those

shares to the beneficial ownership of DA Shrigley did not take place until after February 2009 the date of the preliminary announcement of the 2008 financial results of the Group

On that date the market value of the Companys shares was 77.75 pence per
share

Salary

fee

8000

Executive directors

Bonuses

000

Benefits

000

Other

000

JM Hickey 260 146 27

MCubitt 175 102 11

Salary

Total fee

2089 2008

LOCO 000

Total

2008

000

433 82 254

288 175 225

Non-executive directors

Ruettgers 85
85 85 85

AD MUne 32 22 31 31

BM Rose 43 43 42 42

RKGraham 40 40 39 39

Eckelmann 38
37 37

Collinson 35
12 12

Former executive director
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PSP awards continued

The performance conditions applicable to the PSP awards which

were granted on Febrijary 2007 as part of the long term incentive

arrangements for the executive directors and senior management in

2007 were reviewed by the Remuneration Committee in view of the

financial results for the 53 week period ended Janury 2010 The

performance conditions were measured over the three financial

years 2007 to 2009 with 2006 as the base year and with the

proportion vesting being decided on sliding scale by reference to

the Companys performance in growing its gross revenues subject

to exceeding minimum total net margin of 15% over the

performance period The net margin was calculated by reference to

the Companys net operating profits excluding share-based

payment expenses and currency retranslation costs The required

growth in gross revenues specified in the performance condition

was minimum compound annual growth over the three year period

of at least 5% with sliding scale from 15% to 5% The performance

conditions applicable to the PSP awards which were granted in

2007 were not satisfied and therefore all of these awards shall

lapse following the preliminary announcement on February 2010

of the Companys financial results for the 53 week period ended

January 2010

ExSOP awards

The Wolfson Microelectronics Group Executive Shared Ownership

plan ExSOP was approved by shareholders at the Extraordinary

General Meeting held on 16 February 2006

In 2006 and in 2007 part of the long term incentive schemes for

directors and senior management comprised awards under the

ExSOP On 20 March 2006 and on February 2007 executive

directors and other members of the senior management team

each acquired beneficial interest as joint owner in number of

shares in the Company for consideration of pence per share

The registered shareholder of the shares is RBC cees Trustee

Limited formerly called Abacus Corporate Trustee Limited

in its capacity as trustee of The Wolfson Microelectronics No

Employees Share Trust The beneficial interest in the award shares

is held jointly by the participant and RBC cees Trustee Limited

in its capacity as trustee of The Wolfson Microelectronics No

Employees Share Trust

The interests in the ExSOP award shares are defined by the terms

of an agreement between RBC cees Trustee Limited in its

capacity as trustee of The Wolfson Microelectronics No

Employees Share Trust the individual and RBC cees Trustee

Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Wolfson Microelectronics

No Employees Share Trust Under an ExSOP award

participant benefits from any growth in value of the award shares

above fixed carrying cost of 5% per annum

2006 ExSOP awards

The Directors Remuneration Report as contained in the Annual

Report and Accounts 2008 detailed the performance conditions

applicable to the ExSOP awards made in 2006 and explained that

the performance conditions applicable to those awards were not

satisfied and therefore all of these awards lapsed upon the

announcement on February 2009 of the Companys financial

results for the 52 week period ended 28 December 2008 None of

the executive directors who served during 2009 held ExSOP

awards which were granted in 2006

2007 ExSOP awards

Under the terms of the ExSOP awards made in 2007 participants

would if and insofar as the performance targets are met derive the

growth in value of proportion of the ExSOP award shares less the

5% per annum carrying cost The performance target set in relation

to the 2007 award relates to the real growth i.e growth above RPI

achieved over the three year period financial years 2007-2009 in

adjusted earnings per share of the Company Adjusted earnings per

share is calculated as the basic earnings per share derived from the

Companys published report and accounts adjusted for exceptional

and extraordinary items The Committee may make further

adjustments as may be necessary or appropriate for example to

take account of changes to accounting standards the actual length

of the financial year in question and to ensure consistent basis of

comparison from year to year For real growth of 10% per annum or

higher the participant will derive the growth in value of 100% of the

ExSOP award shares for real growth of 5% 25% of the ExSOP

award shares for real growth between these amounts the

percentage of the ExSOP award shares will be determined by

straight line interpolation between these thresholds The participant

will derive no growth in value of awards shares for real growth

below 5%
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In 2007 the following director acquired joint beneficial interest in shares under the ExSOP for consideration of pence per share as

shown below

Performance As at As at

period Market price 29 December Contingent January

ending Award at date of 2008 awarded Lapsed 2010 Vesting

Director 31 December date award number number number number date

Cubitt 2009 07.02.07 3.15 40707 40707 These awards

will lapse in

February 2010

see note below

The initial market value of each jointly owned share determined under the terms of the joint ownership agreement was 3.04 for those awarded on 07.02.07

The performance conditions applicable to the ExSOP awards made in 2007 as set out above were not satisfied and therefore all of these

awards shall lapse following the preliminary announcement on February 2010 of the Companys financial results for the 53 week period

ended January 2010

Michael Hickey

As explained and reported in the Directors Remuneration Report contained within the Annual Reports and Accounts 2008 in addition to

JM Hickeys basic salary and the normal benefits in kind car allowance private family healthcare cover and life cover the following

benefits incentives and awards have been made to him which are relevant for 2009 The basic salary is the only pensionable portion of his

remuneration package The tables on pages 42 and 43 summarise the emoluments for JM Hickey in 2009

Deferred share award

deferred award of 421940 ordinary shares in the Company was made in 2008 Details are summarised in the table below

As at Deferred As at

Vesting Market price 29 December shares January

period Award at date of 2008 awarded Lapsed 2010 Vesting

Oirector ending date award number number number number date

JM Hickey September 25.09.08 1.17 421940 421940 100% on

2011 Sept

2011

As detailed in the Schedule to the Directors Remuneration Report included in the Annual Report and Accounts 2008 JM Hickeys award

was deferred share award under which the Company will for no consideration to the extent the award vests transfer or procure the

transfer of the relevant number of award shares to or to the order of JM Hickey Under the terms of this award 100% of the shares subject

to the award will vest if throughout the period commencing September 2008 and ending on September 2011 JM Hickey has remained

continuously employed within the group and has not prior to that date given or received notice of termination of his contract of

employment If JM Hickeys employment within the group ceases due to death injury disability or ill-health resulting in incapacity then the

award will vest in full If JM Hickeys employment is terminated for any other reason but not cause then pro-rated number of award shares

shall vest The pro-rating is based on the time which the period from the award date to the leaving date bears to the period which JM Hickey

would have needed to be employed before the award vests in full If JM Hickey gives notice of termination or his employment is terminated

for cause the award to the extent unvested will lapse In the event of change of control of the Company other than in circumstances of

an internal re-organisation the award shall vest in full

The award will be satisfied by using shares purchased on the market not new issue or treasury shares

Benefits in kind

The Company pays for JM Hickeys travel costs between Edinburgh and his main place of residence in Winchester England The Company

also pays for JM Hickeys spouse to travel number of round trips between Edinburgh and the place of residence in England JM Hickey is

also eligible during three year period from the date of his appointment for relocation allowance to move his main residence to the

immediate vicinity of Edinburgh
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Directors emoluments other information

Future emoluments waiver

There is no arrangement under which director has agreed to

waive future emoluments

Amounts paid to former director

DA Shrigley resigned as director on 31 December 2008 and the

Directors Remuneration Report for 2008 detailed his leaving

arrangements in accordance with his service agreement and

agreement with the Company The total amount of the payments

for the leaving arrangements were included in the directors

emoluments figures for 2008 although they were not paid until

2009 As the Company had contractual liability for all of these

amounts as at 28 December 2008 the total amount was

recognised in the financial statements of the Company for the

52 week period ended 28 December 2008 and disclosed within

exceptional charges in 2008 refer to note of the financial

statements on pages 65 and 66

Benefits in kind

Benefits consist primarily of car private family healthcare cover

and life assurance for each of the executive directors In addition

JM Hickey receives other benefits in kind as described on page 45

Share options

Details of share options granted to and exercised by directors and

the aggregate gains realised on exercised options in the period are

given on page 47

Other long term incentive arrangement

It was explained in the Directors Remuneration Report 2008 that

in view of the changes to the composition of the executive directors

of the Company which occurred during 2008 and in order to ensure

an element of continuity in the executive management of the

Company the non-executive directors considered it to be important

to enhance in these exceptional circumstances the long term

incentive arrangements for Cubitt Therefore in 2008 the

Committee and the Board approved the establishment of deferred

cash bonus award agreement between the Company and Cubitt

Under the terms of this agreement and subject to Cubitt being

employed by the Company at that time Cubitt will receive cash

bonus on 11 September 2011 The cash bonus award will be

equivalent to two times Cubitts annual basic salary at the date

of payment of the bonus This bonus is non-pensionable and is

not factored into the calculation or basis of any other cash bonus

scheme nor in the calculation of share award entitlements which

may be based only on factor of the amount of basic annual salary

As the entitlement to this cash bonus is conditional upon Cubitt

still being employed by the Company on 11 September 2011

proportion of this bonus is not included in the directors

emoluments table on pages 42 and 43 in respect of the 53 week

period ended January 2010 nor in the 52 week period ended

28 December 2008 although an appropriate amount is being

accrued in the financial statements on time-apportioned basis

The terms of this cash bonus award agreement are such that if

before 11 September 2011 Cubitts employment with the

Company ceases due to death injury disability or ill-health

resulting in incapacity then the bonus shall be paid in full If before

11 September 2011 Cubitt gives notice of termination for whatever

reason or his employment is terminated for reasons of gross

misconduct or due to statutory prohibition then the bonus award

agreement shall lapse and no amount of this cash bonus will be

payable If the Company terminates Cubitts employment for

performance reasons other than gross misconduct before 11

September 2011 then Cubitt will be entitled to time-apportioned

amount of this cash bonus If there is change of control of the

Company other than in circumstances of an internal re-organisation

then this bonus award will be payable in full at the time of the change

of control taking legal effect
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Pensions

Details of the entitlements of those who served as directors during the 53 week period ended January 2010 are as follows note that these

amounts are expressed in US dollars the Groups functional and reporting currency though actually denominated in sterling

Cubitt and JM Hickey are members of the Companys Group Personal Pension Plan The Company currently matches employee

contributions up to maximum of 6% of basic salary The Company contributed the following amounts to the Group Personal Pension Plan

in relation to these two executive directors

Amount of Company

contributions to Group

Personal Pension Plan

2008

$000 000

24 .5

17 -1 20 11

As reported in the Directors Remuneration Reports within the Annual Report and Accounts 2006 2007 and 2008 AD Milne became

deferred member of the defined benefit pension scheme on April 2006

Details of pension policy are provided on page 39

Share options

Details of share options of those executive directors who served during the financial year are set out in this table None of the non-executive

directors has share options No amounts were payable for the award of the share options

Exercised Lapsed Granted

At during during during

29.12.08 year year year

JM Hickey 169565 169565 0.92 19.03.19

Cubitt 114130 114130 0.92 19.03.19

DAShrigteyl2l 118374 118374 2.83 18.12.16

54833 54833 30775 06.02.17

For 2009 option grants the proportion exercisable is dependent on share price appreciation and cash conservation measures over the relevant three year performance period

Further details regarding these performance conditions are provided on page 38

DA Shrigley resigned as director of the Company on 31 December 2008 and in accordance with the share option scheme rules all of these options lapsed

During the 53 week period ended January 2010 no directors exercised share options Therefore the aggregate gains being the difference

between the market price of the Companys shares on the days on which the options were exercised and the price actually paid for the

shares made by directors on the exercise of share options during the 53 week period ended January 2010 amounted to $nil 2008 $nil

The highest and lowest market prices of the Companys shares during the 53 week period ended January 2010 were 152 pence and 69.25

pence respectively The market price at the period end was 132.5 pence

This report was approved by the Board and is signed on its behalf by

BMRose

Remuneration Committee Chairman

February 2010

JM 1-lickey

MCubitt

Amount of Company
contributions to Group

Personal Pension Plaii

2009

$000 LOQO

At Exercise

3.1.10 price

Date from

which

Exercisable

Expiry

date
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Statement of Directors Responsibilities

Statement of directors responsibilities in respect of

the Annua Report and the financia statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and

the group and parent company financial statements in accordance

with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent

company financial statements for each financial year Under that

law they are required to prepare the group financial statements in

accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law

and have elected to prepare the parent company financial

statements on the same basis

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial

statements unless they are satisfied that they give true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of

their
profit or loss for that period In preparing each of the group and

parent company financial statements the directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them

consistently

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

state whether they have been prepared in accordance with

IFRSs as adopted by the EU and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis

unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the

parent company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting

records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent

companys transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at

any time the financial position of the parent company and enable

them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the

Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking

such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets

of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

Under applicable law and regulations the directors are also

responsible for preparing Directors Report Directors

Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that

complies with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of

the corporate and financial information included on the companys

website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and

dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in

other jurisdictions

To the best of our knowledge

the financial statements prepared in accordance with the

applicable set of accounting standards give true and fair

view of the assets liabilities financial position and loss of the

Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation

taken as whole and

the management report comprising the Chairmans

Statement the Business Review and the Operating and

Financial Review together include fair review of the

development and performance of the business and the

position of the Company and the undertakings included in

the consolidation taken as whole together with

description of the principal risks and uncertainties that

they face

JM Hickey

Chief Executive Officer

Cubitt

Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Aucfltors Report to the members of

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

We have audited the financial statements of Wolfson Microelectronics

plc for the 53 week period ended January 2010 set out on pages

50 to 100 The financial reporting framework that has been applied

in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial

Reporting Standards IFRSs as adopted by the EU and as regards

the parent company financial statements as applied in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report is made solely to the companys members as body in

accordance with Chapter of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

companys members those matters we are required to state to

them in an auditors report and for no other purpose To the fullest

extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility

to anyone other than the company and the companys members as

body for our audit work for this report or for the opinions we

have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement

set out on page 48 the directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give

true and fair view Our responsibility is to audit the financial

statements in accordance with applicable law and International

Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland Those standards require

us to comply with the Auditing Practices Boards APBs Ethical

Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is

provided on the APBs web-site at www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/UKP

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion

the financial statements give true and fair view of the state of

the groups and of the parent companys affairs as at January

2010 and of the groups loss for the 53 week period then ended

the group financial statements have been properly prepared in

accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU

the parent company financial statements have been properly

prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and as

applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act

2006 and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the

group financial statements Article of the lAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006

In our opinion

the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has

been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act

2006

the information given in the Directors Report for the financial

year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent

with the financial statements and

information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set

out on pages 25 to 31 with respect to internal control and risk

management systems in relation to financial reporting processes

and about share capital structures is consistent with the

financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if

in our opinion

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent

company or returns adequate for our audit haye not been

received from branches not visited by us or

the parent company financial statements and the part of the

Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are not in

agreement with the accounting records and returns or

certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law

are not made or

we have not received all the information and explanations we

require for our audit or

Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by

the company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

the directors statement set out on page 30 in relation to going

concern and

the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the

companys compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008

Combined Code specified for our review

Ross

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc

Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

Edinburgh February 2010
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Consolidated income statement

For the period ended January 2010

Before

exceptional

chwge

Notes $000

121331

59850

61481

20780

44012

11989

345 15300

2306

1316

990

500

500 15800

2306

1316

990

500 14810

140 4586

Total

$000

198199

100902

97297

25917

46141

16897

8342

4210

1922

2288

10630

8.88 652

8.88 6.50

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the period ended January 2010

Total comprehensive income for the period attributable

to Owners of the Company

The notes on pages 55 to 100 are an integral part of these financial statements

52 weeks

ended

28 December

2008

$000

7666

344

96

1051

1304

11248 6362

53 weeks ended January 2010 52 weeks ended 28 December 2008

Exceptional Before Exceptional

charge exceptional charges

Note Total charges Note

$000 $000 $000 $000

121331 198199

59850 97402

61481

21280

44012

11989

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution and selling costs

Research and development expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating loss profit

Financial income

Financial expenses

Net financing income

Loss profit before tax

Income tax credit expense

Loss/prof it for the period attributable

to equity holders of the parent

Basic loss earnings per share cents

Diluted loss earnings per share cents

100797

25174

46014

14917

14692

4210

1922

2288

16980

3500

3500

743

127

1980

6350

635014310

4446

9864 360

4659 1695 2964

10224 12321 4655 7666

Loss profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

Abtuarial losson defined benefit obligations

Deferred tax on net defined benefit obligations recognised in equity

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges

Other comprehensive income for the period

53 weeks

ended

January

2010

$000

10224

2875

805

1043

1024
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Balance shees
As at January 2010

Group Company

As at As at As at As at

January 28 December January 28 December

2010 2008 2010 2008

Notes $000 $000 $000 $000

ASSETS

Property plant and equipment 10 32094 34401 31713 34057

Intangible assets 11 35866 40651 3019 3243

Investments in subsidiaries 12 43835 43633

Deferred tax assets 13 847

Total non-current assets 67960 75052 79414 80933

Inventories
14 11289 18989 11289 18989

Current tax assets 3107 3169

Tradeandotherreceivables 15 16624 21222 19716 22354

Short-term deposits 16 83251 79607 83251 79607

Cash and cash equivalents 16 14519 12586 13689 10318

Total current assets 128790 132404 131114 131268

Total assets 196750 207456 210528 212201

EQUITY

Issued capital
17 192 192 192 192

Share premium account 17 58873 58801 58873 58801

Capital redemption reserve 17 503 503 503 503

Hedging reserve 17 1051 1051

Retained earnings 17 108455 117885 120791 124676

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 168015 176330 180351 183121

LIABILITIES

Employee benefits 18 2283 1347 2283 1347

Provisions 20 91 91

Deferred tax liabilities 13 2294 5345 1048

Other payables 19 5851 6244 5816 6244

Total non-current liabilities 10519 12936 8190 8639

Income tax payable
896 991

Trade and other payables including derivatives 19 17959 17294 21730 19450

Provisions 20 257 257

Total current liabilities 18216 18190 21987 20441

Total liabilities 28735 31126 30177 29080

Total equity and liabilities 196750 207456 210528 212201

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on February 2010 and were signed on its behalf by

JM Hickey Cubitt

Director Director

The notes on pages 55 to 100 are an integral part of these financial statements

Wolfson Microelectronics plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009 51



Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share Share Capital Hedging Retained Total

capital premium redemption reserve earnings equity

Note 17 Note 17 reserve Note 17
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 31 December 2007 198 58774 497 114399 173868

Profit for the period 7666 7666

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on net defined benefit obligations 344 344
Deferred tax on net defined benefit obligations 96 96

recognised in equity

Foreign exchange translation differences on

foreign operations

Effective
portion of changes in fair value of 1051 1051

cash flow hedges

Total comprehensive income for the 1051 7413 6362

period ended 28 December 2008

Equity settled transactions including tax effect 2711 2711

Current tax on equity settled transactions 23 23

Share options exercised by employees 27 27

Purchase of own shares by the Company 6661 6661

27 3927 3900

Balance at 28 December 2008 192 58801 503 1051 117885 176330

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Balanceat29 December2008 192 58801 503 1051 117885 176330

Loss for the period 10224 10224

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on net defined benefit obligations 2875 2875
Deferred tax on net defined benefit

obligations 805 805

recognised in
equity

Foreign exchange translation differences on

foreign operations

Effective portion of changes in fair value of 1043 1043

cash flow hedges

Total comprehensive income for the 1043 12291 11248

period ended January 2010

Equity settled transactions including tax effect 2861 2861

Share options exercised by employees 72 72

72 -- 2861 2933

Balanceat3January20lo 192 58873 503 108455 168015

The notes on pages 55 to 100 are an integral part of these financial-statements
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Cash flows from operating activities

Loss profit for the period

Adjustments for

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Foreign exchange losses gains

Financial income

Financial expenses

Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Income tax credit expense

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from the issue of share capita

Purchase and cancellation of own shares

Interest paid

Net cash outfow from financing activities

The notes on pages 55 to 100 are an integral part of these financial statements

4628

7081

1897

370

2302

1316

2173

3639

2268

13518

7414

2060

1319

4158

1921

3496

4373

27305

Statements of cash flows

For the period ended January 2010

Notes

Group Company

53 weeks 52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended ended ended

January 28 December January 28 December

2010 2008 2010 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

10224 7666

10 7233 7552

11 6660 6827

364 1281

2306 4210

1316 1922

2254 3671

4586 2964

711 25111

Decrease in inventories 7700 6559 7700 6559

Decrease in trade and other receivables 3916 12917 1955 11629

Increase decrease in trade and other payables 2693 19222 4308 20157

Decrease in employee benefits 2340 2562 2340 2562

Cash generated from the operations 12680 22803 13891 22774

Income taxes paid 864 6794 871 6771

Net cash inflow from operating activities 11816 16009 13020 16003

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 2190 3484 2184 3431

Acquisition of property plant and equipment and intangible assets 6165 6310 5951 6280

Deferred consideration paid for acquisition of subsidiaries in prior period 2400 3633 2400 3633

Amounts placed on short-term deposits 221092 50016 221092 50016

Amounts withdrawn from short-term deposits 217448 43831 217448 43831

10019 12644 9811 12667

72 27 72 27

6661 6661

72 94 72 93

6728 6727

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1797 3363 3209 3391

Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 12586 16183 10318 13812

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 136 234 162 103

Cashandcashequivalentsatendof period 16 14519 12586 13689 10318

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 16 14519 12586 13689 10318

Short-term deposits at end of period 16 83251 79607 83251 79607

Total cash and short-term deposits at end of period 97770 92193 96940 89925
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notes to the fnaiica statements

Basis of preparation

Wolfson Microelectronics plc the Company is company

domiciled and incorporated in Scotland The consolidated financial

statements for the
fifty-three

weeks ended January 2010

comprise those of the Company and its subsidiaries together

referred to as the Group The comparative period is the fifty-two

weeks ended 28 December 2008 The financial period end is

January 2010 and that fifty-three week period is referred to as

2009 for the purposes of these notes to the financial statements

The parent company financial statements present information about

the Company as separate entity and not about its group

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors

on February 2010

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been

prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards and its interpretations as adopted by the European

Union adopted IFRS Under section 4084 of the Companies

Act 2006 the Company is exempt from the requirement to present

its own income statement and its own statement of comprehensive

income and related notes

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost

basis except for the following material item in the balance sheet

derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value refer

to note 2e

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars

US dollars the Companys functional currency rounded to the

nearest thousand

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with adopted

IFRS requires management to make judgements estimates and

assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported

amounts of assets and liabilities income and expenses The

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical

experience and various other factors that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the

basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets

and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources

Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects

only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods

Judgements made by management in the application of adopted

IFRS that have significant effect on the financial statements and

estimates with significant risk of material adjustment in the next

year are discussed in note 26

As permitted by lAS Presentation of financial statements the

Group has disclosed additional information in respect of exceptional

charges on the face of the income statement in order to aid

understanding of the Groups financial performance An item is

treated as exceptional if it is considered that by virtue of its nature

scale or incidence and of such significance that separate disclosure

is required for the financial statements to be properly understood

Changes in accounting policies

The following new standards and amendments to standards are

mandatory for financial periods commencing on January 2009

and as the Groups current financial period commenced on 29

December 2008 it is therefore adopting these standards early

lAS revised Presentation of financial statements and

IFRS Operating segments

Presentation of financial statements

The Group has applied lAS revised 2007 Presentation of

financial statements in these financial statements As result the

Group presents statement of comprehensive income All non-

owner changes in equity are required to be shown in

performance statement The Group has elected to present two

statements an income statement and statement of comprehensive

income Owner changes in equity are shown in statement of

changes in equity

Comparative information has been re-presented so that it also is in

conformity with the revised standard Since the change in

accounting policy only impacts presentation aspects there is no

impact on earnings per share

iiDetermination and presentation of operating segments

The Group has adopted early IFRS Operating segments which

replaces lAS 14 Segment reporting Therefore from 29 December

2008 the beginning of the fifty-three week period the Group

determines and presents operating segments based on the

information that is internally provided to the Chief Executive Officer

CEO who is the Groups chief operating decision-maker This

has resulted in reduction in the number of reportable segments

presented as the previously reported segments of Consumer

audio products Digital Imaging applications and Portable

applications are no longer used for internal reporting purposes

Note to the financial statements explains that there is currently

one reportable segment which is the Groups Pure Sound segment

Other operating segments include the supply and sale of integrated

circuits in the power management silicon microphones and

enhanced soundware product lines None of these segments

meets any of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable

segments in 2009 or in 2008

There has been no impact on the measurement of the Groups

assets and liabilities as result of the adoption of this standard

Comparative segmental information has been re-presented in

conformity with the transitional requirements of IFRS Since the

change in accounting policy only impacts presentation and

disclosure aspects there is no impact on earnings per share
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Notes to the financial statements continued

iiDetermination and presentation of operating

segments continued

An operating segment is component of the Group that engages in

business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur

expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions

with any of the Groups other components An operating segments

revenues and gross profit are reviewed regularly by the CEO to

make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment

and assess its performance and for which discrete financial

information is available

The Chief Executive Officer assesses the performance of the

operating segments based on revenue and measure of gross profit

The gross profit measurement basis excludes the effects of non

recurring expenditure from operating segments such as

restructuring costs and exceptional inventory write downs Interest

income and expenditure are not included in the result for each

operating segment that is reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer

Other information provided to the Chief Executive Officer is measured

in manner consistent with that in the financial statements

The assets and liabilities of the Group are not reviewed by the chief

operating decision-maker on segment basis Therefore none of

the Groups assets and liabilities are segmental assets and

segmental liabilities respectively and all are unallocated for

segmental disclosure purposes

iiiOther new standards adopted

The following new standards amendments to standards and

interpretations are mandatory for the first time for financial periods

commencing on January 2009 and have been adopted early

None of these have had significant impact on the reported results

lAS 23 amendment Borrowing costs

IFRS amendment Amendments to IFRS Share-based

Payment Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

lAS 32 and lAS amended Amendments to lAS 32 Financial

Instruments Presentation and lAS Presentation of Financial

Statements Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations

Arising on Liquidation

IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty programmes and

lAS 39 and IFRS amended Amendments to lAS 39 Financial

instruments Recognition and Measurement and IFRS Financial

Instruments Disclosures Reclassification of Financial Assets

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below unless otherwise stated in

note 1e above have been applied consistently to all periods

presented in these financial statements

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company Control exists

when the Company has the power directly or indirectly to govern

the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities In assessing control potential voting

rights on exercisable shares are taken into account Subsidiaries are

included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on

which control commences to the date that control ceases All

business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase

method All subsidiaries have January 2010 as their financial year

end The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed

when necessary to align them with policies applied by the Group

ii Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intragroup transactions balances and any unrealised gains and

losses or income and expenses arising from intragroup

transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial

statements

iii Investments in subsidiaries

Investments by the Company in subsidiaries are carried at cost less

any impairment

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars

which is the Companys functional currency All financial information

presented has been rounded to the nearest thousand

iiForeign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in currencies other than US dollars are translated at

the exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transaction Monetary

assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are translated to

US dollars at the exchange rate ruling at that date Exchange

differences arising on translation are recognised in the income

statement except for differences arising on qualifying cash flow

hedges which are recognised directly in equity see accounting

policy Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured

in terms of historical cost in currency other than US dollars are

translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction

iii Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of operations out with the UK are

translated to US dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the

balance sheet date The income and expenses of foreign

operations are translated to US dollars at rates approximating to

the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions

Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation of opening

net assets or liabilities are recognised directly in equity and

reported in other comprehensive income

Property plant and equipment

Owned assets

Items of property plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation see accounting policy ciii and

accumulated impairment losses see accounting policy

Cost includes the expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the asset

Where parts of an item of property plant and equipment have

different estimated useful lives they are accounted for and

depreciated as separate items of property plant and equipment
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Notes to the inaiciai statements conflnud

ii Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantiallyall the

risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases

finance leased asset is stated at an amount equal to the lower of

its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments

at the inception of the lease less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses see accounting policy Finance leased assets

are depreciated over the shorter of the lease periods and the

estimated useful lives of the assets The corresponding liability is

included in the balance sheet as finance lease obligation Lease

payments are accounted for as described in accounting policy rii

iiiDepreciation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount which is

the cost of an asset less its residual value Depreciation is charged

to the income statement on straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of each part of property plant and equipment Freehold

land is not depreciated The estimated useful lives are as follows

25 years

to years

to years

10 years

The residual values and estimated useful lives of items of property

plant and equipment are reviewed annually and are adjusted if

appropriate

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property plant and

equipment are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds

with the carrying amount and are included in the income statement

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and it represents

the excess of the fair value of the consideration paid on acquisition

over the Groups interest in the net fair value of the identifiable

assets liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree When the

excess is negative negative goodwill it is recognised immediately

in the income statement

In determining the fair value of consideration the fair value of equity

issued is the market value of equity at the date of completion The

fair value of contingent consideration is based upon whether the

directors believe any performance conditions will be met and

therefore whether any further consideration will be payable

Goodwill is not amortised but is measured at cost less accumulated

impairment losses see accounting policy

iiResearch and development

Expenditure on research activities undertaken with the prospect of

gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding

is recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred

Where product is technically feasible production and sale are

intended market exists and sufficient resources are available to

complete the project development costs are capitalised and

amortised on straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of

the product The Group believes its current process for developing

products is essentially completed when products have achieved

the Release to Production statUs which confirms technical

feasibility of the products to be manufactured and sold to the

commercial marketplace Development costs incurred after the

establishment of technical feasibility
have not been significant and

therefore no costs have been capitalised to date Where no

internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised

development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period

in which it is incurred

lli Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis

of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the specific

software These costs are amortised using the straight-line method

over their estimated useful lives oneto three years

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes

are recognised as an expense as incurred Costs that are directly

associated with the development of identifiable and unique

software items controlled by the Group and that will probably

generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year

are capitalised as intangible assets Other costs associated with

developing or maintaining computer software programmes are

recognised as an expense as incurred

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are

amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated useful

lives not exceeding three years

iv Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost or for items acquired in

business combinations at fair value as of initial recognition date or

business combination date net of amortisation and any provision

for impairment The directors are primarily responsible for

determining the fair value of intangible assets acquired as part of

business combination although independent valuations are

obtained for such intangible assets

Amortisation is provided at rates so as to write off the cost or fair

value less estimated residual value of each asset on straight line

basis over its expected useful economic life from the date that it

was available for use The principal economic lives used for this

purpose are

Acquired in-process research and development

Developed technology

Existing agreements and

customer relationships

Intellectual property rights

Amortisation methods useful lives and the estimated residual

values are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each balance

sheet date

Freehold property

Plant and equipment

Computer hardware

Furniture and fittings

Motor vehicles years

years

years

to 3.5 years

10 years
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Notes to the finanoial statements continued

Derivative financial instruments including hedge accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge some of

its foreign currency exposures Derivatives are recognised initially

at fair value attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit

or loss when incurred Subsequent to initial recognition derivatives

are measured fair value and changes therein are accounted for

as described below

Cash flow hedges

cash flow hedge is when derivative is designated as the

hedging instrument in hedge of the variability in cash flows

attributable to particular risk associated with recognised asset

or liability or highly probable forecast transaction that could affect

profit or loss Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging

instrument designated as cash flow hedge are recognised directly

in other comprehensive income to the extent that the hedge is

effective and presented in the hedging reserve in equity To the

extent that the hedge is ineffective changes in fair value are

recognised in profit or loss

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge

accounting expires or is sold terminated or exercised then hedge

accounting is discontinued prospectively The cumulative gain or

loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income and

presented in the hedging reserve in equity remains there until the

forecast transaction occur and affects profit or loss When the

hedged item is non-financial asset the amount recognised in

other comprehensive income is transferred to the carrying amount

of the asset when it is recognised If the forecast transaction is no

longer expected to occur then the balance in other comprehensive

income is recognised immediately in profit or loss In other cases

the amount recognised in other comprehensive income is transferred

to profit or loss in the same period that the hedged item affects

profit or loss

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially stated at their fair value

plus any directly attributable transaction costs Subsequent to initial

recognition such assets are measured at amortised cost using an

effective interest rate less any impairment losses see accounting

policy provision for impairment of trade receivables is

established when there is objective evidence that the Group will

not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original

terms of the receivables The amount of the provision is the

difference between the assets carrying amount and the estimated

future cash flows discounted if material The amount of the

provision is recognised in the income statement

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable

value Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to completion

and selling expenses

The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out method and

includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and

bringing them to their existing location and condition In the case of

manufactured inventories and work in progress cost includes raw

materials other direct costs and related overheads based on

normal operating capacity

Short-term deposits

Short-term deposits comprise cash deposits held with highly credit

rated financial institutions with original maturities of more than three

months and up to one year

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call

deposits with original maturities of three months or less held with

banks

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Groups assets other than financial

assets inventories see accounting policy and deferred tax

assets see accounting policy are reviewed at each balance

sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of

impairment If any such indication exists the assets recoverable

amount is estimated see accounting policy

Assets including goodwill that have an indefinite useful life or are

not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation and are

tested annually for impairment

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the

carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit CGU
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount Impairment losses are

recognised in the income statement Impairment losses recognised

in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount

of any goodwill allocated to the CGUs and then to reduce the

carrying amount of the other assets in the CGU on pro rata basis

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assets or CGUs is the greater of their

fair value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value in

use the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present

value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to

the asset For an asset that does not generate largely independent

cash inflows the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs The goodwill acquired

in business combination for the purpose of impairment testing is

allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from

the synergies of the combination

ii Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in the

estimates used to determine the recoverable amount

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets

carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would

have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation if no

impairment loss had been recognised An impairment loss in

respect of goodwill is not reversed
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Notes to the fins nciil statements continu 3d

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly

attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are shown in equity as

deduction net of tax from the proceeds

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net

of attributable transaction costs Subsequent to initial recognition

interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any

difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in

the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an

effective interest rate basis

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has

an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least

12 months after the balance sheet date

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan

under which an entity pays fixed contributions into separate entity

and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further

amounts Obligations for contributions to defined contribution

pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income

statement when services are rendered by employees

ii Defined benefit plan

The Groups and the Companys net obligation in respect of the

defined benefit pension plan is calculated by estimating the amount

of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their

service in the current and prior periods that benefit is discounted

to determine its present value and the fair value of any plan assets

is deducted The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date

on high quality credit rated bonds which are denominated in the

currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have maturity

dates approximating the terms of the Groups and the Companys

obligations The calculation is performed by qualified actuary

using the projected unit credit method When the calculation results

in benefit to the Group and the Company the recognised asset is

limited to the total of any unrecognised past service costs and the

present value of economic benefits available in the form of any

future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to

the plan In order to calculate the present value of economic

benefits consideration is given to any minimum funding

requirements that apply to the plan An economic benefit is

available to the Group and to the Company if it is realisable during

the life of the plan or on settlement of the plan liabilities

The movement in the net obligation in respect of the defined benefit

pension plan is split between operating expenses and net financing

income expense in the income statement and actuarial gains

and losses in the statement of comprehensive income

The Group recognises immediately all actuarial gains and

losses arising from defined benefit plans directly in other

comprehensive income

iii Share-based payment transactions Group and Company

Share options

The share option schemes allow Group employees to acquire

shares of the Company

Share options granted before November2002

No expense is recognised in respect of these options When the

share options are exercised the proceeds received are allocated

between share capital and share premium The disclosures required

by IFRS have been given for these options

Share options granted after November 2002 and vested after

January 2005

IFRS Share-based payments is effective in respect of options

granted after November 2002 and which had not vested as at

January 2005 There were no options granted after November

2002 which had vested before January 2005 The fair value of

options granted is recognised as an employee expense with

corresponding increase in equity The fair value is measured at

grant date and spread over the period during which the employee

becomes unconditionally entitled to the options The fair value of

the options granted is measured using Black-Scholes model

taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the

options were granted

The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the

number of share options that for which the related service and

non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met such that

the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the

number of share options that do meet the related service and non-

market performance conditions at the vesting date The estimates

of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable

are reviewed at each balance sheet date The impact of the revision

of origjnal estimates if any is recognised in the income statement

and corresponding adjustment to equity The proceeds received

net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to

share capital nominal value and share premium the balance when

the options are exercised

Performance shares

The grant date fair value of contingent shares awarded to directors

and senior management is recognised as an employee expense

with corresponding increase in equity over the period that the

employees become unconditionally entitled to the shares The amount

recognised as an expense for awards with non-market performance

conditions is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest

ExSOPs

The grant date fair value of ExSOPs awarded to directors and

senior management is recognised as an employee expense with

corresponding increase in equity over the period in which the

employees become unconditionally entitled to the shares The fair

value of the ExSOP5 awarded is measured using valuation model

taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the

ExSOPs were granted
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iii Share-based payment transactions

Group and Company continued

Contingent shares

The grant date fair value of contingent shares awarded to employees

is recognised as an employee expense with corresponding

increase in equity over the period that the employees become

unconditionally entitled to the shares The amount recognised as

an expense for awards with service and non-market performance

conditions is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest

iv Bonus plans

The Group recognises liability and an expense for cash bonuses

This expense is recognised as an employee expense The Group

recognises liability for the amount expected to be paid under

short-term cash bonus plans where contractually obliged or where

there is past practice that has created constructive obligation

to pay this amount as result of past service provided by the

employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

Employee share trusts

The Company has established two employee share trusts

The Wolfson Microelectronics No.1 Employee Share Trust and

The Wolfson Microelectronics No.2 Employee Share Trust which

are separately administered trusts that are funded by loans from

the Company The assets of these trusts comprise shares in the

Company and cash balances The Company recognises the assets

and liabilities of these trusts in its own accounts and shares held by

the trusts are recorded at cost as deduction in arriving at

shareholders funds

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost using the

effective interest rate method

Provisions

provision is recognised if as result of past event the Group

and the Company has present legal or constructive obligation

that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash

flows at pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability

The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost

Onerous contracts

provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected

benefits to be derived by the Group and by the Company from

contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its

obligations under the contract The provision is measured at the

present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the

contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract

Revenue

Revenue comprises the sale of goods income for design services

supplied and royalty income earned during the period and excludes

sales taxes

Product revenues

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the income

statement when the significant risks and rewards of ownership

have been transferred to the buyer Where the Group sells to its

distributors revenue from the sale of products is recognised where

there are no further obligations on the Group and when the

associated economic benefits are due to the Group and the

turnover can be measured reliably

iiDesign services

Design income on specific contracts is recognised in profit or loss

in proportion to the stage of completion at the reporting date

taking into account the expected costs and time to complete

The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the project

milestones achieved Where revenue exceeds payments on

account an amount recoverable under contracts is established and

included within receivables Where payments on account exceed

revenue payment received on account is established and

included within payables

iii Royalty income

Royalty income represents revenue earned under joint product

development agreements and software licence agreements

Such revenue is earned and income is recognised when sales of

the developed product to third parties for which royalty is due

are confirmed to the Group

Expenses

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the

income statement on straight-line basis over the term of the

lease

iiFinance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance

charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability The finance

charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to

produce constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability

iii Net financing costs

Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings

calculated using the effective interest rate method interest

receivable on funds invested expected return on defined benefit

plan assets and the interest on the defined benefit plan obligations

and the unwinding of the discount on provisions

Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it

accrues using the effective rate of interest method

Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current

and deferred tax Income tax is recognised in the income statement

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in

equity in which case it is recognised in equity or in other

comprehensive income
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Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable

income or loss for the period using tax rates enacted or substantively

enacted at the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years Tax relief on the exercise of

share options is allocated between the income statement and

equity in accordance with lAS 12

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet liability method

providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the

amounts used for taxation purposes This includes deferred tax on

share-based payments which were granted prior to November

2002 and which have not been exercised The following temporary

differences are not provided for the initial recognition of goodwill

the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in transaction that is

not business combination and that affects neither accounting nor

taxable profit and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries

to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable

future The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the

expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying

amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are offset where there is legally enforceable

right of offset within the same taxation authority and where the

Group intends to either settle them on net basis or to realise the

asset and settle the liability simultaneously

deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is

probable that future taxable profits will be available against which

the asset can be utilised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will

be realised

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

period Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the

profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of

potentially dilutive ordinary shares which comprise share options

granted to employees

Segment reporting

An operating segment is distinguishable component of the Group

that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues

and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to

transactions with any of the Groups other components All operating

segments operating results at gross profit level are reviewed

regularly by the Groups Chief Executive Officer to make decisions

regarding resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its

performance and for which discrete financial information is

available see note eii above

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Other than those adopted early as explained in note 1e above

the following new standards amendments to standards and

interpretations have been issued but are not effective for the

fifty-three
week period ended January 2010 which began on

29 December 2008 nor financial years beginning January 2009

and have not been early adopted by the Group

IFRS revised Business combinations and consequential

amendments to lAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial

statements AS 28 Investments in associates and lAS 31

Interests in joint ventures are effective prospectively to business

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the

beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or

after July 2009 There were no acquisitions during the fifty-

three week period ended January 2010 The Group does not

have any joint ventures

IFRIC 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners effective

for annual periods beginning on or after November 2009 This

is not currently applicable to the Group as it has not made any

non-cash distributions

IFRIC 18 Transfers of assets from customers is effective for

transfers of assets received on or after November 2009 This is

not relevant to the Group as it has not received any assets from

customers

Revised IFRS Business Combinations 2008 incorporates the

following changes that may be relevant to the Groups

operations

Contingent consideration will be measured at fair value

with subsequent changes therein recognised in profit or loss

Transaction costs other than share and debt issue costs

will be expensed as incurred

Any non-controlling minority interest will be measured at

either fair value or at its proportionate interest in the

identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree on

transaction by transaction basis

Revised IFRS which becomes mandatory for the Groups 2010

consolidated financial statements will be applied prospectively

and there will be no impact on prior periods in the Groups 2010

consolidated financial statements

Amended lAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements 2008 requires accounting for changes in ownership

interests by the Group in subsidiary while maintaining control

to be recognised as an equity transaction When the Group loses

control of subsidiary any interest retained in the former

subsidiary will be measured at fair value with gain or loss

recognised in
profit or loss The amendments to lAS 27 which

become mandatory for the Groups 2010 consolidated financial

statements are not expected to have significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements

Amended lAS 39 Eligible Hedged Items Amendment to lAS 39

Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement clarifies

the existing principles that determine whether specific risks or

portions of cash flows are eligible for designation in hedging

relationship The amendment which becomes mandatory for

the Groups 2010 consolidated financial statements is not

expected to have significant impact on the consolidated

financial statements
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Determination of fair values

Some of the Groups accounting policies and disclosures require

the determination of fair value for both financial and non-financial

assets and liabilities Fair values have been determined for

measurement and or disclosure purposes based on the following

methods When applicable further information regarding the

assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements which are specific to that asset

or liability

Property plant and equipment

The fair value of property plant and equipment recognised as

result of business combination is based on market values at date

of acquisition

ii Intangible assets

The fair value of developed technology acquired as result of

business combination is based on the discounted royalty payments

that have been avoided as result of the developed technology

being owned For in-process research and development acquired

as result of business combination the fair value is estimated

based on the income method taking into account the cash flows

post technological feasibility The fair values of licence agreements

and of customer relationships acquired as result of business

combination are estimated based on the risk adjusted present value

of the marginal cash flows derived from the agreements and

relationships respectively

iii Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed

market price if available If listed market price is not available

then fair value is estimated by discounting the difference between

the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the

residual maturity of the contract using risk-free interest rate

based on government bonds

iv Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the

present value of future cash flows discounted at the market rate

of interest at the reporting date No disclosure of the fair value of

trade and other receivables is required when the carrying amount

is reasonable approximation of fair value

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair value which is determined for disclosure purposes is calculated

based on the present value of future principal cash flows discounted

at the market rate of interest at the reporting date

vi Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee share options is measured using the

Black-Scholes model Measurement inputs include share price on

measurement date exercise price of the instrument weighted

average expected life of the instruments based on historical

experience and general option holder behaviour expected volatility

and the risk free rate based on government bonds Service and non-

market performance conditions attached to the share-based payment

transactions are not taken into account in determining fair value

The fair value of contingent shares is the market value of the

Companys shares on the date of the award

Operating segments

Segment disclosures

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the

Chief Executive Officer CEO of the Company The CEO reviews

the Groups internal reporting in order to assess performance and

to allocate resources Management has determined the operating

segments based on these reports The CEO considers the business

from product technology and market segment perspective

The Group currently has one reportable segment as described

below which is the Groups Pure Sound segment The following

summary describes the operations in the Groups reportable

segment

Pure Sound this segment includes the supply and sale of

integrated circuits containing Wolfsons high performance audio

technologies The product lines within this segment are

categorised as High Performance Audio Low Power Audio

Audio Hubs Imaging and Audio Amplifiers

Other operating segments include the supply and sale of integrated

circuits in the Smart Power power management True Mics

silicon microphones and Enhanced Soundware product lines

as outlined in pages to 12 of the Business Review section of this

Annual Report and Accounts 2009 None of these segments

meets any of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable

segments in 2009 or in 2008 and accordingly the relevant revenue

and segment gross profits are shown in aggregate as other

operating segments

Information regarding the operation of the reportable segment is

included below The CEO assesses the performance of the

operating segments based on revenue and measure of segment

gross profit Segment gross profit is used to measure performance

as management believes that such information is the most relevant

in evaluating the results of the segment The gross profit measurement

basis excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure from

operating segments such as restructuring costs and exceptional

inventory write downs Interest income and expenditure are not

included in the result for each operating segment that is reviewed

by the CEO Other information provided to the CEO is measured

in manner consistent with that in the financial statements

The segment information is prepared using accounting policies

consistent with those of the Group as whole There were no

inter-segment transactions in the periods presented

The assets and liabilities of the Group are not reviewed by the chief

operating decision-maker on segment basis Therefore none of

the Groups assets and liabilities are segmental assets and segmental

liabilities respectively and all are unallocated for segmental

disclosure purposes

All segments are continuing operations
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Operating segments continued

Notes to the fin2ncicl statements contnu3d

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues profit or loss assets and liabilities and other material items

Revenues

Total revenue for reportable segments

Total revenue for other operating segments

Consolidated revenue

Profit or loss

Total gross profit for reportable segments

Total gross profit for other operating segments

Unallocated amounts

Corporate overhead expenses

Inventory write-downs

Restructuring costs

Onerous lease costs

Operating loss profit for the period

Financial income

Financial expense

Consolidated loss profit before income tax

Assets

116149 194511

5182 3688

121331 198199

58712 98894

2769 1903

86105

3500

2850

8342

4210

1922

14810 10630

Total assets for reportable segments

Total assets for other operating segments

Goodwill and acquired intangible assets Sonaptic

Goodwill and acquired intangible assets Oligon

Other unallocated amounts

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments

Total liabilities for other operating segments

Other unallocated amounts

Consolidated total liabilities

Pure Sound

2009

$000

2008

$000

Total external revenues

Reportable segment gross profit

Reportable segment assets

Capital expenditure

Reportable segment liabilities

Other operating segmeits

2009 2008

$000 $000

116149

58712

Total

2009

$000

2008

$000

194511 5182 3688 121331 198199

98894 2769 1903 61481 100797

2009 2008

$000 $000

76781

500

15800

2306

1316

29098

5704

161948

33807

5809

167840

196750 207456

28735 31 26

28735 31126
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Operating segmerots continued

Reportable Consolidated

segment totals Adjustments totals

Other material items 2009 $000 $000 $000

Financial income 2306 2306

Financial expense 1316 1316

Capital expenditure 6635 6635

Depreciation and amortisation 13893 13893

Reportable Consolidated

segment totals Adjustments totals

Other material items 2008 $ooo $000 $000

Financial income 4210 4210

Financial expense 1922 1922

Capital expenditure 6070 6070

Depreciation and amortisation 14379 14379

Geographical information

The operating segments are managed from the United Kingdom on worldwide basis but operate research and development facilities in the

United Kingdom and in Japan subcontracted manufacturing operations in South East Asia and in Europe and sales offices in China Japan

Korea Singapore Taiwan and the United States of America

In presenting the consolidated information on geographical basis revenue is based on the geographical location of customers

The United Kingdom is the place of domicile of the parent company Wolfson Microelectronics plc All of the Groups revenue originates from the

United Kingdom

Analysis of revenue by destination

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Japan 21018 32693

Asia Pacific 83155 133915

Americas 6038 7919

Europe and rest of world 11120 23672

Total 121331 198199

Destination is defined as the location of the direct customer

The Groups revenue from customers based in the United Kingdom is $9162000 in the 53 week period ended January 2010

2008 $20889000
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Operating segments continued

Analysis of revenue by category

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Revenues from

Products sold
120033 196572

Royalty income and design services 1298 1627

Total
121331 198199

Analysis of non-current assets excluding goodwill and other intangible assets

Asat Asat

January 28 December

2010 2008

Note $ô00 $000

Japan
153 96

Asia Pacific 7379 9248

Americas
93 27

Europe and rest of world 24469 25030

10 32094 34401

Includes the united Kingdom which had non-current assets excluding goodwill and other intangible assets of $24456000 as at January 2010 as at 28 December 2008 $25005000

Major customer

Revenues from the largest customer of the Group in 2009 represents approximately $16200000 largest customer in 2008 $26100000

of the Groups total revenues The largest customer of the Group in 2009 was not the largest customer of the Group in 2008

Exceptional charges

During the 53 week period ended January 2010 an exceptional charge of $0.5 million has been recognised in the consolidated income

statement in respect of the remaining lease costs of the exited offices in the south of England following the consolidation of these offices

into new office in Newbury

In the preceding 52 week period ended 28 December 2008 as disclosed in the 2008 consolidated financial statements of the Group

restructuring costs of $2.85 million were recognised in the period as an exceptional charge in the consolidated income statement as

programme was undertaken during that period to review the non-RD cost base of the Company together with exceptional inventory

write downs of $3.5 million consequent on significant drop in forecast demand identified during the final quarter of 2008
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Exceptional charges continued

Analysis of exceptional charges

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Onerous lease costs

Distribution and
selling costs 500

500

Restructuring costs

Distribution and selling costs 743
Research and development expenses 127

Administrativeexpenses 1980

2850

Exceptional write down of inventories

Cost of sales 3500

Total exceptional charges recognised in the period 500 6350

Operating expenses

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Operating loss profit is stated after charging crediting

Depreciation note 10 7233 7552

Amortisation of intangible assets hote 11 6660 6827

Write down of inventories

before exceptional charge 463 1934

exceptional charge note 3500

Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 150 150

Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment and intangible assets

Loss gain on foreign exchange transactions and translation 364 1281

Audit and non-audit fee disclosure

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Audit of these financial statements Group and Company 132 148

Amounts receivable by auditors and their associates in respect of

Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 21 13

Other services provided to overseas branches of the Company 30 113

Other services
relating to taxation 94 124

All other services 50 67
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Personnel expenses

Group Company

53 weeks 52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended ended ended

January 28 December January 28 December

2010 2008 2010 2008

No No No No

Average number of employees

including executive directors by activity

Design and development
214 202 209 202

Selling
and distribution

130 127 98 113

Administration
37 37 37 37

381 366 344 352

Group Company

53 weeks 52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended ended ended

January 28 December January 28 December

2010 2008 2010 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

Wages and salaries 27967 34361 23803 31623

Social security costs 3359 3326 3045 3138

Contributions to defined contribution pension plans 1049 1039 942 999

Defined benefit pension costs note 18 222 577 222 577

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions note 18 2254 3671 2173 3496

34851 42974 30185 39833

Information regarding the directors remuneration shareholdings share options other share-based payments and pension arrangements is

contained in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 34 to 47

Net financing income

53weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Bank interest receivable 1441 3062

Other interest receivable
64

Expected return on defined benefit pension plan assets note 18 801 1148

Financial income 2306 4210

Other interest payable 76 93

Notional interest arising on discounted payables 244 573

Interest on defined benefit pension obligation note 18 996 1256

Financial expenses
1316 1922

Net financing income 990 2288
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Income tax credit expense

Current tax

Current tax for the current and prior periods is classified as current liability to the extent that it is unpaid Amounts paid in excess of

amounts owed are classified as current asset The Group has current tax asset of $3107000 at January 2010 as at 28 December

2008 $896000 liability The Company has current tax asset of $3169000 at January 2010 as at 28 December 2008 $991000 liability

Recognised in the income statement

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Current tax credit expense

Current year 2971 4208

Adjustments for prior years 261 153
Overseas taxes 219 23

3013 4078

Deferred tax credit expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 2025 1380

Adjustments for prior years 452 266

1573 1114

Total income tax credit expense in income statement 4586 2964

Current and deferred tax recognised directly in equity

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Relating to equity-settled transactions current tax 23
Relating to equity-settled transactions deferred tax note 13 673 960

Relating to net pension liability note 13 805 96

Increase decrease in equity 1478 841
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53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

10224 7666

360 4655

3612 3620

1851 2283

4401 18224

cents cents

8.88 652

8.88 6.50

3.82 15.51

3.82 1545

Notes to the finaicial statements continued

Income tax credit expense continued

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

53 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended ended ended

January January 28 December 28 December

2010 2010 2008 2008

$000 $000

Loss profit before tax 481 10630

Income tax using the UK corporation tax rate 28.0% 4147 28.5% 3030

Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions rate increased
1.5% 219 0.2% 23

Non-deductibleexpenses
0.8% 115 4.1% 431

Tax incentives not recognised in the income statement 10.8% 1600 18.1% 1922

Tax expense on share options 0.9% 130 7.6% 806

Adjustments relating to prior years
1.3% 191 1.1% 113

Tax losses not recognised
5.2% 766 4.5% 483

30.9% 4586 27.9% 2964

Earnings per share

Loss profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders basic and diluted

Exceptional charges after tax

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets

Share-based payment expenses and related payroll
taxes

Underlying loss profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders basic and diluted

Basic loss earnings per share

Diluted loss earnings per share

Underlying basic loss earnings per share

Underlying diluted loss earnings per share

after the tax impact of this charge
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Earnings per share continued

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss earnings per share for each period were

calculated as follows

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

No of shares No of shares

Issued ordinary shares at start of period 115120980 118276980
Effect of shares issued during the period from exercise of employee share options 39875 33608
Effect of shares cancelled during the period following purchase by C9mpany of own shares 791 389

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at end of period

for basic loss earnings per share and diluted loss per share 115160855 117519199

Effect of share options in issue 398288 465704

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at end of period

for diluted earnings per share 115559143 117984903

Basic loss earnings per share

The calculation of basic loss per share for the 53 week period ended January 2010 was based on the loss attributable to equity

shareholders of $10224000 52 week period ended 28 December 2008 $7666000 profit and weighted average number of ordinary

shares during the 53 week period ended January 2010 of 115160855 2008 117519199 calculated as shown above

Diluted loss earnings per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the 53 week period ended January 2010 was based on the loss attributable to equity

shareholders of $10224000 52 week period ended 28 December 2008 $7666000 profit and weighted average number of ordinary

shares during the 53 week period ended January 2010 of 115160855 2008 117984903 calculated as shown above

The average market value of the Companys shares for the purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of share options was based on quoted

market prices for the period that the options were outstanding

Underlying basic loss earnings per share

The calculation of underlying basic loss per share for the 53 week period ended January 2010 was based on the loss attributable to equity

shareholders before the exceptional charge amortisation of acquired intangible assets and share-based payment expenses and related

payroll taxes net of tax effect of $4401000 2008 $18224000 profit and weighted average number of ordinary shares during the

53 week period ended January 2010 of 115160855 2008 117519199 calculated as shown above

Underlying diluted loss earnings per share

The calculation of underlying diluted loss per share for the 53 week period ended January 2010 was the same as the calculation for

underlying basic loss per share for that period as described above

The calculation of underlying diluted earnings per share for the 52 week period ended 28 December 2008 was based on the profit attributable

to equity shareholders before the exceptional charges amortisation of acquired intangible assets and share-based payment expenses

net of tax effect of $18224000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares during the 52 week period ended 28 December 2008

of 117984903 calculated as shown above
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10 Property plant and equipment

Notes to the fin ncial statements continu9d

Group

Land and Plant and Computer Furniture Motor

buildings machinery hardware and fittings vehicles

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

31067

2691

3652

1659

158

Total

$000

2439

241

Cost

At31 December2007 18882 127 56167

Additions
59 4650

Disposals
22 22

Transfer 158

Effect of movement in

exchange rates
119 107 11 215

At28December2008 18882 33600 5588 2787 153 61010

At29 December2008 18882 33600 5588 2787 153 61010

Additions 2609 1786 546 21 4962

Disposals 14 25 41

Effect of movement in

exchange rates 23 49 72

At3January2OlO 18882 36195 7372 3380 174 6603

Depreciation

At 31 December 2007 1408 14617 1839 914 100 18878

Charge for the period 377 6057 839 254 25 7552

Disposals
22 22

Transfer 149 149

Effect of movement in

exchange rates 98 103 201

At 28 December 2008 1785 20525 2925 1271 103 26609

At29 December2008 1785 20525 2925 1271 103 26609

Charge for the period 378 5438 1113 282 22 7233

Disposals

Effect of movement in

exchange rates
22 58 72

At January 2010 2163 25953 4058 1610 125 33 09

Net book value

At31 December2007 17474 16450 1813 1525 27 37289

At28 December2008 17097 13075 2663 1516 50 34401

At29 December2008 17097 13075 2663 1516 50 34401

At3January2OlO 16719 10242 3314 1770 49 3294
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10 Property pant and equipment continued
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Land and Plant and Computer Furniture Motor

buildings machinery hardware and fittings vehicles Total

Company $ooo $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Cost

At31 December2007 18882 30967 3517 2276 127 55769

Additions 2691 1649 202 59 4601

Disposals 158 29 135 81 403

At 28 December 2008 18882 33500 5137 2343 105 59967

At29 December2008 18882 33500 5137 2343 105 59967

Additions 2494 1768 466 21 4749

Disposals 14 14

At3January2OlO 18882 35980 6905 2809 126 64702

Depreciation

At31 December2007 1408 14548 1806 891 100 18753

Charge for the period 377 6031 776 205 25 7414

Disposals 148 34 46 29 257

At 28 December2008 1785 20431 2548 1050 96 25910

At 29 December 2008 1785 20431 2548 1050 96 25910

Charge for the period 378 5394 1083 215 11 7081

Disposals

At January 2010 2163 25823 3631 1265 107 32989

Net book value

At31 December2007 17474 16419 1711 1385 27 37016

At28 December2008 17097 13069 2589 1293 34057

At29 December2008 17097 13069 2589 1293 34057

At3January2OlO 16719 10157 3274 1544 19 31713



11 Intangible assets

Notes to the finaicial statements continued

Revision to deferred consideration

At January 2010

Amortisation

At 31 December 2007

Amortisation for the period

At 28 December 2008

At 29 December 2008

Amortisation for the period

Disposals

At3January2OlO

In-process

research Developed

Goodwill development technology

$000 soco $000

16294 5382

1900 16294 5382 440

1900 16294 5382 440

52 weeks

ended

28 December

2008

$000

Distribution and selling costs

Research and development expenses

Administrative expenses

10

6201 6214

449 612

6660 6827

Group

1900

Cost

At 31 December 2007 22399

Additions

Revision to deferred consideration 543

At 28 December 2008 22942

At 29 December 2008 22942

Additions

Disposals

Licence Customer Computer

agreements relationships software Total

$000 $000 $000 $000

440 5061 51476

1420 1420

543

6481 53439

6481 53439

1673 1673

1850 1850

202

6304 53434

202

23144 1900 16294 5382 440

1428 674 220 3639 5961

3260 1540 220 1807 6827

4688 2214 440 5446 12788

4688 2214 440 5446 12788

220 3260 1536 1644 6660

1850 1850

220 7948 3750 440 5240 17538

22399 1900 14866 4708 220 1422 45515

22942 1900 11606 3168 1035 40651

22942 1900 11606 3168 1035 40651

23144 1680 8346 1632 1064 35836

Net book value

At 31 December 2007

At 28 December 2008

At 29 December 2008

At January 2010

Amortisation charge

The amortisation charge is recognised in the following line items in the consolidated income statement

53 weeks

ended

January

2010

$000
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11 Intangible assets continued

Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill

The Group reviews goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired

For the purposes of this annual review the directors reviewed the balance of goodwill in respect of the acquisitions in 2007 of Oligon Limited

and Sonaptic Limited for impairment in accordance with lAS 36 Impairment of Assets No impairment charge was considered necessary as

result of this annual impairment review

For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill is allocated to the Groups operating segment which represents the lowest level within the

Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes

The carrying amounts of goodwill by cash generating unit CGU of $23144000 can be analysed as

Analysis of goodwill

Asat Asat

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Goodwill relating to Oligon True Mics operating segment note 4024 3909
Goodwill

relating to Sonaptic Enhanced Soundware operating segment note 19120 19033

23144 22942

The recoverable amount of segment is based on value-in-use calculations and this is compared to the carrying amount of each CGU to

determine whether the respective CGUs require to be impaired The basis applied has been deemed appropriate by the directors as it is

consistent with the way in which the value of the individual CGUs is assessed by management and would be by other market participants

The method applied is to determine value-in-use by assessing the discounted pre-tax cash flows expected to be earned from specific

products developed from the acquired technologies within the respective CGUs As the two identified CGUs share many of the same risk

factors the directors consider the discount rate applicable to each CGU should be the same

These calculations cover five years of projected pre-tax cash flows which incorporate the approved business plan and current market data

regarding the relevant technologies Management determined the financial projections based on its expectations of market developments

and likely end customer demand over the five year period The forecast revenues which are included in the projected cash flows are

managements current estimates and are based on identified specific opportunities for the developed products containing the acquired

technologies Industry market data regarding the projected demand for the end product applications containing the relevant technologies

has also been used by management to assess the forecast revenues

The operating margins included in the projected cash flows reflect those deemed to be achievable in the commercial markets in which

the products will be sold and have been assessed over the five year period having regard to product life cycles and expected market

demand characteristics

Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using terminal value multiple terminal value having been estimated by management
based on year five cash flows

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 25% 2008 25% and reflects the risks assessed by the directors as being

attributable to the relevant CGUs and takes into account an assessment of relevant risl factors and appropriate external published

information

Other potential opportunities for the use of the technologies relating to the acquired business have not been factored into the projected

pre-tax cash flows for the purpose of this impairment testing This is as consequence of these opportunities involving aspects of the

technologies being integrated into other products and therefore the relevant cash flows are not separable

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs exceeded the respective carrying values at the time of the impairment test

Whilst cash flow projections are subject to inherent uncertainty with volume estimates dependent to large extent upon the timing of when

customers ramp their own production of the relevant consumer products themselves sensitivity analyses were conducted on the

assumptions used in estimating the projected pre-tax cash flows These indicated that significant reduction of the projected cash flows

from the expected level would not cause the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to fall below the carrying amount

The Business Review on pages to 12 contains details of the progress during the period with the development of the technologies

associated with the acquired businesses
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11 Intangible assets continued

Contingent consideration

There are contingent cash consideration balances which are payable in accordance with the terms of these acquisitions and are subject to

the achievement of certain milestones of $2.3 million and $5.3 million within current and non-current liabilities respectively as at January

2010 as at 28 December 2008 $3.3 million and $6.2 million respectively These contingent cash consideration liabilities have been

assessed based on the probability of their payment as at January 2010 and the amounts have been discounted to their present values

During 2009 the contingent cash consideration amounts were reviewed and reassessed and as result of which the contingent cash

consideration liabilities increased by total of $202000 with corresponding increase to goodwill

Intellectual Computer

property rights software Total

Company
$000 $000 $ooo

Cost

At 31 December 2007 2525 5061 7586

Additions 1420 1420

Disposals

At 28 December 2008 2525 6476 9001

At 29 December 2008 2525 6476 9001

Additions 1673 1673

Disposals 1850 1850

At3January2OlO 2525 6299 8t24

Amortisation

At 31 December 2007 63 3639 3702

Amortisation for the period
253 1807 2060

Disposals

At 28 December 2008 316 5442 5758

At 29 December 2008 316 5442 5758

Amortisation for the period 253 1644 1897

Disposals
1850 1850

At3January2OlO
569 5236 5iO5

Net book value

At 31 December 2007 2462 1422 3884

At28 December2008 2209 1034 3243

At 29 December 2008 2209 1034 3243

At January 2010 1956 1063 319
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12 Investments in subsidiaries

Company

Cost

At 31 December 2007

Revision to consideration for cost of investment note 11

At 28 December 2008

At29 December2008

Revision to consideration for cost of investment note 11

At3January 2010

Note 25 contains details of these subsidiaries

13 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

1749 2245 1749

439 400 439

639 377 639

1541 340 1541

165 324 188 244 23

2784 1441 1937 2489 847

1937 1441 1937 1441

847 1048 847

Total

$009

43090

543

43633

43633

202

43835

Assets

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Group $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Liabilities

Property plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Employee benefits pensions

Employee benefits share-based payments

Other items

Deferred tax assets liabilities

Set off of tax

Net deferred tax assets liabilities

Net

439

639

1613

244

2935

2935

400

377

351

720

1848

1848

1749

3264

216

5229

2935

2294

2253

4670

270

7193

1848

5345

1749

2825

639

1613

28

2294

2294

2253

4270

377

351

450

5345

5345

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Company $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Assets Liabilities

Property plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Employee benefits pensions

Employee benefits share-based payments

Other items

Deferred tax assets liabilities

Set off of tax

Net deferred tax assets liabilities

Net

2245

400

377

340

80

1048

1048
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13 Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued

Movement in temporary differences during the period

Notes to the finaicial statements continued

Group

Balance at Balance at

31 December Recognised Recognised 28 December

2007 in income in equity
2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

Property plant and equipment
2682 429 2253

Intangibleassets
5881 1611 4270

Employee benefits pensions
097 816 96 377

Employee benefits share-based payments 1165 146 960 351

Other items 706 256 450

5595 1114 864 5345

Balance at
Balance at

29 December Recognised
in Recognised Janury

2008 income in equity
210

$000 $000 $000 $00

Property plant and equipment
2253 504

Intangible assets 4270 1445

Employee benefits pensions 377 543 805

Employee benefits share-based payments 351 589 673

Other items 450 422

5345 1573 1478

1749

2825

639

1613

28

Company

Property plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Employee benefits pensions

Employee benefits share-based payments

Other items

2294

Balance at Balance at

31 December Recognised in Recognised in 28 December

2007 income equity 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

2613 368

194 206

1097 816 96

1163 146 969

301 221

142 317 873

2245

400

377

340

80

1048

Balanc at

3Janiary

210

$100

Property plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Employee benefits pensions

Employee benefits share-based payments

Other items

Balance at

29 December

2008

$000

Recognised in Recognised in

income equity

$000 $000

2245

400

377

340

80

496

39
543

561
103

1048 450

1749

439

805 639

640 1631

1445 37
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13 Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items

Group Company

Group and Company

2009 2008

$000 $000

Raw materials and consumables

Work in progress

Finished goods

3640

2063

5586

11289

8402

2897

7690

18989

In the 53 week period ended January 2010 raw materials and consumables and changes in finished goods and work in progress

recognised as cost of sales amounted to $56194000 52 week period ended 28 December 2008 $95383000

15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Other receivables

Prepayments and accrued income

2008

$000

17844

1812

1253

1445

22354

The Group and Companys exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are disclosed

in note 21

2009 2008 2009 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

Tax losses 1912 1117 140 140

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax amount of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profit

will be available against which the Group and the Company can utilise the benefits thereon

14 Inventories

Group

2009

$000

2008

$000

14163

2009

$000

Company

648 1294

1813 1943

16624 21222

17985 14023

3869

611

1213

19716
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16 Cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

Bank balances 1149 10457 531 10141

Bank deposits
13370 2129 13158 177

Cash and cash equivalents 14519 12586 13689 10318

Short-term deposits 83251 79607 83251 79607

The Group and Companys exposure to interest rate risk and sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 21

17 Capital and reserves

Share capital and share premium

Asat3 Asat

January 28 December

2010 2008

1o of shares No of shares

In issue at start of period 115120980 118276980

Issued for cash on exercise of employee share options 118000 53000

Cancelled on purchase by Company of own shares 3209000

In issue at end of period fully paid 115238980 115120980

At January 2010 the authorised share capital comprised 135000000 ordinary shares as at 28 December 2008 135000000 which have

nominal value of 0.1 pence per share All issued shares are fully paid

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company and are entitled to receive dividends as

recommended by the directors The holders of ordinary shares also have an unlimited right to share in the surplus remaining on winding

up after all creditors are satisfied

During the 53 week period ended January 2010 118000 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence which had an aggregate nominal value of 18

$192 were issued for total consideration of 44200 $72000

The Company did not purchase any of its own ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the 53 week period ended January 2010 52 week

period ended 28 December 2008 3209000 own ordinary shares purchased by the Company for total consideration including expenses

of $nil 2008 $6661000 and those shares had an aggregate nominal value of 3209 i.e $6000 and all of those shares were immediately

cancelled in 2008

During the 53 week period ended January 2010 the Companys employee share trusts acquired none 2008 none of the Companys

shares for a-consideration of $nil 2008 $nil There were 5056461 of the Companys ordinary shares held by the Companys employee

share trusts as at January 2010 as at 28 December 2008 5378301 ordinary shares
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17 Capital and reserves continued

Options

The Companys directors senior management and employees have been granted options over ordinary shares under employee share option

schemes as follows

First scheme

Second scheme

EMI scheme

2003 Executive Share Scheme

2003 Executive Share Scheme

2003 All Employee Share Scheme

2003 All Employee Share Scheme

25000

525100

243000

96068

474363

1683655

1880393

4927579

100000

18000

186211

1051769

25000

425100

225000

275177

1360027

1425760

1700010

5436074

Retained earnings reserve

The movements in this reserve for the Group and for the Company in the 53 week period ended January 2010 are shown in the

statements of changes in equity on pages 52 and 53 respectively

The cumulative foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations in the Group was $3000 gain in the 53 week period ended

January 2010 52 week period ended 28 December 2008 $5000 loss and is included within the retained earnings reserve

Capital redemption reserve

The balance on this reserve as at 31 December 2007 represented an amount equal to the nominal value of deferred shares which were

bought back by the Company out of profits during the year ended 31 December 2003 These deferred shares were then cancelled

During 2008 as result of the cancellation of those own shares which were purchased by the Company an amount equal to the nominal

value of those shares totalling 3209 $6000 has been transferred to this reserve

There were no movements in this reserve during the 53 week period ended January 2010

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to

hedged transactions which have not yet occurred note 21

18 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits schemes

Asat Asat

.Januàry .28 December

2010 2008

Group and Company $000 $000

Present value of funded obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations page 81

At 29 December

2008 Exercised Granted

At January

Lapsed 2010

118000

7102

166105

257895

180383

1237980 611485

22191

19908

2283

14382

13035

1347
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18 Employee benefits continued

Liability for defined benefit obligations

The Group makes contributions to UK-based defined benefit plan that provides pension benefits for UK employees upon retirement

The plan was closed to new entrants with effect from July 2002 The defined benefit plan and actuarial assumptions are based on

sterling denominated assets and liabilities

Plan assets consist of the following

Asat Asat

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Equity securities
9264 5948

Government bonds
4091 3833

Corporate bonds 4117 3192

Cash 2391 18

Other assets
45 44

19908 13035

Movements in the liability for defined benefit obligations

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Liability for defined benefit obligations at start of period
14382 22533

Current service cost note
222 577

Interest cost note
996 1256

Contributions by plan participants
150 216

Actuarial losses gains recognised in equity
5012 3914

Exchange
differences 1429 6286

Liability for defined benefit obligations at end of period 22191 14382

Movements in plan assets

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 13035 18615

Contributions by the employer 2563 3140

Contributions by plan participants
150 216

Expected return on plan assets note 801 1148

Actuarial gains/losses recognised in equity 2137 4258

Exchange differences 1222 5826

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 19908 13035
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18 Employee benefits continued

Expense recognised in the income statement

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Current service costs 222 577

Interest on obligation 996 1256

Expected return on plan assets 801 1148

417 685

Exchange differences 207 460

624 225

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the income statement

53weeks 52weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Distribution and selling costs 45 117

Research and development expenses 126 327

Administrative expenses 51 133

Total current service costs note 222 577

Exchange differences

Distribution and
selling costs 42 93

Research and development expenses 117 260
Administrative expenses 48 107

207 460

Financial income 801 1148
Financial expense 996 1256

Actual return on plan assets 3042 4068

Actuarial gains and losses recognised directly in equity

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Cumulative amount of actuarial losses at beginning of period 5418 5074

Recognised loss during the period 2875 344

Cumulative amount of actuarial losses at end of period 8293 5418
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18 Employee benefits continued

Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date expressed as weighted averages

2009 2008

Future salary increases

Future pension increases

Inflation assumption

Mortality table

Equities

Bonds

Other

566%

7.00%

4.75%

0.50%

4.00%

3.70%

5.70%

PXi92 3irth year

Medium Cohort

6.50%

7.00%

4.75%

2.00%

4.00%

3.00%

3.00%

PXA92 Birth year

Medium Cohort

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables The expected long-term rate of return is based

on the portfolio as whole and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories

Historical information

The Group and Company expect to pay approximately $0.5 million in ongoing contributions in 2010 The deficit reported in the latest draft

actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan as at March 2009 was approximately million and the Company paid in respect of that

deficit 1.3 million $2.2 million in the 53 week period ended January 2010 The latest draft actuarial valuation of the defined benefit

plan is being considered by the Company and by the trustees of the plan so that contributions schedule can be defined and agreed

Discount rate at January 2010/28 December 2008

Expected return on plan assets

As at As at As at As at As at As Ct

January 28 December 00 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2010 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Present value of defined benefit obligation 22191 14382 22533 24291 17686 14979

Fair value of plan assets 19908 13035 18615 14034 10436 7049

Deficit in the plan
2283 1347 3918 10257 7250 7930

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Experience adustments arising on plan liabilities 323 788

Experience adjustments arising on plan assets 2241 5221

314 394

244 400

126 533

1483 259
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18 Employee benefits continued

Share-based payments

Share option plans

In previous years the Group has established share option

programme that entitles directors senior management and other

employees to purchase shares in the Company Grants have been

made of share options in the period from 1995 to June 2008

During the 53 week period ended January 2010 share options

were granted to executive directors and senior management as

part of the 2009 long term incentive scheme arrangements pages

38 and 47 In accordance with these share option schemes options

are exercisable at the market price of the shares at the date of grant

Additionally there were 28 separate grants of share options to

employees before November 2002 The recognition and

measurement principles in IFRS have not been applied to these

grants in accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS

and IFRS

The Wolfson Microelectronics 2006 Performance Share Plan

This long term incentive plan was approved by shareholders at an

Extraordinary General Meeting on 16 February 2006 The first grant

of contingent shares was made on 10 March 2006 to executive

directors and senior management as part of long term incentive

plan and further awards were made to senior management in

September and October 2006 During 2007 grant of contingent

shares was made on February 2007 to executive directors and

senior management and further award was made in August 2007

to senior management During 2008 grant of contingent shares

was made on 30 April 2008 to executive directors and senior

management In addition awards were made to specific other

senior managers in September and December 2008 In 2009

awards of contingent shares from this plan were made to the

executive directors and senior management as part of the long

term incentive arrangements Further details are included inthe

Directors Remuneration Repor-t on pages 38 and 43

No consideration was paid for any of these awards The fair value

is determined by reference to the market value of the shares at the

date of grant The contingent share awards granted in the period

until 2009 have non-market related vesting conditions and

therefore the likelihood of vesting has been taken into account

when determining the relevant charge Vesting assumptions are

reviewed during each reporting period to ensure they reflect current

expectations For the 2009 contingent share awards granted from

this scheme there is market and non-market related vesting

condition which have equal weighting Further details of this plan

are contained on pages 38 and 43 and 44 of the Directors

Remuneration Report

The Wolfson Microelectronics Group Executive Shared

Ownership Plan ExSOP
On 20 March 2006 executive directors and other members of the

senior management team each acquired beneficial interest as

joint owner in number of shares in the Company for consideration

of pence per share further award to new member of the senior

management team was made in September 2006

In 2007 executive directors and other members of the senior

management team each acquired on February 2007 beneficial

interest as joint owner in number of shares in the Company for

consideration of pence per share No ExSOP awards were

granted in 2008 nor in 2009

The registered shareholder of the shares is RBC cees Trustee

Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Wolfson Microelectronics

No Employees Share Trust The beneficial interest in the award

shares is held jointly by the participant and RBC cees Trustee

Limited in its capacity as trustee of The WolfsonMicroelectronics

No Employees Share Trust

The interests in the ExSOP award shares are defined by the terms

of an agreement between RBC cees Trustee Limited in its

capacity as trustee of The Wolfson Microelectronics No Employees

Share Trust the individual and RBC cees Trustee Limited

in its capacity as trustee of The Wolfson Microelectronics No

Employees Share Trust

The participants will if and insofar as the performance targets are

met derive the growth in value of proportion of the ExSOP award

shares less the 5% per annum carrying Cost The performance

target set in relation to the 2007 award relates to the real growth

i.e growth above RPI achieved over the three year period

financial years 2007 to 2009 in adjusted earnings per share of the

Company Adjusted earnings per share is calculated as the basic

earnings per share derived from the Companys published report

and accounts The Remuneration Committee may make

adjustments to the basic earnings per share as may be necessary

or appropriate for example to take account of changes to

accounting standards the actual length of the financial year in

question and to ensure consistent basis of comparison from year

to year For real growth of 10% per annum or higher the participant

will derive the growth in value of 100% of the ExSOP award shares

for real growth of 5% 25% of the ExSOP award shares for real

growth between these amounts the percentage of the ExSOP

award shares will be determined by straight line interpolation

between these thresholds The participant will derive no growth in

value of awards shares for real growth below 5% Refer also to

pages 44 and 45 of the Directors Remuneration Report
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18 Employee benefits continued

The Wolfson Microelectronics 2008 Staff Performance

Share Plan

In 2008 the Company established staff share scheme The Wolfson

Microelectronics 2008 Staff Performance Share Plan which allows

the grant of contingent share awards to employees the vesting of

those shares being dependent on the individual remaining an

employee of the Group throughout the specified period Awards

from this scheme can only be satisfied from shares held in the

employee share trusts which have been purchased in the market

rather than by new issue shares In accordance with this share

scheme no amounts are payable by the employees in respect of

the grant of these contingent share awards The Company issued

contingent share awards from this scheme to employees during 2008

The fair value is determined by reference to the market value of the

shares at the date of grant The contingent share awards have non-

market related vesting conditions and therefore the likelihood of

vesting has been taken into account when determining the relevant

charge Vesting assumptions are reviewed during each reporting

period to ensure they reflect current expectations

For the awards made in 2008 the contingent share awards will vest

on the date three years after the date of grant subject to the award

holder remaining an employee within the Group throughout that

period unless the award holder leaves employment within the

Group as result of one of the specified circumstances defined in

the rules of the Scheme

The Wolfson Microelectronics 2009 Staff Performance

Share Plan

In 2009 the Company established this staff share scheme

The Wolfson Microelectronics 2009 Staff Performance Share Plan

which allows the grant of contingent share awards to employees

excluding directors the vesting of those shares being dependent

on the individual remaining an employee of the Group throughout

the specified period Awards from this scheme can only be

satisfied from shares held in the employee share trusts which have

been purchased in the market rather than by new issue shares

In accordance with this share scheme no amounts are payable by

the employees in respect of the grant of these contingent share

awards The Company issued contingent share awards from this

scheme to employees during 2009

The fair value is determined by reference to the market value of

the shares at the date of grant The contingent share awards have

non-market related vesting conditions and therefore the likelihood

of vesting has been taken into account when determining the

relevant charge Vesting assumptions are reviewed during each

reporting period to ensure they reflect current expectations

For the awards made in 2009 the contingent share awards will

vest in three equal tranches on each anniversary of the grant date

over year period such that the third tranche vests on the date

years after the date of award subject to the award holder

remaining an employee within the Group throughout that vesting

period unless the award holder leaves employment within the

Group as result of one of the specified circumstances defined in

the rules of the Scheme
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Share option plans

The terms and conditions of the share option grants which were outstanding at any time during the 53 week period ended January 2010

are as follows whereby all options are settled by the physical delivery of shares

23 March 2001

20 March 2002

20 March 2002

Jacuary 2003

25 April 2003

Jane 2003

l4Aaguot2003

30 July2004

27 August 2004

10 30 July 2004

Ii lOMaroh2000

12 lOMarch2005

13 10 March2005

14 Septemben 2005

It 23Nuvember2005

16 16 March2006

17 2May2006

18 l9June 2006

10 24 August 2006

20 25 September 2006

21 26 October 2006

22 27 November 2006

23 l900cember2006

24 February 2007

25 February 2007

26 February 200y

3f Oecember 2007

36 Morch 2006

37 June 2000

36 lOMorch2009

Employees

entitled

employees

directom senior management and employees

dimcturs senior management and employees

directom aed senior manegement

employees

employees

directom senior management and employees

employees

employees

directom and senior management

employees

directors and oenior manatement

6mployeeo

employees

employees

emploeen

employees

employees

employees

employees

employees

employees

director

employees

employees

employees

employees

employees

director

employees

employees

employees

employees

senior m000gement

employees

employees

employees

enecutive directors sod senior manegement

contractual life

of options

10 yesru

yearn

10 yeam

yesm

yeam

10 yeam

yeam

it
yeam

it yeam

10 yeam

10 years

10 yeam

tO yeam

10
years

10 years

10 yeam

ltyeam

10 yeam

ltyeem

10 years

10 years

10 yeam

10 yeam

to yeam

10 yearn

it yeam

10 yesm

It yearn

10
years

10
years

10 years

10 years

10 yearu

10 yeam

10 yesm

10 years

10 yearo

it years
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Grant dote

Number vesting

of options conditions

25000 Thme years of service

0000 Three years ot service

230000 Three years of service

95000 Three years of servipe and POIT per share growth rste of 2005 prsfito relative

to 2002 protts at leest RPIi0% per annum Them iou sliding scale of options

vesting tsr lower pertormance hot gromth rate ot above API t%per annum

moot be achieved

20000 Three years of oervice

13000 Thme
yearn ot oervice

405100 Three years of service dod conditional on the Oompany achieving an initial

public offering by 30 November 2003

518507 Pour yeoro otoervice

20000 Four dears of service

119805 trsployed daring vesting period and increase of API plus 10% perannom in

ePO iv 2006 over EPS in 2003 there isa sliding scale for lower perforrnance

41 3460 Pour years otoervice

189719 Three years of service and increase of API plan 10% per annum in EPS

in 2007 over SPS in 2004 there is sliding scale for lower perforrsaoce

5000 Poor yeOrs of oersice

20000 Poor yearo of oervice

10000 Pour years of oervice

597426 Pour years of sersice

13000 Poor years of oersice

7833 Four years of oervice

160000 Pouryearsofoewice

40000 Poor years of oervice

17000 Poor yearsof oersice

40000 Four years of oervice

118374 employed during vesting period and real growth in 6P5 above 5% in 2000 by

reference fo 2007 as the bose year These options lapsed on 31 Oecersber 2008

refer to page 47sf the Oimctors Remuneration Report

56000 Three years of oervice

765470 Three years of oervice

528406 employed during vesting period of one year and to the esfent that opecitc

boniness performonceobectiveo are achieved in the tnoociol year 2007

3983 Three years of 000dce

3080 Employed during vesting pedod of one yeor aod to the esleet that opecifc

business performance obeetives- ore achieved in the toonciol year 2007

54933 The performance conditions were the same as for the toSOPo granted so

February 2007 as stated on page 04

27700 employed during vesting pefod and increase of API plus 10% per annum in

EPS in 2009 over SPS in 2006 there isa sliding scale for lower performance

10000 Three years of oewice

131000 Threeyearsofservice

69400 Three years of oersice

60000 Ersployed during vesting period ond incr000e of API plus 10% per annum in

tPS in 2009 over SF5 in 2006 there isa sliding scale for lower performance

30000 Three yearn of service

85000 Three years of oervice

13200 Three years of oervice

1195427 Srsployed during the three year performance pedod Performance conditions

area share price appreciof ion forget end cash cqooervsf ion eoch rseooure

hoving 50% weightiog Oetoilo of these performance conditions ore included so

page 38 of the Oirectors Rewunerefiov Report

42553 ersplsyod doring the three yvar performance pedod Perforwonce conditions

area ohore pdce appreciation forget and cash conservation each ree000re

hoviof 50% weighting

27 February 2007

29 February 2007

29 February 2007

30 6Augoot 2007

31 August 2007

32 September 2007

33 Novewber 2007

34 Novewber 2007

39 September 2009 senior management

25% of the optiods granted can be evercinod one year after the grant date and then by equal monthly instalments thereafter for the nest three years
One third of the opt ions granted con be esercised one year offer the grant dote further third on the second anniversary of the grant dote and the final third of the

options erected can be eoercined on the third anniversary of the grant date

10 years



Notes to the finuncial statements .continL ed

18 Employee benefits continued

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows

Weighted average Number of Weighted average
Number of

exercise price options exercise price options

pence pence

53 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended ended ended

January January 28 December 28 December

2010 2010 2008 2008

Outstanding at the beginning of the period
242.2 4927579 247.4 6029623

Lapsed during the period 271.8 611485 270.2 1147244

Exercised during the period 37.5 118000 26.8 53000

Granted during the period 93.7 1237980 132.3 98200

Outstanding at the end of the period 209.5 5436074 242.2 4927579

Exercisable at the end of the period 264.2 3058938 253.3 2885931

The options outstanding at January 2010 have an exercise price in the ranges as summarised below

Nunibr o1options Weighted

ortstanding at average remaining

January contractual life

Exercise price range
2010 years

l5to 20 pence 245000 2.12

4oto75pence 430100 0.64

g2tol33pence 1233627 9.18

141 to 224 pence 1361236 5.35

256 to 287 pence 228500 7.39

293.42 to 307.75 pence 1195986 7.10

411.34 to 479 pence 741625 6.34

5436074 6.31

The weighted average share price during the 53 week period ended January 2010 was 110.3 pence per share 52 week period ended 28

December 2008 118.3 pence per share

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted

The estimate of the fair value of the services received is measured baaed on Black-Scholes model

Senior Senior Other Other

Directors Directors Managenlent Management employees employees

Fair value of share options and assumptions 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Fair value at measurement date pence 36 n/a 47 n/a n/a 59

Share price pence 92 n/a 122 n/a n/a 132

Exercise price pence 92 n/a 122 n/a n/a 132

Expected volatility 59.7% n/a 59.7% n/a n/a 60.0%

Option life weighted average life
n/a n/a n/a

Expected dividends NH n/a Nil n/a n/a Nil

Risk free interest rate based on UK government bonds 2.2% n/a 2.2% n/a n/a 5.0%

as there were number of separate option grants during
the period the assumptions included in the table are the weighted average figures across all of these option grants in the period
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18 Employee benefits continued

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options

adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility

based on publicly available information

These share options are granted under service condition and for grants to senior management and directors both non-market and market

performance conditions Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account in the grant date fair value measurement

of the services received

The Wolfson Microelectronics plc 2006 Performance Share Plan

The fair value of the contingent shares is the market value of the Companys shares on the date of the award

Number of Weighted

contingent average

performance fair value

shares pence

Outstanding as at 29 December 2008 1197228 159.7

Awarded in the period 1036118 123.5

Vested in the period 226367 184.6

Lapsed in the period 21784 386.8

Outstanding as at January 2010 1985195 124.6

ExSOPs

The fair value of ExSOPs at grant date is determined using valuation model which takes into account the terms and conditions upon which

the ExSOPs were awarded The model inputs in respect of the fair value of the ExSOPs granted in 2007 i.e those ExSOPs which are

outstanding as at January 2010 were share price 304 pence and risk free interest rate based on UK government bonds 5.3%

Weighted

average

Number of
fair

value

ExSOPs pence

Outstanding as at 29 December 2008 365080 91.2

Awarded in the period

Lapsed in the period 94584 117.8

Outstanding as at January 2010 270496 81.9
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18 Employee benefits contInued

Deferred share awards

Deferred awards of ordinary shares in the Company were made on 19 December 2006 on 25 September 2008 and on 23 March 2009

to two executive directors and to new member of the senior management team respectively Details of the award made to the executive

director in 2008 are contained in the Directors Remuneration Report on page 45 As disclosed in the Directors Remuneration Report

contained in the Annual Report and Accounts 2008 the remaining 50% of the award made on 19 December 2006 vested on 31 December

2008 and 90579 ordinary shares in the Company were transferred to the award holder from The Wolfson Microelectronics No Employees

Share Trust after February 2009 following the announcement of the Groups 2008 financial results

The fair value of the contingent shares is the market value of the Companys shares on the date of the award

Number of Weighted

contingent average

a-formance fair value

uhares pence

Outstanding as at 29 December 2008 512519 145.3

Vested in the period
90579 277.0

Awarded in the period
55000 96.75

Outstanding as at January 2010 476940 114.7

The Wolfson Microelectronics plc 2008 Staff Performance Share Plan

The fair value of the contingent shares is the market value of the Companys shares on the date of the award

Weighted

Number of average

contingent fair value

shares pence

Outstanding as at 29 December 2008 771387 139.2

Awarded in the period

Vested in the period
12449 141.0

Lapsed in the period 112481 141.0

Outstanding as at January 2010 656457 138.9

The Wolfson Microelectronics plc 2009 Staff Performance Share Plan

The fair value of the contingent shares is the market value of the Companys shares on the date of the award

Weighted

Number of average

coningent fair value

shares pence

Outstanding as at 29 December 2008

Awarded in the period 1941002 85.3

Vested in the period 13988 82.0

Lapsed in the period
120050 820

Outstanding as at January 2010 18 6964 85.5
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Employee expenses

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

January 28 December

2010 2008

$000 $000

Share options granted in 2004 99

Share options granted in 2005 24 159

Share options granted in 2006 137 156

Share options granted in 2007 78 1000
Share options granted in 2008 60

Share options granted in 2009 249

Performance shares awarded in 2006 100 89

Performance shares awarded in 2007 350 203
Performance shares awarded in 2008 627 942

Performance shares awarded in 2009 342

Contingent shares awarded in 2008 470 435

Contingent shares awarded in 2009 1139

ExSOP5 awarded in 2006 148 28
ExSOPs awarded in 2007 272 84

Deferred shares awarded in 2006 238

Deferred shares awarded in 2008 264 71

Deferred shares awarded in 2009 66

Share award on appointment in 2008 163

Total expense recognised in personnel expenses 2254 3671

These amounts included together total of $478000 recognised in the exceptionsi charges note in the 52 week period ended 28 December 2008

The total share-based payment expense recognised in the income statement of the Company in the 53 weeks ended January 2010 was

$2173000 52 weeks ended 28 December2008 $3496000

19 Trade and other payables

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

Non-current liabilities

Other payables 5851 6244 5816 6244

Current liabilities

Trade payables 10239 5076 10239 5076
Amounts due to subsidiaries 3948 2340
Derivatives used for hedging note 21 1051 1051

Non-trade psyables 3485 3512 3406 3462
Accruals 4227 7655 4129 7521

17959 17294 21730 19450

The Group and Companys exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in note 21
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20 Provisions

Onerous

contracts

Group and Company
$000

Balance at 29 December 2008

Provisions made in the period note
500

Provisions used in the period
152

Unwind of discount

Balance at January 2010
348

Non-current
91

Current
257

348

Onerous contracts

During the 53 week period ended January 2010 the leased office premises in Swindon and in High Wycombe were exited following the

consolidation of the activities conducted in these offices into new office in Newbury The leases for the premises in Swindon and in High

Wycombe expire in February 2011 and in May 2011 respectively These premises have not been sublet The obligation for the discounted

future payments for these leases has been provided for

21 Financial Instruments

The Groups principal financial instruments as at January 2010 comprise cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits The main

purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Groups operations The Group has other financial instruments which mainly comprise

trade receivables and trade payables which arise directly from its operations In addition during 2009 the Company entered into forward

foreign exchange contracts some of which remain in lace as at January 2010

In 2008 in view of the volatility experienced in the US dollar to Sterling exchange rate in the period the Company decided to enter into

forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge some of the Companys structural exposure to fluctuations in the US dollar to Sterling

exchange rate primarily in 2009 During 2009 the Company entered into forward foreign exchange contracts each quarter to hedge large

proportion of the Companys structural exposure to fluctuations in the US dollar to Sterling exchange rate for the following quarter see

Currency risk section below

The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes

Exposure to market risk which includes currency and interest rate risk and credit risks arises in the normal course of the Groups business

The Group has Treasury Committee which is chaired by RK Graham and its other members are the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief

Financial Officer This Committee meets periodically as required and it reviews the Groups overall financial risk management including

specific areas such as foreign exchange risk interest-rate risk credit risk and liquidity management The Committee reports to and makes

recommendations to the Board regarding these matters

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Groups income or the

value of its holdings of financial instruments The management of market risk involves the control of market risk exposures within acceptable

parameters while optimising the return having regard to risk

Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to currency risk on purchases sales and cash and cash equivalents that are denominated

in currency other than United States dollars The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Pounds Sterling Yen and Euros Foreign

exchange risk arises from transactions recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations
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In financial periods prior to 2008 the Group did not use foreign exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk This policy was reviewed

during 2008 and resulted in the Company deciding to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts primarily to hedge some of the

Companys exposure to fluctuations in the US dollar to Sterling exchange rate in 2009 During 2009 the Company entered into forward

foreign exchange contracts each quarter to hedge large proportion of the Companys structural exposure to fluctuations in the US dollar to

Sterling exchange rate for the following quarter All of the forward foreign exchange contracts in place as at January 2010 have maturity

of less than three months from that date As at January 2010 the Group and the Company have hedged significant element of its

estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of approximately 90 percent of its Sterling denominated overhead costs over the following

three months

The majority of the Groups revenue and cost of sales are denominated in US dollars Approximately 30% 2008 30% approximately of the

Groups operating costs other than cost of sales are denominated in US dollars The vast majority of the operating expenses are

denominated in Pounds Sterling

For those monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than US dollars the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an

acceptable level by selling or buying foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances

The Group has investments in foreign operations whose net assets are exposed to currency translation risk This currency exposure arising

from the net assets of the Groups foreign operations is not significant and there is currently no requirement for borrowings therefore this

exposure is not managed through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

Financial assets and financial liabilities by currency Notes $000 $000 $000 $000

US dollar trade and other receivables 15 14894 19008 18235 19716
Other currencies trade and other receivables 15 1730 2214 1481 2638
US dollar cash and cash equivalents 16 13515 .11671 13225 11568

Sterling cash and cash equivalents i6 152 726 61 1519
Other currencies cash and cash equivalents 16 852 1641 525 269

US dollar short-term deposits 16 83251 79607 83251 79607

Other currencies trade and other payables 19 5586 6790 5891 6675
US dollar trade and other payables 19 18216 15697 21647 17968
Sterling derivatives used for hedging 1051 1051

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year

Average rate Spot rate at balance sheet date

2009 2008 2009 2008

GBP 1.5903 1.8816 1.6168 1.4759

EUR 1.3890 1.4714 1.4322 1.4059

Interest rate risk

The Group and Company earn interest from bank deposits and they hold money market deposits with highly credit rated financial institutions

During 2009 the Group and Company have held cash on deposits with range of maturities from one to twelve months This can vary in

view of changes in US and UK interest rates and the Group and Companys cash requirements

The Group and the Companys cash and cash equivalents are subject to floating interest rates As the maturities of bank deposits are less

than one year they are classified as floating rate financial assets

Sensitivity analysis Group and Company

At January 2010 it is estimated that general increase of one percentage point in interest rates would improve the Groups and the

Companys result before tax by approximately $1000000 as at 28 December 2008 $1000000
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It is estimated that decrease of one cent in the US dollar Sterling exchange rate would have improved the Groups result before tax by

approximately $300000 for the 53 week period ended January 2010 2008 $275000 There were forward foreign exchange contracts in

place during 2008 2009 as at 28 December 2008 and as at January 2010

It is estimated that decrease of one cent in the US dollar Sterling exchange rate would have increased the fair value of liabilities for

derivatives used for hedging as at January 2010 by approximately $130000 as at 28 December 2008 $120000

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk The exposure to credit risk is mitigated by selling to diverse range of customers

and where necessary obtaining either letters of credit or payments in advance The Group establishes specific allowance for impairment

if loss is estimated in respect of trade and other receivables

Counterparties for cash and short-term deposits are limited to financial institutions which have high credit rating The Group has policies

that limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution and these have been reviewed regularly during the period

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet Therefore the

maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was

Not past due

Past due to 30 days

Past due 31 to 60 days

Past due 61 to 90 days

More than 90 days

9919

3558

669

74

221

14441

10571

7177

406

20

18135

Group

2009

.$000

2008

$000

Company

2009

$000

2008

$000Notes

Trade and other receivables 15 16624 21222 19716 22354

Cash and cash equivalents 16 14519 12586 13689 10318

Short-term deposits 16 83251 79607 83251 79607

114394 113415 116656 112279

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographical region was

2009 2008

$000 $000-

Japan
2522 3172

Asia Pacific
9535 12123

Americas 1268 487

Europe and rest of world 838 2203

14163 17985

Impairment /osses

The aged profile of trade receivables at the reporting date was

Gross Impairment Gross impairment

2009 2009 .2008 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

--

57
221

278

150

150
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Credit risk continued

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the period was as follows

2009 2008

$000 $000

Balance at start of the period 150 75

Written off against irrecoverable trade receivable 22 75
Impairment loss.recognised 150 150

Balance at end of the period 278 150

The allowance in respect of trade receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Group is satisfied that no recovery of the

amount owing is possible at that point the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against the trade receivable directly

Based on past experience the Group believes that no further impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables which are

past due

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The Groups approach to managing

liquidity is to ensure asfar as possible that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and

stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Groups reputation

The Group regularly reviews its cash flow requirements on rolling quarterly basis Short-term US dollar deposits are placed with financial

institutions which have high credit rating The deposits are placed so that at least one deposit matures each month

As at January 2010 the Group had cash and cash equivalents of $14519000 as at 28 December 2008 $12586000 and short-term

deposits of $83251000 as at 28 December 2008 $79607000

The Company has an undrawn committed multi-option facility up to maximum principal amount of $30 million which may be utilised by

the Company by way of overdraft short-term fixtures letters of credit The commitment period of the facility expires in March 2011

Maturity analysis

There are amounts totalling $7.6 million 2008 $9.5 million included in non-trade payables of which $2.3 million falls due within one an

$5.3 million in one to three years from the balance sheet date These balances are the contingent consideration amounts as at January

2010 relating the acquisition in 2007 of subsidiaries

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities

Oarrying contractual months

amount cash flows or less to 12 months to years to years

Groupasat3January2olo $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 23802 24473 16878 1122 2938 3535

Derivative financial liabilities

Forward foreign exchange contracts used for hedging

Outflow 44 44

23510 24517 16922 1122 2938 3535

Excludes derivatives shown separately
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Carrying Contractual months

amount cash flows or less to 12 months to years to5 years

Group as at 28 December 2008 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 22487 26665 19515 110 3680 3360

Derivative financial liabilities

Forward foreign exchange contracts used for hedging

Oufflow 1051 1041 1041

23538 27706 20556 110 3680 3360

Excludes derivatives shown separately

Carrying contractual months

amount cash flows or less tol2 mont is to-2 years to ye3rs

Company as at January 2010 $000 $000 $000 $00 $000 $00

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 27538 27691 20131 1122 2938 3t00

Derivative financial liabilities

Forward foreign exchange contracts used for hedging

Outflow 44 44

27546 27735 20175 1122 2938 300

Excludes derivatives shown separately

Carrying Contractual months

amount cash flows or less tol2 months to years
to years

Company as at 28 December 2008 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payablea 24643 25490 18340 110 3680 3360

Derivative financial liabilities

Forward foreign exchange contracts used for hedging

Outflow 1051 1041 1041

25694 26531 19381 110 3680 3360

Excludes derivatives shown separately
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The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with derivatives that are cash flow hedges are expected to occur

and the periods in which the cash flows associated with derivatives that are cash flow hedges are expected to impact profit or loss

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Liabilities

Expected months

cash flows or ess to 12 months

$000 $000 $000

The basis of determining fair values is disclosed in note 2w The fair values together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet

are as follows

Group and Company as at January 2010

carrying

amount

$000

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Liabilities
441 44

Carrying Expected months

amount cash flows or less to 12 months

Group and Company as at 28 December 2008 $000 $000 $000 $000

Fair Values

1051 1041 1041

Group Notes

carrying Fair Oarrying Fair

amount value amount value

2009 2009 2008 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

Trade and other receivables 15 16624 16624 21222 21222

Cash and cash equivalents 16 14519 14519 12586 12586
Short-term deposits 16 83251 83251 79607 79607
Trade and other payables 19 23802 23802 22487 22487
Forward

foreign exchange contracts used for hedging

Liabilities 19 1051 1051

90584 90584 89877 89877

Analysed as

Loans and receivables 99875 99875 100829 100829

Cash and cash equivalents 14519 14519 12586 12586

Financial liabilitiesatfairvalue 1051 1051
Trade and other payables 23802 23802 22487 22487

90584 90584 89877 89877

Excludes derivatives Ishown separatelyl
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Fair Values continued

Carrying Frir Carrying
Fair

amount value -amount value

2009 2019 2008 2008

Company
Notes $000 $000 $000 $000

Trade and other receivables 15 19716 1976 22354 22354

Cash and cash equivalents 16 13689 13669 10318 10318

Short-term deposits 16 83251 83251 79607 79607

Trade and other payables 19 27538 27538 24643 24643

Forward foreign exchange contracts used for hedging

Liabilities
19 1051 1051

89110 8910 86585 86585

Analysed as

Loans and receivables 102967 102967 101961 1-01961

Cash and cash equivalents 13689 136119 10318 10318

Financial liabilities at fair value 1051 1051

Trade and other payables 27538 27538 24643 24643

89110 89110 86585 86585

Excludes derivatives shown separately

The following section summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments reflected

in the tables above other than for financial instruments set out in note 2w

Trade and other receivables payables

All trade and other receivables and payables except for $5.9 million included in other payables 2008 $6.2 million have remaining life of

less than one year The nominal amount is deemed to reflect the fair value

Capital Management

The Boards policy is to maintain strong balance sheet so as to maintain investor customer creditor and market confidence and to sustain

the future development of the business

Purchase of own shares

As matter of policy the Company may from time to time purchase its own shares on the market the timing of these purchases depends

on market prices The Company will only purchase its own shares when in the light
of market conditions prevailing at the time the Board

believes that the effect of such purchases is in the best interest of shareholders generally Other investment opportunities appropriate

gearing levels and the overall position of the Company will be taken into account before the Company purchases its own shares At the

Annual General Meeting held on 20 May 2009 the shareholders granted the Company the authority to purchase in the market its own

ordinary shares up to maximum of 11512098 ordinary shares

In 2009 the Company did not purchase any of its own shares As reported in the Annual Report and Accounts 2008 at the beginning of 2009

in view of the economic environment at that time the Board decided to suspend the share buyback programme which had been implemented

in the second half of 2008 During that period in 2008 total of 3209000 of the Companys ordinary shares were bought back and cancelled

and the aggregate consideration paid by the Company for those shares including expenses was $6661000

This policy will be reviewed by the Board on regular basis This was the only change to the Groups capital management approach during

the 53 week period ended January 2010

Dividends

The Companys current policy which is kept under regular review is to retain future earnings for the development and expansion of the

business Payment of any future dividends will be at the discretion of the Board after taking into account various factors including the

Companys current and future cash requirements development plans and operating results
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21 Financial Instruments continued

Management of cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposit balances

Although the revenue for the 53 week period ended January 2010 was $121 3m 39% lower than the revenue for the 52 week period ended

28 December 2008 the Group maintained gross margin at 50.7% 2008 50.9% before the exceptional charge and reduced total overhead

costs before exceptional charges to $76.8m 2008 $86.1 Combined with focus on working capital management this resulted in total

cash cash equivalents and short-term deposits balance increasing by $5.6m to $97.8m as at January 2010 as at 28 December 2008 $92.2m

see also page 16 in the Operating and Financial Review

22 Operating leases

Total non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000

Expiring in

Less than one year 98 393 91 114

Between one and five years 2235 1253 1271 816

More than five years 1491 762 1491 762

3824 2408 2853 1692

None of these leases includes contingent rentals

During the 53 week period ended January 2010 $1442000 was recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement in respect

of operating leases 52 week period ended 28 December 2008 $1480000 excluding the exceptional charge for onerous lease costs note

23 Capital Commitments

As at January 2010 the Group had entered into contracts to purchase property plant and equipment and to purchase computer software

for $562000 2008 $665000 which is expected to be settled in 2010

24 Related parties

Identity of related parties

The Company has related party relationship with its subsidiaries see notes 12 and 25 with the employee share trusts see notes 17

and 18 and with its directors

Transactions with key management personnel

Directors of the Company and their immediate relatives control 3.5% per cent of the voting ordinary shares of the Company Information

regarding the directors shareholdings and share options is contained in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 41 and 47

In addition to their salaries the Group and Company also provide non-cash benefits to executive directors and contribute to defined

contribution pension plan on their behalf The executive directors also participate in the Groups share option schemes and other long term

incentive plans see note 18 Details of the directors remuneration are contained in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 34 to 47

Collinson was appointed as non-executive director of the Company on September 2008 From
April 2005 to July 2007 Collinson

served as non-executive director of Sonaptic Limited and he was also shareholder of Sonaptic Limited Collinson held 6667 ordinary

shares in Sonaptic Limited As reported in the Annual Report and Accounts of the Company for the period ended 30 December 2007

Wolfson Microelectronics plc acquired the entire issued share capital of Sonaptic Limited on 23 July 2007 Collinson received initial

consideration of $279208 net of professional fees and charges at the time of acquisition from Wolfson Microelectronics plc and following

the release of the amount of initial consideration held in escrow on 29 January 2009 further $22240 net of professional fees and charges

The terms of the acquisition were such that contingent consideration was payable to the shareholders of Sonaptic Limited Therefore as part

of the consideration for his shares held in Sonaptic Limited as at the date of acquisition Collinson is entitled to receive subject to the
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24 Related parties continued

achievement of specific business milestones proportion of the contingent consideration from Wolfson Microelectronics plc in accordance

with the terms of the share purchase agreement entered into on 23 July 2007 between the Company and the selling shareholders of Sonaptic

Limited No amounts of contingent consideration have been paid to Collinson by the Company either as at 28 December 2008 or at

January 2010 Collinson will not participate in any discussion nor final decisions by the Board regarding the achievement of milestones and

release of contingent consideration

Other related party transactions

During the 53 week period ended January 2010 subsidiaries earned commission income from the Company of $6.4 million 2008 $2.9

million and the Company provided management services to the subsidiaries totalling $2.6 million 2008 $1.6 million As at January 2010

the Company owed the subsidiaries $3948000 2008 $2340000 and $3869000 was owed by the subsidiaries 2008 $1812000 owed by

the subsidiaries No dividends were received from the subsidiaries in 2009 or in 2008

There are two employee share trusts The Wolfson Microelectronics No.1 Employees Share Trust and The Wolfson Microelectronics No

Employees Share Trust These trusts received loans from the Company totalling $nil in the 53 week period ended January 2010 52 week

period ended 28 December 2008 $nil the trusts repaid $nil of these loans 2008 $623000 and as at January 2010 $31765000 of these

loans were outstanding as at 28 December 2008 $31765000 During both the 53 week period ended January 2010 and the 52 week period

ended 28 December 2008 the trusts did not purchase any of the Companys shares for the purposes of fulfilling
awards under The Wolfson

Microelectronics 2006 Performance Share Plan The Wolfson Microelectronics 2008 or 2009 Staff Performance Share Plans The Wolfson

Microelectronics Group Executive Shared Ownership Plan and to satisfy share option awards note 18 There were 5056461 of the Companys

ordinary shares held by the Companys employee share trusts as at January 2010 as at 28 December 2008 5378301 ordinary shares

25 Group Entities

Significant subsidiaries

Ownership interest

Country of Principal
2009 2008

Notes incorporation activity

Wolfson Microelectronics Inc 12 United States of America Sales agency 100 100

Wolfson Microelectronics Pte Ltd 12 Singapore Sales agency 100 100

Oligon Limited 12 Scotland Dormant 100 100

Sonaptic Limited 12 England Research 100 100

development

Sonaptic Limited has three wholly owned subsidiaries Sonaptic Inc incorporated in the United States of America Wolfson

Microelectronics KK incorporated in Japan and Wolfson Microelectronics Korea Limited incorporated in South Korea The principal

activity of each of these companies is sales agency

All of these companies are included in the consolidated financial statements of Wolfson Microelectronics plc from the date on which control

commenced

26 Accounting estimates and judgements

The Board considered the relevance selection implications and disclosure of the Groups critical accounting policies and estimates and the

application of these policies and estimates

The criteria for assessing the accounting for development expenditure are set out in the accounting policy at note 2d
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26 Accounting estimates and judgements continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2U
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations These calculations require

the use of estimates for the timing and amount of projected cash flows note 11 The carrying amount of goodwill as at January 2010 is

shown in note 11 The effect of change of percentage points in the discount rate applied to the projected cash flows would have no

impact on the carrying value of goodwill as at January 2010

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Some items included in inventories are written down to their net

realisable value based on assumptions about future demand and market conditions If actual market conditions are less favourable than

those projected by management then inventory may be required to be written down by additional amounts The carrying amount of

inventories as at January 2010 is shown in note 14 The effect of writing down 1% of the Groups inventory as at January 2010 would be

charge of $0.1 million in the income statement The assessment of whether an inventory write down is required is dependent on the

circumstances prevailing at the time of that assessment

Employee post-employment benefits defined benefit pensions

The determination of the Groups obligations and expense for defined benefit pensions is dependent on the selection by the Board of

Directors of assumptions used by the pension scheme actuary in calculating these amounts The assumptions applied are described in note

18 and include amongst others discount rate expected return on plan assets rates of increase in salaries and mortality rates While the

directors consider that the assumptions are appropriate significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in assumptions

may materially affect the amount of the Groups future pension obligations actuarial gains and losses included in the statement of comprehensive

income in future years and the future personnel -expenses The carrying amount of the liability for defined benefit obligations as at January

2010 is shown in note 18 It is estimated that 0.1% change in the discount rate With all other assumptions remaining unchanged would

cause the present value of defined benefit pension obligations as at January 2010 to change by approximately $0.6 million

Share-based payments

The Groups share-based payments expense is based on the fair value of the share-based awards The estimation of the fair values for

share-based payments is dependent in respect of share options and ExSOP awards on the selection by the Board of Directors of assumptions

applied in the valuation model The assumptions applied are described in note 18 and include amongst others expected volatility the

weighted average expected life of the instruments and the risk free rate While the directors consider that the assumptions are appropriate

changes in these assumptions may materially affect the amount of the expense recognised for share-based payments The share-based

payments expense recognised in the 53 weeks ended January 2010 is shown in note 18

In accordance with the accounting policy 2miii the amount recognised as share-based payment expense is adjusted during the vesting

period to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met During the

vesting period it is therefore necessary to make an assessment of the extent to which such share-based payments are likely to vest While

the directors consider that such estimated assessments are appropriate changes in these assessments during the vesting period may
materially affect the amount of the expense recognised for share-based payments in particular accounting period

Contingent consideration

The amount of contingent consideration that is recognised as being payable as part of business combinations is dependent upon assumptions

regarding the timing and probability of payment of the consideration Where the amount and payment of the consideration is dependent on

the achievement of specified milestones it is necessary to assess the likelihood and timing of those milestones being achieved Contingent

consideration was payable by the Group upon the acquisitions in 2007 of Oligon Limited and of Sonaptic Limited As at January 2010
total of $7.6 million is included in other payables $2.3 million of which is within current liabilities and $5.3 million in non-current liabilities

in respect of the remaining balance of the contingent consideration for those acquisitions While the directors consider that the assumptions

regarding the timing and probability of payment of the consideration are appropriate significant changes in these assumptions may materially

affect the
liability for contingent consideration with corresponding change to goodwill It is estimated that if the probability of one of the

milestones being achieved altered by 10% then the liability for contingent consideration would change by approximately $0.7 million

100 Wolfson Microelectronics plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009







Director/PDMR Shareholding London Stock Exchange Page of

ReguLatory Story ____ ____ ___________
Go to market news section

Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC

TIDM WLF
1VAW1WOIfSOfl4

Headline Director/PDMR Shareholding

Released 1642 22-Feb-2010

Number 5057H16
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Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
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Edinburgh 22 February 2010

Wolfson Microelectronics plc the Company

Notification of change in beneficial interest in shares by person discharging managerial

responsibility PDMR

On 19 February 2010 in accordance with the terms of an award granted on February 2007
from The Wolfson Microelectronics plc Executive Shared Ownership Plan the ExSOP Mark

Cubitt an executive director of the Company was required to sell back his beneficial interest in

40707 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the Company to The Wolfson Microelectronics No
Employees Share Trust The requirement to sell back the beneficial interest in those shares

was as result of the defined performance conditions not being achieved and consequently the

award lapsed

The consideration for this transaction was 0.494 pence per share This was calculated in

accordance with the terms of the agreement for the ExSOP award and represents proportion

of the original consideration of pence per share which was paid by Mark Cubitt on the grant of

the ExSOP award

As result of this transaction the total number of ordinary shares in which Mark Cubitt now
holds beneficial interest is 55000 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the Company which is

0.05% of the issued share capital of the Company

The Company was notified of the transaction on 22 February 2010

Background
On February 2007 in accordance with the terms of The Wolfson Microelectronics plc

Executive Shared Ownership Plan the ExSOP beneficial interest in 40707 ordinary shares

of 0.1 pence each in the Company was acquired for consideration of pence per share by
Mark Cubitt an executive director of the Company

The registered shareholder of the 40707 shares was RBC cees Trustee Limited in its capacity

as trustee of The Wolfson Microelectronics No Employees Share Trust and the beneficial

interest was held jointly by Mark Cubitt and RBC cees Trustee Limited in its capacity as trustee

of The Wolfson Microelectronics No Employees Share Trust

The interests in these ordinary shares were subject to the terms of an agreement in the form set

out in the ExSOP between RBC cees Trustee Limited in its capacity as trustee of The

http//www.londonstockexchange.com/exchange/prices-and-news/news/market-news/market-news-deta.. 18/03/2010



Director/PDMR Shareholding London Stock Exchange Page of

Wolfson Microelectronics No Employees Share Trust Mark Cubitt and ROC cees

Trustee Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Wotfson Microelectronics No Employees
Share Trust

The terms of this agreement provided that following the end of three year performance period

ending January 2010 and only to the extent to which the defined performance conditions have

been achieved Mark Cubitt would benefit from any further growth in the value of such ordinary

shares less interest on the initial market value of such shares It has been determined that

these performance conditions have not been achieved and therefore Mark Cubitt was required to

sell back his interest in all of the 40707 ordinary shares

This notification is made in accordance with Disclosure and Transparency Rule 3.1.4R1a

Enquiries

Jill Goldsmith 0131 272 7000

Company Secretary

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website Website users are responsible for

checking content Any news item including any prospectus which is addressed solely to the persons and countries specified

therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons andIor outside the specified countries Terms and conditions

including restrictions on use and distribution apply

2009 London Stock Exchange plc All rights reserved
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Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
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Edinburgh 26 February 2010

Wolfson Microelectronics plc the Company
Voting rights and capital

This notification is made in conformity with the provisions of the Financial Services Authoritys FSA
Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The Companys capital consists of 115238980 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each with each share carrying

the right to one vote No shares are held in Treasury Accordingly the total number of voting rights in the

Company is 115238980

The above figure may be used by shareholders as the denominator for the calculations by which they will

determine if they are required to notify their interest in or change to their interest in the Company under

the FSAs Disclosure and Transparency Rules

Enquiries

Jill Goldsmith Company Secretary

0131 2727000

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website Website users are responsible for checking

content Any news item including any prospectus which is addressed solely to the persons and countries specified therein should not be relied

upon other than by such persons andlor outside the specified countries Terms and conditions including restrictions on use and distribution
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March 2010

WOLFSON MICROELECTRONICS PLC ANNUAL INFORMATION UPDATE

In accordance with Prospectus Rule 5.2 Wolfson Microelectronics plc is pleased to provide its

Annual Information Update relating to information that has been published or made available to

the public between 28 February 2009 and 28 February 2010 The information referred to in this

update was up to date at the time the information was published but some information may now

be out of date

Announcements made via RNS regulatory information service

All of the documents listed below were published via RNS Regulatory Information Service

Date Brief description of announcement

02.03.09 Annual information update

02.03.09 Notification of major interests in shares Artemis Investment Management Ltd
05.03.09 Annual Report and Accounts 2008 and Notice of AGM
16.03.09 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons RK Graham purchase of shares by trust

of which RK Graham is Trustee but not beneficiary

20.03.09 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons AD Milne sale of shares
20.03.09 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons PDMRs Notification of share awards to

directors and PDMRs
24.03.09 Notification of major interests in shares Barclays PLC
31.03.09 Notification of Qi 2009 results

31 .03.09 Voting rights and capital

17.04 09 Block listing six monthly return

29.04.09 Results for the first quarter ended April 2009

30.04.09 Voting rights and capital

20.05.09 AGM Result Statement

29.05.09 Voting rights and capital

01.06.09 Notification of major interests in shares Majedie Asset Management Ltd

04.06.09 Notification of major interests in shares Wellington Management Company LLP
09.06.09 Business Update

22.06.09 Notice of second quarter and first half results for the period ended July 2009

30.06.09 Voting rights and capital
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01.07.09 Notification of Senior Management Appointment

03.07.09 Notification of major interests in shares Blackrock mc
09.07.09 Notification of major interests in shares Artemis Investment Management Ltd
09.07.09 Notification of major interests in shares Blackrock mc
21.07.09 Notification of major interests in shares Blackrock mc
28.07.09 Interim Results Half Yearly Report for the period ended July 2009

31.07.09 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons AD Milne sale of shares
31.07.09 Voting rights and capital

18.08.09 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons JM Hickey sale and purchases of shares
28.08.09 Voting rights and capital

03.09.09 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons PDMRs Notification of grant of share

awards to PDMR
03.09.09 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons PDMRs Eckelmann sale of shares
21.09.09 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons PDMRs AD Mime sale of shares

30.09.09 Voting rights and capital

05.10.09 Business and Trading Update

14.10.09 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons PDMRs RK Graham sale of shares by

trust

19.10.09 Block listing six monthly return

28.10.09 Results for the third quarter ended October 2009

30.10.09 Voting rights and capital

30.11.09 Voting rights and capital

03.12.09 Notification of major interests in shares Barclays PLC
04.12.09 Notification of major interests in shares Blackrock mc
31.12.09 Voting rights and capital

05.01.10 Notification of date for announcement of Q4 and full year results for the period

ended January 2010

28.01.10 Notification of major interests in shares Blackrocklnc
29.01.10 Voting rights and capital

09.02.10 Fourth quarter and full year results to January 2010

11.02.10 Notification of major interests in shares Blackrock mc
12.02.10 Notification of major interests in shares Blackrock mc
22.02.10 Notification of transaction of directors/persons discharging managerial

responsibility and connected persons Cubitt lapse of share award resulted in

sale of beneficial interest in shares
26.02.10 Voting rights and capital

Regulatory announcements for the Company released via RNS can be downloaded from the

London Stock Exchange website www.londonstockexchange.com from the Prices News area

and searching using Wolfson Microelectronics plcs code WLF These Regulatory

announcements for the Company released via RNS can also be found in the Investor Relations

section of the Companys website www.wolfsonmicro.com

The Annual Report and Accounts 2008 and the half yearly financial report for the period ended

July 2009 are also available on the Companys website at www.wolfsonmicro.com

Documents filed at Companies House

All of the documents listed below were filed with the Registrar of Companies in Scotland on or

around the dates indicated

Date Document filed

01.04.09 Form 353a Notice of place for inspection of register of members which is kept

in non-legible form or of any change in that place

14.04.09 Form 882 Return of allotments of shares on exercise of share options

30.04.09 Financial statements for the year ended 28 December 2008

26.05 09 Resolutions passed at 2009 Annual General Meeting
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26.05.09 New Articles of Association

23.07.09 Form 363a Annual Return

10.09.09 Form 882 Return of allotments of shares on exercise of share options

14.09.09 Form 882 Return of allotments of shares on exercise of share options

25.09.09 Form 882 Return of allotments of shares on exercise of share options

15.10.09 Form ADO2 Notification of single alternative inspection location SAIL
15.10.09 Form ADO3 Change of location of the company records to the single alternative

inspection location SAIL Register of Members

Documents filed at Companies House can be obtained from Companies House 4th Floor

Edinburgh Quay 139 Fountainbridge Edinburgh EH3 9FF telephone 0303 1234 500 e-mail

enguiriescompanieshouse.gov.uk or for registered users through Companies House Direct

at www.direct.companieshouse.gov.uk

Documents submitted to the FSA

All of the documents listed below were submitted to the FSA and processed on or around the

dates indicated

Date submitted to the FSA Document

05.03.09 Notice of 2009 Annual General Meeting and Annual Report and

Accounts 2008

21.05.09 Resolutions passed at 2009 Annual General Meeting

10.02.10 Preliminary announcement of fourth quarter and full year results

to January 2010

Documents submitted to the FSA can be viewed via its Document Viewing Facility situated at

Document Viewing Facility UK Listing Authority The Financial Services Authority 25 The North

Colonnade Canary Wharf London E14 5HS

Documents lodged with the ComDanies Commission of Malaysia

The following documents were lodged with the Companies Commission of Malaysia on the dates

indicated

Date of Document

lodgement

27.05 09 Form 79 Return by Foreign Company giving particulars of Directors and changes
of particulars

27.05.09 Form 80A Annual Return
27.05.09 Form 87 Statutory declaration verifying balance sheet of foreign company
27.05.09 Wolfson Microelectronics plc Annual Report and Accounts 2008
16.12.09 Statutory Declaration

16.12.09 Letter of application for waiver to prepare audited branch statements for the year

ended 31 December 2009

Documents lodged with the Companies Commission of Malaysia can be obtained from the

Companies Commission of Malaysia at Tingkat 10-18 Putra Place 100 Jalan Putra 50622

Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

Jill Goldsmith

Company Secretary

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

Westfield House

26 Westfield Road

Edinburgh

EH11 2QB
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This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website Website users are responsible for

checking content Any news item including any prospectus which is addressed solely to the persons and countries specified

therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified countries Terms and conditions

including restrictions on use and distribution apply

2009 London Stock Exchange plc All rights reserved

Regutatory
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Number 3574109

RNS Number 35741

Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
10 March 2010

10 March 2010

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

the Company

Annual Financial Report 2009 and Notice of Annual General Meeting

Following the release on February 2010 of the Companys preliminary full year results

announcement for the 53 week period ended January 2010 the Preliminary

Announcement the Company announces that it has today published its Annual Report

and Accounts 2009 Copies of the Annual Report and Accounts 2009 and the Notice of

Annual General Meeting for 2010 and Form of Proxy have been posted to shareholders

Copies of the Annual Report and Accounts 2009 and the Notice of Annual General

Meeting AGM for 2010 are available to access and download from the Companys
website at www.wolfsonmicro.com

Two copies of each of the Annual Report and Accounts 2009 and the Notice of Annual

General Meeting have been submitted to the UK Listing Authority and will shortly be

available for inspection at the UK Listing Authoritys Document Viewing Facility at

The Financial Services Authority

25 The North Colonnade

Canary Wharf

London

El4 5HS

Telephone 44 20 7066 1000

The AGM will be held on 20 May 2010 at 10.00 a.m at Westfield House 26 Westfield

Road Edinburgh EH1 2QB At the AGM it is proposed that the Company adopts new

Articles of Association summary of the proposed changes is set out in the

explanatory notes included in the Notice of AGM

The Preliminary Announcement included set of condensed consolidated financial
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statements and fair review of the development and performance of the business and the

position of the Company and the Group

In accordance with Disclosure and Transparency Rule 6.3.5 additional

information is set out in the appendices to this announcement Appendix includes

directors responsibility statement Appendix contains information regarding the

Companys principal risks and uncertainties and Appendix contains the disclosures

regarding related party transactions all as extracted from the Annual Report and

Accounts 2009 This announcement should be read in conjunction with and is not

substitute for reading the full Annual Report and Accounts 2009

Enquiries

Jill Goldsmith 0131 272 7000

Company Secretary

The following information is extracted from the Annual Report and Accounts 2009 and page and

note references included in this information are to pages and notes in the Annual Report and

Accounts 2009

Appendix Statement of Directors Responsibilities page 48
The Annual Report and Accounts 2009 contains the following statements regarding directors

responsibilities for the Annual Report and the financial statements

Statement of directors responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the group and parent company fmancial

statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company fmancial statements for each

fmancial year Under that law they are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance

with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company

fmancial statements on the same basis

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that

they give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or

loss for that period In preparing each of the group and parent company financial statements the directors

are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the group and the parent company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and

explain the parent companys transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial

position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the

Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to

them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

Under applicable law and regulations the directors are also responsible for preparing Directors Report

Directors Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that complies with that law and

those regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information

included on the companys website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of

financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

To the best of our knowledge
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the fmancial statements prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards

give true and fair view of the assets liabilities fmancial position and loss of the Company and

the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as whole and

the management report comprising the Chairmans Statement the Business Review and the

Operating and Financial Review together include fair review of the development and

performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in

the consolidation taken as whole together with description of the principal risks and

uncertainties that they face

JM Hickey Cubitt

ChiefExecutive Officer ChiefFinancial Officer

Appendix Principal Risks and Uncertainties pages 17 to 19

Risks and uncertainties

The Management of the Company constantly considers and reviews risk and the risk profile of this

business In addition the Company has put in place formal processes for the identification and where

possible the management and or mitigation of significant risks which are reviewed regularly by senior

management This is formally reported on regular basis to the Board as result of which the directors

of the Company the Directors are aware of the potential cost and resources involved in managing these

risks Details on the identification and management of risks are also included on page 29 in the Corporate

Governance statement

This Annual Report contains certain forward looking statements that are Wolfsons expectations and

beliefs about our future business These statements are made by the Directors in good faith based on

information available to them at the time of the approval of the report Undue reliance should not be

placed on such statements which are based on Wolfsons current plans estimates projections and

assumptions By their nature forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risk and

uncertainty because they relate to events and depend on circumstances which may occur in the future and

which in some cases are beyond Wolfsons control Actual results may differ from those expressed in

such statements depending on variety of factors These factors include but are not limited to consumer

and market acceptance of the Companys products and the products that use the Companys products

decreases in the demand for the Companys products excess inventory levels at the Companys customers

decline in average selling prices of the Companys products cancellation of existing orders or the failure

to secure new orders the Companys failure to introduce new products and to implement new technologies

on timely basis the Companys failure to anticipate changing customer product requirements

fluctuations in manufacturing and assembly and test yields the Companys failure to deliver products to its

customers on timely basis disruption in the supply of wafers or assembly testing services the timing of

significant orders increased expenses associated with new product introductions masks or process

changes the commencement of or developments with respect to any future litigation the cyclicality of

the semiconductor industry and overall economic conditions

There are number of potential risks and uncertainties which could have material impact on the

Companys long term performance

New product specification and introductions

Specifying and then designing the correct products is fundamental to the success of the Company
Customers tend to have set design windows that must be met for product to be selected and missing

these windows through being late or not meeting the required specification can result in missing an entire

end consumer product cycle The average design cycle for the Companys products can take 18 to 24

months to complete and achieve volume production therefore missing cycle can take more than two

years to recover This long design cycle coupled with limited customer visibility as to future

requirements and plans makes forecasting product demand and the timing of that demand difficult There

are also inherent risks in lengthy design cycles including risk of future design loss to competitor risk of

cancellation and limited uptake for new products

Dependence on the growth of the consumer electronics market

The Companys future success is dependent on the growth of the digital consumer electronics market and
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the successful adoption by customers of its integrated circuits in their products The future size of the

digital audio portable devices digital imaging markets and other potential markets is uncertain and

depends on number of factors all of which are beyond the Companys control The failure of these

markets to develop as generally expected would have material adverse effect on the business financial

condition and results of the Companys operations

In addition the Companys future success is also dependent on the success of its customers in their related

markets Reduced uptake by consumers of products from the Companys end customers could also have

material adverse effect on the Companys business fmancial condition and operating results

Fabless business model

The Company does not have its own manufacturing facilities As result the Companys business model

is less capital intensive The Company uses GLOBALFOUNDRIES formerly named Chartered

Semiconductor MagnaChip Semiconductor CSMC TSMC and X-FAB for the manufacture of most of

its silicon wafers and Unisem Carsem and ASE for major test and assembly services The Company is

reliant on these independent suppliers to provide the required capacity to manufacture assemble and test

its products and to provide high quality products on time The Company maintains an intemal

manufacturing support group which directs product supply helps ensure high level of quality and

reliability and works with the wafer foundries and production assemblers to resolve issues As result of

the economic downtum in the latter part of 2008 and into 2009 number of the manufacturers used by the

Company have experienced fmancial difficulties To mitigate the risk of loss of supply from

manufacturer ceasing business number of contingency plans have been put in place including carrying

additional buffer inventories and second-sourcing higher volume parts Regular senior management

meetings were also held with suppliers to ensure the Company was kept up-to-date with current trading

and liquidity issues within the supply chain As 2009 progressed these concerns eased as the industry

recovered and major supplier was refmanced

Infringement of third party intellectual property rights

The semiconductor industry is characterised by cross-licensing and frequent litigation regarding patent and

other intellectual property rights The Company has provided certain indemnification rights to some of its

customers in respect of the infringement of third party intellectual property rights regarding its products

Claims against the Company could adversely affect its ability to market and sell its products and seriously

harm its operating results In addition the defence of such claims could result in significant costs and

divert the attention of the Companys executives and technical personnel from their day to day work

Customer dependence

The Company supplies products to range of companies The Company seeks continually to expand its

customer base and customer mix However one or small number of customers may become responsible

for significant proportion of the Companys sales Rapid variation of such customers demand could then

significantly affect the Companys revenues The largest customer in 2009 accounted for 13% of revenue

2008 13% from different single largest customer with the top 10 customers accounting for 63% of

revenue in 2009 2008 63% and the top 20 customers accounting for 74% of revenue in 2009 2008
78%

Personnel

The Company relies on the ability to hire and retain appropriately qualified staff who provide the expertise

and experience critical to its business and the implementation of its strategy There is intense competition

for qualified personnel in the semiconductor industry and from time to time the Company experiences

difficulty in locating candidates in the relevant country with appropriate qualifications and experience

However one advantage of the economic downturn has been the ability to hire more top quality graduates

as result of less competition for their services The Company enters into employment contracts with its

personnel but there is no assurance that it will be able to continue to hire and retain appropriately qualified

personnel The loss of the service of or failure to recruit in timely maimer key technical and

management personnel or teams would adversely impact the Companys product development

programmes and could have material adverse effect on its performance and future growth

Catastrophic failure of end-user device in the field

The Company supplies components primarily into consumer electronic products Many of the major

consumer brands require indemnities should customer product recall be required as result of significant

field failures caused by one of the Companys components The Company looks to avoid such indemnities

and where given to limit the scope and quantum of the indemnity however this is often not possible and

indeed some indemnities are unlimited in quantum To reduce this risk there are rigorous procedures and

controls on the design manufacture testing and quality processes of the Company so as to avoid any

components being supplied that could result in such field failures The Company also has significant but

not unlimited product liability insurance in place to cover such an event
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Competitors

The markets in which the Company operates are very competitive and are characterised by rapid

technological change and evolving standards Many of the Companys competitors are larger in size have

larger fmancial marketing andlor technical resources longer trading history and larger installed

customer bases As result they may devote greater resources to the development promotion and sale of

their products than the Company can These factors may prevent the Company from competing

successfully against current or future competitors

Acquisitions

The Company expects to review further potential acquisition targets as part of its Wolfson AudioPlusTM

strategy The internal investment case for such acquisitions may not materialise as planned In addition

the integration of acquired companies involves additional risk including diversion of management time

potential failure to realise the synergy benefits anticipated from the acquisition the cultural risk associated

with integrating different companies in various countries and risks associated with unexpected liabilities

or events arising post acquisition

Communication networks and information technology

The Company depends on worldwide communication links and accurate timely information and

numerical data from key information technology systems and software applications to facilitate the daily

operation of the business and decision making Any disruption caused by failings in these systems of

related equipment or of communication networks could delay or otherwise impact everyday decision

making and some business operations The Company has developed and tested disaster recovery

arrangements in order to minimise the disruption caused by failings in these systems

Foreign currency exposure

Refer to Treasury and Foreign Exchange section on page 16

Appendix Related Party Transactions

Related parties Note 24 to the fmancial statements on pages 98 and 99

Identity of related parties

The Company has related party relationship with its subsidiaries see notes 12 and 25 with the

employee share trusts see notes 17 and 18 and with its directors

Transactions with key management personnel

Directors of the Company and their immediate relatives control 3.5% per cent of the voting ordinary

shares of the Company Information regarding the directors shareholdings and share options is contained

in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 41 and 47

In addition to their salaries the Group and Company also provide non-cash benefits to executive directors

and contribute to defmed contribution pension plan on their behalf The executive directors also

participate in the Groups share option schemes and other long term incentive plans see note 18 Details

of the directors remuneration are contained in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 34 to 47

Collinson was appointed as non executive director of the Company on September 2008 From April

2005 to July 2007 Collinson served as non-executive director of Sonaptic Limited and he was also

shareholder of Sonaptic Limited Collinson held 6667 ordinary shares in Sonaptic Limited As

reported in the Annual Report and Accounts of the Company for the period ended 30 December 2007
Wolfson Microelectronics plc acquired the entire issued share capital of Sonaptic Limited on 23 July

2007 Collinson received initial consideration of $279208 net of professional fees and charges at the

time of acquisition from Wolfson Microelectronics plc and following the release of the amount of initial

consideration held in escrow on 29 January 2009 further $22240 net of professional fees and charges
The terms of the acquisition were such that contingent consideration was payable to the shareholders of

Sonaptic Limited Therefore as part of the consideration for his shares held in Sonaptic Limited as at the

date of acquisition Collinson is entitled to receive subject to the achievement of specific business

milestones proportion of the contingent consideration from Wolfson Microelectronics plc in accordance

with the terms of the share purchase agreement entered into on 23 July 2007 between the Company and

the selling shareholders of Sonaptic Limited No amounts of contingent consideration have been paid to

Collinson by the Company either as at 28 December 2008 or at January 2010 Collinson will not

participate in any discussion nor fmal decisions by the Board regarding the achievement of milestones and

release of contingent consideration

Other related party transactions

During the 53 week period ended January 2010 subsidiaries earned commission income from the
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Company of $6.4 million 2008 $2.9 million and the Company provided management services to the

subsidiaries totalling $2.6 million 2008 $1.6 million As at January 2010 the Company owed the

subsidiaries $3948000 2008 $2340000 and $3869000 was owed by the subsidiaries 2008
$1812000 owed by the subsidiaries No dividends were received from the subsidiaries in 2009 or in

2008

There are two employee share trusts The Wolfson Microelectronics No Employees Share Trust and The

Wolfson Microelectronics No Employees Share Trust These trusts received loans from the Company

totalling $nil in the 53 week period ended January 2010 52 week period ended 28 December 2008

$nil the trusts repaid $nil of these loans 2008 $623000 and as at January 2010 $31765000 of these

loans were outstanding as at 28 December 2008 $31765000 During both the 53 week period ended

January 2010 and the 52 week period ended 28 December 2008 the trusts did not purchase any of the

Companys shares for the purposes of fulfilling awards under The Wolfson Microelectronics 2006

Performance Share Plan The Wolfson Microelectronics 2008 or 2009 Staff Performance Share Plans The

Wolfson Microelectronics Group Executive Shared Ownership Plan and to satisfy share option awards

note 18 There were 5056461 of the Companys ordinary shares held by the Companys employee share

trusts as at January 2010 as at 28 December 2008 5378301 ordinary shares

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange
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ReguLatory Story

Go to market news section

Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC

TIDM WLF woffson
Headline Notification of interest

Released 1138 11-Mar-2010

Number 4383111

RNS Number 43831

Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
11 March2010

TR-l NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTEREST IN SHARES

Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer WOLFSON MICROELECTRONICS
of existing shares to which voting rights are

attached

Reason for the notification please tick the appropriate box or boxes

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights
Yes

An acquisition or disposal of qualifying financial instruments which may result in the

acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached

An acquisition or disposal of instruments with similar economic effect to qualifying

financial instruments

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights

Other please

specify

Artemis Investment Management Limited

Full name of persons subject to the

notification obligation

Artemis UK Special Situations Fund

Barclays UK Smaller Companies
Institutional Special Situations

Pearson

Prudential Staff Pension Scheme

4feh0 omfJso1eIs

Scheme

BAE Systems 2000 Pension Plan Trustees Ltd

BAE Systems Pension Funds CIF Trustees Ltd

Barclays UK Alpha

LGBarclays MM Alpha Fund

LGBarclays Series2 MM Alpha Fund
Witan Investment Trust

Date of the transaction and date on 10 March 2010
which the threshold is crossed or

reached

11 March2010
Date on which issuer notified

Thresholds that is/are crossed or
13%

reached
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Notified details

Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type of Situation previous Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

shares to the triggering

transaction

if possible using Number Number Number Number of voting of voting rights

the ISIN CODE of of of shares rights

Shares Voting

Rights
Direct Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

GB0033563130 14702332 14702332 15166332 15166332 13.16%

Qualifying Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of financial Expiration Exercise Number of voting of voting
instrument date Conversion Period rights that may be rights

acquired if the

instrument is

exercised converted

Financial Instruments with similareconomic effect to Qualifying Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of financial Exercise Expiration Exercise Number of voting rights of voting rights

instrument price date Conversion instrument refers to

period

Nominal Delta
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Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights andor the

financial instruments are effectively held if applicable

13 Additional information

Karen Paine
14 Contact name

0131 718 0414
15 Contact telephone number

END
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10 Name of the proxy holder

Proxy Voting

11 Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease
to hold

12 Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold

voting rights
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